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Governance and Staff

Leadership Changes

Leadership changes during the past year on the Board of Trustees and in the school
administration:

In 2013-14 to better support the instructional programming needs of the school, the Board
created an assistant principal position which was filled by Jury Segers. Ms. Segers holds a PA
Admin-I Principal certification and prior to being promoted, served as Imhotep’s Special
Education Coordinator for three years. At the end of the year, CEO Christine Wiggins’ contract
was not renewed. The Board of Directors is currently conducting a search for a new school
leader.

On the Board of Directors, the Board had one resignation for personal reasons — William Ballou
(resigned July 2013). Additionally, the term structure of the Board, as set forth in the by-laws,
resulted in the terms ending for four Board members as of June 2013 — Gail Hawkins-Bush,
Sheila Larry, Eric Hardaway, and Samuel Quartey. A nominating committee formed in June,
interviewing 19 candidates, and filled three positions in September 2013. In spring 2014, two
more board members resigned for personal reasons — Valerie Harrison and Dr. Jan Gillespie.
These positions remain vacant. Finally, the terms for Brenda Shields and Iris Jenkins ended June
2014,

The board composition in 2013-14 was as follows:

Board Member (Position) Original Term Start

Mr. Broderick Jones (President) Original Term 2006; Office starting June 2013

Original Term 2010; Office starting June 2013 (term

Ms. Iris L. Jenkins (Treasurer)
ended June 2014)

Dr. Marlene Archie (Secretary) Original Term and Office starting September 2013
Mrs. Maisha Sullivan-Ongoza Original Term 2008

Mrs. Brenda J. Shields Original Term 2010 (term ended June 2014)

Mr. Brian Aiken Original Term September 2013

Mr. Sharif Street Original Term September 2013

Board of Trustees Meeting Schedule

Location Date and Time
Imhotep Institute Charter High School; 6201 9/18/2014 7:00 PM
N. 21st St. Philadelphia, PA 19138
Imhotep Institute Charter High School; 6201 10/16/2014 7:00 PM
N. 21st St. Philadelphia, PA 19138
Imhotep Institute Charter High School; 6201 11/20/2014 7:00 PM
N. 21st St. Philadelphia, PA 19138




Imhotep Institute Charter High School; 6201
N. 21st St. Philadelphia, PA 19138

12/18/2014 7:00 PM

Imhotep Institute Charter High School; 6201
N. 21st St. Philadelphia, PA 19138

1/15/2015 7:00 PM

Imhotep Institute Charter High School; 6201
N. 21st St. Philadelphia, PA 19138

2/19/2015 7:00 PM

Imhotep Institute Charter High School; 6201
N. 21st St. Philadelphia, PA 19138

3/19/2015 7:00 PM

Imhotep Institute Charter High School; 6201
N. 21st St. Philadelphia, PA 19138

4/16/2015 7:00 PM

Imhotep Institute Charter High School; 6201
N. 21st St. Philadelphia, PA 19138

5/21/2015 7:00 PM

Imhotep Institute Charter High School; 6201

N. 21st St. Philadelphia, PA 19138

6/18/2015 7:00 PM

Professional Staff Member Roster

There are no professional staff members.

The professional staff member roster as recorded originally on the PDE-414 form

PDF file uploaded.
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Further explanation:

We have interpreted the intent of the chart above to be to track staff turnover during 2013-14
and staff retention from 2013-14 to 2014-15. The “Promoted,” “Transferred,” and
“Terminated” columns reflect turnover among those staff employed at the start of the 2013-14
school year (as reflected in the “All Employed per Category” column) during the course of the
2013-14 school year. The “Contracted for Following Year” column reflects solely those staff who
were employed at the beginning of the 2013-14 school year, who are returning for 2014-15 in
the same position category. This chart does not reflect any new hires for 2014-15, and, as such,
a reduction between the number of staff in “All Employed per Category” and the number of
staff in “Contracted for the Following Year,” does not necessarily indicate a reduction in
positions for the upcoming school year.




Fiscal Matters

Major Fundraising Activities
Major fundraising activities performed this year and planned for next year:

The school has an active Wazuri Parent Association and Booster Club, which coordinates with
the school and students to implement small-scale sales that successfully fund the school’s
robust student activities, including athletics and graduation activities. In 2014-15, the smaller
fundraisers raised around $5000.

The school will continue its fundraising strategy of grant writing (including small private grants),
forming strategic partnerships, small-scale parent- and student-led sales and fundraisers, and
Board member personal giving in 2014-15. The Board will continue to work with the school and
community stakeholders as they continue to develop a long-term fundraising strategy for the
school, which will likely include additional annual fundraising event.

Fiscal Solvency Policies
Changes to policies and procedures to ensure and monitor fiscal solvency:

There were no new fiscal policies and procedures in 2013-14 nor changes to existing policies.
However, Imhotep did implement the policies below with fidelity, which greatly improved the
school’s fiscal solvency over 2013-14.

Since the 2012-13 school year, Imhotep has contracted with OmniVest Management, LLC to
provide comprehensive school finance and accounting and program management and
compliance support. In accordance with our Internal Controls Policy, the reports OmniVest
prepares consist of monthly balance sheets and statements of activity. These statements are
prepared in accordance with GAAP, and include a detailed reporting of asset, liability, revenue
and expense categories, and a comparison between year-to-date actual and year-to-date budget
data. This practice allows the Board and C.E.O. to identify variances and respond accordingly in
an expeditious manner.

Fiscal Solvency Policies

Charter School documents that describe policies and procedures that have been established to
ensure and monitor fiscal solvency (optional if described in the narrative)

Files uploaded:
e |ICHS - Internal Financial Controls.pdf

Accounting System

Changes to the accounting system the charter school uses:



There were not any significant changes to Imhotep’s accounting system in 2013-14. Since 2012-
2013 school year, Imhotep has contracted with OmniVest Properties Management, LLC to
provide its back office and fiscal management services.

The school’s Chart of Accounts mirrors that of the Pennsylvania State Chart of Accounts for
Pennsylvania Public Schools and GAAP Accounting is followed for accrual based budgeting,
accounting, and reporting. The school’s financial and budgetary reporting is prepared in
accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and the applicable
standards set by the Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB), including Statement 34
and Statement 54. OmniVest ensures that the general ledger structure and account
classifications are in accordance with the Pennsylvania Department of Education guidelines.
Imhotep will also utilize OmniVest Management, LLC’s internal controls and procedures, which
include annual and monthly budgeting, cash management, general ledger control, monthly
financial reporting, and account reconciliation. The accounting software system used is
QuickBooks Premier Accountant Edition 2012. This software is customized with the
Pennsylvania State Chart of Accounts for Pennsylvania Public Schools. The school is 100
percent compliant with the Pennsylvania State Chart of Accounts for PA Public Schools. All of
the school’s financial and budgetary reporting is prepared in accordance with the Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and the applicable standards set by the Government
Accounting Standards Board (GASB).

Preliminary Statements of Revenues, Expenditures & Fund Balances

The completed and CEO signed Fiscal Template — Preliminary Statements of Revenues,
Expenditures & Fund Balances

PDF file uploaded.

Financial Audits

Basics

Audit Firm: Anthony J. Kubicek, CPA
Date of Last Audit: 11/15/2013

Fiscal Year Last Audited: 2012-2013

Explanation of the Report

Detailed explanation of the report (if the previous year’s report has been submitted.) Any audit
report for a school year that precedes this annual report by more than 2 years is not acceptable
and may be considered a material violation:

The school’s Board of Trustees has engaged certified public accountant Anthony J. Kubicek to
conduct our audit for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014. This audit report for fiscal year ended
June 30, 2014 is expected to be completed no later than November 2014. Imhotep will provide
PDE and the School District of Philadelphia with a copy of this audit report immediately upon its
completion.

To date, the most recent audit available is the audit for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013. This
audit was completed on November 15, 2013 by public accountant Anthony Kubicek. A copy of



this document is attached to this report, and the “Management’s Discussion and Analysis” can
be found on pages 3-6. A summary of audit results includes the following: (1) The Auditor’s
Report expressed an unqualified opinion; (2) No instances of noncompliance material to the
financial statements, which would be required to be reported in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards were disclosed during the audit; (3) There were no deficiencies in internal
control over financial reporting that were considered material weaknesses; and (4) There were
no reportable conditions relating to the audit of major federal award programs (i.e. Title I, Title
II, NSLP, School Breakfast Program, IDEA, etc).

Financial Audit Report

The Financial Audit Report, which should include the auditor’s opinion and any findings resulting
from the audit

PDF file uploaded.

Citations

Financial audit citations and the corresponding Charter School responses

Description Response

Federal Programs Consolidated Review

Basics

Title I Status: Yes

Date of Last Federal
Programs Consolidated 04/05/2011
Review:

School Year Reviewed: 2010-2011

Federal Programs Consolidated Review Report

The Federal Programs Consolidated Review Report, which should include the Division’s opinion
and any findings resulting from the audit

PDF file uploaded.

Citations

Federal Programs Consolidated Review citations and the corresponding Charter School
responses




Description

Response

Topic: Title I, Highly Qualified/
I[ssue: All core content area
teachers employed by the LEA
are highly qualified.

At the time of our consolidated review (spring 2011),
Imhotep employed 26 core content teachers of which 20
(or 77%) met HQT requirements. For 2011-12,
improvements in hiring and rostering, as well as a
reconfiguration of our special education program, have
resulted in a much higher percentage of HQT. Presently,
Imhotep employs 21.20 FTE core content teachers of
which 20.15 (95%) are HQT. Four staff members
comprise the 1.05 FTE of NHQTSs (5%). Attached
(submitted to PDE's Division of Federal Programs) you
will find a full listing of Imhotep’s 2011-12 core content
teachers and their HQT status. For teachers who are not
HQT, the number of years they have served at Imhotep
are listed on this chart.

All NHQT are required to develop and/or update their
Individual Professional Development Plan. These plans
will explicitly state achievable milestones for achieving
both HQT status and certification. The Director of
Teaching and Learning will review these plans with an
outside consultant for accuracy. The Director of Teaching
and Learning will meet with each NHQT to review their
submitted plan and require the teachers to sign an
agreement to complete the steps described therein. The
Director of Teaching and Learning will meet with each
NHQT quarterly to monitor progress on meeting the
steps.

Topic: Title I, Parent
Involvement/ Issue: LEA has a
written parental involvement
policy and evidence that it is
updated periodically.

In fall 2011, the Federal Programs Coordinator, Parent
Ombudsman coordinated with the administration, school
Board, and Wazuri Parent Association to draft a Parent
Involvement Policy and Parent Compact. The draft
policy was presented to parents for their review and
feedback at the Annual Title [ Meeting, which was held in
conjunction with the Wazuri Parent Association Meeting
on October 27, 2011. Parents filled out feedback forms,
and their comments were incorporated into the final
version of the Title I Parent Involvement Policy, which
was officially adopted by the Imhotep Board of Trustees
on January 12, 2012. A copy of this final Title I Policy is
attached (submitted to PDE's Division of Federal
Programs). Additionally, we have attached (submitted to
PDE's Division of Federal Programs) a packet that
includes the agenda from the Annual Title [ meeting,
sign-in sheets from this meeting, and copies of the parent
feedback forms on the Policy and Compact.

Topic: Title I, Parent
Involvement/ Issue: School
parent involvement policies
have been distributed to
parents.

The Annual Title I Notice was distributed to all parents
via the Parent/Student Handbook. Draft versions of the
Parent Involvement Policy and the Parent Compact were
distributed to parents at the Annual Title I Meeting held
in conjunction with the Wazuri Parent Association
Meeting on October 27, 2011 (Meeting agenda
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forwarded to PDE's Division of Federal Programs). The
policies were adopted at a public Board meeting on
January 12, 2012. The official policies will be posted on
the school’s website (www.imhotepcharter.org) and will
be distributed to parents at the monthly Wazuri Parent
Association Meeting on January 26, 2012.

Topic: Title I, Highly Qualified/
Issue: Parents are notified if
their child is assigned to or is
being taught for four or more
consecutive weeks by a teacher
who is not highly qualified in a
core academic subject.

Imhotep’s new semester begins on January 26, 2012. As
this results in changes in course enrollment and teacher
assignments, parent notification letters will be sent to
students assigned to be instructed by the 1.05 NHQTs by
February 1, 2012. A copy of our letter template is
attached (submitted to PDE's Division of Federal
Programs). School administration have received
guidance on timely tracking and reporting of NHQT data
to parents from its outside Federal Programs Consultant.
Henceforth, NHQT notification letters will be sent within
the first 4 weeks of each semester or upon hire of a non-
HQT if mid-semester.

Topic: Title I, Parent
Involvement/ Issue: Schools
Receiving Title I funds have a
written parent involvement
policy/plan aligned with the
LEA policy.

Imhotep is a one-school LEA. As such our LEA Title I
Parent Involvement Policy (detailed in our response to
issue Title I, Parent Involvement 1.0) is also our school-
level policy. Please refer to aforementioned attachments.
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Special Education

Chapter 711 Assurances

The LEA agrees to comply with all requirements of Special Education outlined in 22 PA Code
Chapter 711 and other state and federal mandates. These include:

Implementation of a full range of services, programs and alternative placements available to the
Charter School for placement and implementation of the special education programs in the
Charter School.

Implementation of a child find system to locate, identify and evaluate young children and
children who are thought to be a child with a disability eligible for special education residing
within the Charter School's jurisdiction. Child find data is collected, maintained and used in
decision-making. Child find process and procedures are evaluated for their effectiveness. The
Charter School implements mechanisms to disseminate child find information to the public,
organizations, agencies and individuals on at least an annual basis.

Assurances of students with disabilities are included in general education programs and
extracurricular and non-academic programs and activities to the maximum extent appropriate in
accordance with an Individualized Education Program.

Following the state and federal guidelines for participation of students with disabilities in state
and Charter School-wide assessments including the determination of participation, the need for
accommodations and the methods of assessing students for whom regular assessment is not
appropriate.

Assurance of funds received through participation in the medical assistance reimbursement
program, ACCESS, will be used to enhance or expand the current level of services and programs
provided to students with disabilities in this local education agency.

Special Education Support Services

Support Service Location | Teacher FTE
B. Fiechtel -Teacher (Learning/Emotional Support) [ICHS 1
K. Blackney- Teacher (Learning/Emotional Support) IICHS 1
L. Camp -Teacher (Learning/Emotional Support) [ICHS 0.6
L.Camp - Special Education Coordinator IICHS 0.4
M. Cuddy- Teacher (Learning/Emotional Support) [ICHS 1
N. Harrison - Paraprofessional IICHS 1
V. Sims - Paraprofessional [ICHS 1

Special Education Contracted Services

Title Amt. of Time Operator Number of
per Week Students

Clhear Solutions LLC Audiology 2 Hours Outside 10 or fewer
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Services Contractor

Community Integrated Services 8 Hours Outside 10 or fewer

Transitional Supports Contractor

Kaleidoscope/Delta-T Speech 8 Hours Outside 10 or fewer

Services Contractor

Ms. Deon Allen Psychologist 8 Hours Outside 21
Contractor

Special Education Cyclical Monitoring

Date of Last Special Education Cyclical Monitoring: 02/16/2012

Link to Report (Optional): Not Provided

Special Education Cyclical Monitoring Report

The Special Education Cyclical Monitoring Report, which should include the Bureau’s findings

PDF file uploaded.




Facilities
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Fixed assets acquired by the Charter School during the past fiscal year

Fixed assets acquired by the Charter School during the past fiscal year:

New gym walls: $18,563

Communication Systems: $40,100

Computers: $27,877

The total Charter School expenditures for fixed assets during the identified fiscal year:

$86,540.00

Facility Plans and Other Capital Needs

The Charter School’s plan for future facility development and the rationale for the various

components of the plan:

Imhotep does not have any immediate facility plans or capital needs beyond repairs and
maintenance. However, our long-term goals is to raise capital funding to complete some
projects remaining after the initial new facility construction, including building signage and

completion of the indoor track.

Memorandums of Understanding

Organization

Purpose

Anthony Kubicek, CPA

Audit Services

Barbara Moore Williams

Professional development

Bayada Nursing services
Daniels-Wynn Security services
Deon Allen Psychological services

[guanna Systems

Technology and computer services

IMA Educational Services
(Nsima Camara)

Special education/ ELL Services

JPA Associates Legal, Management, Compliance Services

NPsyt Psychological services

OmniVest Management, LLC | Business Management

Philadelphia Police Establishes a relationship of cooperation and mutual support
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| Department (MOU)

| and to maintain a safe support environment.
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Charter School Annual Report
Affirmations

Charter Annual Report Affirmation
I verify that all information and records in this charter school annual report are complete and
accurate.

The Chief Executive Officer and the Board of Trustee President of the charter school must
sign this verification.

Affirmed by Broderick Jones on 7/24/2014

President, Board of Trustees

Affirmed by Jeffrey Williams on 7/24/2014
Chief Executive Officer
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Charter School Law Affirmation
Pennsylvania’s first Charter School Law was Act 22 of 1997, 24 P.S. § 17-1701-A et seg., which
primarily became effective June 19, 1997, and has subsequently been amended.

The Charter School Law provides for the powers, requirements, and establishment of charter
schools. The Charter School Law was passed to provide opportunities to teachers, parents, pupils
and community members to establish and maintain schools that operate independently from the
existing school district structure as a method to accomplish all of the following: (1) improve pupil
learning; (2) increase learning opportunities for all pupils; (3) encourage the use of different and
innovative teaching methods; (4) create new professional opportunities for teachers; (5) provide
parents and pupils with expanded choices in types of educational opportunities that are available
within the public school system; and (6) hold charter schools accountable for meeting measurable
academic standards and provide the school with a method to establish accountability systems.

The charter school assures that it will comply with the requirements of the Charter School Law
and any provision of law from which the charter school has not been exempted, including Federal
laws and regulations governing children with disabilities. The charter school also assures that it
will comply with the policies, regulations and procedures of the Pennsylvania Department of
Education (Department). Additional information about charter schools is available on the
Pennsylvania Department’s website at: http://www.education.state.pa.us.

The Chief Executive Officer and Board of Trustees President of the charter school must
sign this assurance.

Affirmed by Broderick Jones on 7/24/2014

President, Board of Trustees

Affirmed by Jeffrey Williams on 7/24/2014

Chief Executive Officer
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Ethics Act Affirmation

Pennsylvania’s current Public Official and Employee Ethics Act (Ethics Act), Act 93 of 1998,
Chapter 11, 65 Pa.C.S. § 1101 et seq., became effective December 14, 1998 and has subsequently
been amended.

The Ethics Act provides that public office is a public trust and that any effort to realize personal
financial gain through public office other than compensation provided by law is a violation of that
trust. The Ethics Act was passed to strengthen the faith and confidence of the people of
Pennsylvania in their government. The Pennsylvania State Ethics Commission (Commission)
administers and enforces the provisions of the Ethics Acts and provides guidance regarding its
requirements.

The regulations of the Commission set forth the procedures applicable to all proceedings before
the Commission as well as for the administration of the Statement of Financial Interests filing
requirements. See 51 Pa. Code § 11.1 et seq.

The charter school assures that it will comply with the requirements of the Ethics Act and with
the policies, regulations and procedures of the Commission. Additional information about the
Ethics Act is available on the Commission's website at: http://www.ethics.state.pa.us.

The Chief Executive Officer and Board of Trustees President of the charter school must
sign this assurance.

Affirmed by Broderick Jones on 7/24/2014

President, Board of Trustees

Affirmed by Jeffrey Williams on 7/24/2014

Chief Executive Officer



CERTIFICATION VERIFICATION FORM

PDE-414

Imhotep Institute Charter High Schoool

2013-14 Year End

Complete the following information for all professional staff members.

Percentage of

Grades All Areas of Assignment Subject Number of Time in Percentage of
Name of employee (List all Teaching or Areas Teaching or Services Hours Worked Certified Time in Areas
names in alphabetical order) Areas of Certification Type of Certificate Serving Provided in Assignment Position Not Certified
. French K-12 -- Inst. I; Mid-Level Mathematics 7-9 --

Acholla, Renilde Inst. | 9-12 French 1058 100% 0%

Adjepong, Tiffany Vocational Instruction | -- Dance 7-12 9-12 Dance/Performing Arts 1058 100% 0%

Alston, Nicole English 7-12 -- Inst. | 10 English | & English Il 1058 100% 0%

Blakney, Keith Ment. &/or Phys. Handicapped K-12 -- Inst. II 10-11 Special Education 1058 100% 0%

Bowman, Alfonse Not Certified 10 Biology Il 1058 0% 100%
American History (0.8 FTE) &
Brach, John Social Studies -- Inst. I; Communication 7-12 -- Inst. | 9-11 Communications (0.1 FTE) & Video 1058 100% 0%
Editing (0.1 FTE)
Health & Physical Educ. K-12 -- Inst. II; Principal K-12 - Health & Physical Educati 0.6
Brown-Nixon, Ronesha | ° ysieat bduc. B2 == Inst. 1 Frincipa 9-12 e ysical Education ( 635 100% 0%
- Admin. | FTE)
) Special Education N-12 -- Inst. I; English as a Second . .
Camp, Lajoya e 9-12 Special Ed. Coordinator 1058 100% 0%
Language (ESL) K-12 -- Program Specialist
Covington, Trichita Not Certified 9-12 Art 1058 0% 100%
English 7-12 -- Intern; Spec. Ed. &-12 -- Int . .
Cuddy, Max nets ntern; spec ntem 9-12 Special Education 1058 100% 0%

(Approved 9/1/12)




Social Studies -- Inst. |; Mid-Level Science 7-9 -- Inst.

Dean, Timoth 9-11 African History & American Histo 1058 100% 0%
1Moty I; Mid-Level Math 7-9 — Inst. | ican History rican nistory ° °
Algebra 11 (0.75 FTE) & Honors
Dunston, Walter Math 7-12 -- Inst. | 11 80 100% 0%
Geometry (0.25 FTE)
Pre-Algebra & Special Educati
Feichtel (Pittre), Bernadette | Math 7-12 — Inst. I; Special Education N-12 - Inst. | | 9 & 11 re-Algebrd M:tic'a ucation 1058 100% 0%
Fischer, Donald English 7-12 -- Inst. I; Mid-level Math 7-9 -- Inst. | 10& 11 English & Public Speaking 475 100% 0%
Franzen, Jospeh Chemistry 7-12 -- Intern (Approved 9/1/13) 12 Chemistry Il 1058 100% 0%
Futej, Carolanne English 7-12 -- Intern (Approved 7/20/13) 10-12 English 1ll & Journalism 1058 100% 0%
Grandy, Kimberly English 7-12 -- Inst. |; Elem. Ed. K-6 -- Inst. | 9-10 English 1058 100% 0%
Hall, Theodosia English 7-12 -- Inst. | (Issued 6/1/13) 11-12 English 11l and English IV 1058 100% 0%
Spoken Word (0.1 FTE) 1 Secti 1
Harrison, Niesha Not Certified 9-12 poken Word ( )1 Section/ 106 0% 100%
Semester
Jones, Marlon Math 7-12 -- Intern (approved 3/1/13) 11 Geometry 1058 100% 0%
Lincoln, Nick English 7-12 -- Inst. | 11-12 English (0.8 FTE) 846 100% 0%
Moynihan (Brutus), Faith Math 7-12 -- Inst. | 12 Pre-Calc & Honors Pre-Calc 1058 100% 0%




Parker, Cheryl Social Studies 7-12 -- Inst. |l 10& 12 Civics and American History 1058 100% 0%
Pearson, Zenia Business, Computer, Info Tech -- Inst. | 10-12 Computer & Technology 1058 100% 0%
Pezzano, Julia (aka Leigh Environmental Education K-12 -- Inst. | 9 Earth Science 1058 100% 0%
Ashbrook)
Math 7-12 -- Inst. II; Bus-Comp Info Tech -- Inst. Il; Algebra 11 (0.75 FTE) & Honors
. . 10-11 714 100% 0%
Secondary Principal 7-12 -- Admin. Il Geometry (0.25 FTE)
Pitt, Carla
World Cult 0.75 FTE) & Hon.
Romano, David English 7-12 - Inst. II; Social Studies 7-12 - Inst. II 10-12 orld Culture ( )& Hon 1058 100% 0%
Civics (0.25 FTE)
S ish (0.86 FTE) & Art/Desi
Schatz, Linda Spanish K-12 -- Inst. II; Art K-12 -- Inst. |l 9-12 panish ( ) rt/Design 1058 100% 0%
(0.14 FTE)
Special Education N-12 -- Inst. I; Social Studies 7-12 --
Segers, Jury Inst. |; English as a Second Language (ESL) K-12 -- 9-12 Assistant Principal 1058 80% 20%
Program Specialist; Principal K-12 -- Admin. |
Stork, William Music K-12 -- Inst. | 9-12 Music 1058 100% 0%
Sutton, Tahar Secondary School Counselor 7-12 -- Ed. Specialist | 9-12 School Counselor 1058 100% 0%
Swinsburg, William Chemistry 7-12 -- Intern 10-11 Chemistry 1058 100% 0%
Tabb, Alease Mathematics 7-12 -- Inst. | 9 Pre-Algebra & Algebra 1058 100% 0%
Trainor, Patrick English 7-12 -- Instr. |; Social Studies 7-12 -- Instr. | 10& 11 English & Public Speaking 367 100% 0%




Tritch, Daniel Math 7-12 -- Intern 10 Algebra ll 1058 100% 0%

Vecchione, Jane School Nurse K-12 -- Ed. Specialist Il 9-12 School Nurse (0.6 FTE) 635 100% 0%
Principal K-12 -- Administrative; Elem. K-6 -- Inst. II; Lo

Williams, Jeff 9-12 P I 1058 100% 0%

riams, Jetirey Early Childhood N-3 -- Inst. Il rincipa ’ 0

Wood, Hyacinth Biology 7-12 -- Inst. | 9-10 Biology | and Biology Il 1058 100% 0%




Preliminary Statement of Revenues, Expenditures & Fund Balances
Include ALL Funds
as of June 30, 2014

Name of School IMHOTEP INSTITUTE CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL

Address of Sc

( .
REVEN

t ST., PHILADELPHIA, PA 19138

_."::' '
=1 o/ SR

6000 REVENUE FROM LOCAL SOURCES
6500 EARNINGS ON INVESTMENTS
6510 Interest on Investments and Interest-Bearing Checking Accounts
6520 Dividends on Investments
6530 Gains or Losses on Sale of Investments
6540 Earnings on Investments in Real Property
6590 Other Earnings or Investments
6600 FOOD SERVICE REVENUE
6610 Daily Sales - Reimbursable Programs
6620 Daily Sales - Non-Reimbursable Programs
6630 Special Functions
6640 Non-Cash Contributions
6650 Price Reduction for Reduced Price and Free Meals (Debit)
6690 Other Food Service Revenues
6700 REVENUES FROM STUDENT ACTIVITIES 156356
6710 Admissions
6720 Bookstore Sales
6730 Student Organization Membership Dues and Fees
6740 Fees 2615
6750 Student Activity - Special Events
6790 Other Student Activity Income
6800 REVENUES FROM INTERMEDIARY SOURCES / PASS THROUGH
6810 Revenue from Local Governmental Units
6820 Revenue from Intermediary Sources - Commonwealth Funds
6830 Revenues from Intermediary Sources - Federal Funds
6890 Other Revenues from Intermediary Sources

Charter School Annual Report - Revenues 1




6900 OTHER REVENUE FROM LOCAL SOURCES
6910 Rentals 9848
6920 Contributions & Donations from Private Sources / Capital Contributions 1075
6930 Gains or Losses on Sale of Fixed Assets (Economic Resource
Measurement Focus Only)
6940 Tuition from Patrons
6941|Regular Day School Tuition
6942|Summer School Tuition 22394
6943|Adult Education Tuition
6944|Receipts From Other LEAs in Pennsylvania - Education 6241062
6945|Receipts from Out-of-State LEAs
6946 |Receipts from Member Districts - AVTS / Special Program Jointure only
6947|Receipts from Members of Intermediate Units for Education by Withholding
6948|Receipts from Members of Intermediate Units for Direct Contributions
6949|Other Tuition from Patrons
6950 Unassigned
6960 Services Provide Other Local Governmental Units / LEAs
6961|Transportation Services Provided Other Pennsylvania LEAs 6630
6969|All Other Services Provided Other Governments and LEAs Not Specified
Above
6970 Services Provided Other Funds
6980 Revenue from Community Service Activities
6990 Refunds and Other Miscellaneous Revenue 30692
6991|Refunds of a Prior Year Expenditure
6999|Other Revenues Not Specified Above
7000 REVENUE FROM STATE SOURCES
7100 BASIC INSTRUCTIONAL AND OPERATING SUBSIDIES
7150 Unassigned
7160 Tuition for Orphans and Children Placed in Private Homes
7180 Staff and Program Development
7200 REVENUE FOR SPECIFIC EDUCATIONAL PROGRAMS
7210 Homebound Instruction
7220 Vocational Education
7230 Alternative Education
7240 Driver Education - Student
7250 Migratory Children
7260 Workforce Investment Act (WIA)
7270 Specialized Education of Exceptional Pupils
7280 Adult Literacy
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7290 Additional Educational Program Revenues
7300 REVENUES FOR NON-EDUCATIONAL PROGRAMS
7310 Transportation (Regular and Additional)
7320 Rental and Sinking Fund Payments / Building Reimbursement Subsidy 71060
7330 Health Services (Medical, Dental, Nurse, Act 25) 14631
7340 Unassigned
7350 Sewage Treatment Operations / Environmental Subsidies
7360 Safe Schools
7400 VOCATIONAL TRAINING OF THE UNEMPLOYED
7500 STATE REVENUE NOT LISTED ELSEWHERE IN THE 7000 SERIES OF
ACCOUNTS
7502|Dual Enroliment Grants
7503|Project 720/High School Reform
7599|Other State Revenue Not Listed Elsewhere in the 7000 Series
7600 REVENUE FOR MILK, LUNCH AND BREAKFAST PROGRAMS 6245
7800 REVENUE FOR THE COMMONWEALTH'S SHARE OF PAID BENEFITS
7810 State Share of Social Security and Medicare Taxes
7820 State Share of Retirement Contributions 359014
7900 REVENUE FOR TECHNOLOGY
7910 Educational Technology
7990 Other Technology Grants
8000 REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES
8100 UNRESTRICTED GRANTS-IN-AID DIRECT FROM THE FEDERAL
GOVERNMENT
8110 Payments for Federally Impacted Areas - P.L. 81-874
8190 Other Unrestricted Federal Grants-in-Aid Direct from the Federal
Government
8200 UNRESTRICTED GRANTS-IN-AID FROM THE FEDERAL
GOVERNMENT THROUGH THE COMMONWEALTH
8300 RESTRICTED GRANTS-IN-AID DIRECTLY FROM THE FEDERAL
GOVERNMENT
8310 Payments for Federally Impacted Areas - P.L. 81-815
8320 Energy Conservation Grants - TA and ECM
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8390 Other Restricted Federal Grants-in-Aid Directly from the Federal
Government
8500 RESTRICTED GRANTS-IN-AID FROM THE FEDERAL GOVERNMENT 459113
THROUGH THE COMMONWEALTH FOR THE INDIVIDUALS WITH
DISABILITIES EDUCATION ACT (IDEA), NO CHILD LEFT BEHIND
(NCLB), VOCATIONAL EDUCATION, CHILD NUTRITION AND CAREER
EDUCATION PROGRAMS
8510 Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) and No Child Left Behind 149280
(NCLB)
8520 Vocational Education
8530 Child Nutrition Program 119976
8540 Nutrition Education and Training
8560 Federal Block Grants
8570 Unassigned
8580 Child Care and Development Block Grants
8590 Unassigned
8600 RESTRICTED GRANTS-IN-AID FROM THE FEDERAL GOVERNMENT
THROUGH THE COMMONWEALTH FOR DRIVER EDUCATION, ADULT
EDUCATION, CETA, HEADSTART, ENERGY CONSERVATION,
WORKFORCE INVESTMENT ACT AND OTHER PROGRAMS
8610 Homeless Assistance Act
8620 Adult Basic Education
8640 Headstart
8650 Unassigned
8660 Workforce Investment Act (WIA)
8670 Unassigned
8680 Unassigned
8690 Other Restricted Federal Grants-in-Aid through the Commonwealth
8800 MEDICAL ASSISTANCE REIMBURSEMENTS
9000 OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
9100 SALE OF BONDS
9110 Bond Issue Proceeds (Gross)
9120 Proceeds from Refunding of Bonds
9200 PROCEEDS FROM EXTENDED TERM FINANCING
9300 INTERFUND TRANSFERS
9310 General Fund Transfers
9320 Special Revenue Fund Transfers
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9330 Capital Projects Funds Transfers
9340 Debt Service Fund Transfers
9350 Enterprise Fund Transfers
9360 Internal Service Fund Transfers
9370 Trust and Agency Fund
9380 Activity Fund Transfers
9390 Permanent Fund Transfers
9400 SALE OF OR COMPENSATION FOR LOSS OF FIXED ASSETS
9500 Unassigned
9600 Unassigned
9700 TRANSFERS INVOLVING COMPONENT UNITS AND PRIMARY
GOVERNMENTS
9710 Transfers from Component Units
9720 Transfers from Primary Governments
9800 INTRAFUND TRANSFERS IN
9810 General Fund Intrafund Transfers
9820 Special Revenue Intrafund Transfers
9840 Debt Service Intrafund Transfers
9850 Enterprise Intrafund Transfers
9860 Internal Service Intrafund Transfers
9870 Trust and Agency Intrafund Transfers
9880 Activity Interfund Transfers

TOTAL REVENUES

7649991
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Preliminary Statement of Revenues, Expenditures & Fund Balances
Include ALL Funds
as of June 30, 2014

Name of School IMHOTEP INSTITUTE CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL

Address of School of School 6201 N. 21st ST., PHILADELPHIA, PA 19138
CEOSignatale .z ) = o P
(\"——-—Ne&zfzﬁ'e'mjr;y be submitted EITHER as accrual or cash basis

EXPENDITURES

1000 INSTRUCTION
1100 REGULAR PROGRAMS - ELEMENTARY / SECONDARY 3539921
1200 SPECIAL PROGRAMS - ELEMENTARY / SECONDARY 396144
1300 VOCATIONAL EDUCATION
1400 OTHER INSTRUCTIONAL PROGRAMS - ELEMENTARY /
SECONDARY
1600 ADULT EDUCATION PROGRAMS
1700 HIGHER EDUCATION PROGRAMS
1800 PRE-KINDERGARTEN
2000 SUPPORT SERVICES
2100 SUPPORT SERVICES - PUPIL PERSONNEL 176407
2110|Supervision of Pupil Personnel Services
2120|Guidance Services
2130|Attendance Services
2140|Psychological Services
2150|Speech Pathology and Audiology Services
2160|Social Work Services
2170|Student Accounting Services
2190|Other Pupil Personnel Services
2200 SUPPORT SERVICES - INSTRUCTIONAL STAFF
2210|Supervision of Educational Media Services
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2220

Technology Support Services

2230

Educational Television Services

2240

Computer-Assisted Instruction Support Services

2250

School Library Services

2260

Instruction and Curriculum Development Services

2270

Instructional Staff Professional Development Services

2280

Nonpublic Support Services

2300

SUPPORT SERVICES - ADMINISTRATION

1126464

2310

Board Services

2320

Board Treasurer Services

2340

Staff Relations and Negotiations Services

2350

Legal Services

137470

2360

Office of the Superintendent (Executive Director) Services

2370

Community Relations Services

2380

Office of the Principal Services

2390

Other Administration Services

2400

SUPPORT SERVICES - PUPIL HEALTH

21838

2500

SUPPORT SERVICES - BUSINESS

2510

Fiscal Services

230550

2520

Purchasing Services

20000

2530

Warehousing and Distributing Services

2540

Printing, Publishing and Duplicating Services

2590

Other Support Services - Business

2600

OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE OF PLANT SERVICES

898745

2610

Supervision of Operation and Maintenance of Plant Services

2620

Operation of Buildings Services

2630

Care and Upkeep of Grounds Services

2640

Care and Upkeep of Equipment Services

2650

Vehicle Operations and Maintenance Services (Other than Student
Transportation Vehicles)

2660

Security Services

2690

Other Operation and Maintenance of Plant Services

2700

STUDENT TRANSPORTATION SERVICES

24343

2710

Supervision of Student Transportation Services

2720

Vehicle Operation Services

2730

Monitoring Services

2740

Vehicle Servicing and Maintenance Services

2750

Nonpublic Transportation
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2790

Other Student Transportation Services

2800 SUPPORT SERVICES - CENTRAL
2810|Planning, Research, Development and Evaluation Services
2820]Information Services
2830|Staff Services
2840|Data Processing Services
2850|State and Federal Agency Liaison Services
2860{Management Services 117885
2890|Other Support Services Central
2900 OTHER SUPPORT SERVICES - CENTRAL 153051
2990|Pass-Thru Funds
3000 OPERATION OF NON-INSTRUCTIONAL SERVICES
3100 FOOD SERVICES 127867
3200 STUDENT ACTIVITIES 286395
3210|School Sponsored Student Activities
3250|School Sponsored Athletics
3300 COMMUNITY SERVICES
3310|Community Recreation
3320|Civic Services
3330|Public Library Services
3340|Custody and Child Care
3350|Welfare Activities
3390|Other Community Services
3400 SCHOLARSHIPS AND AWARDS
4000 FACILITIES ACQUISITION, CONSTRUCTION AND IMPROVEMENT
SERVICES
4100 SITE ACQUISITION SERVICES - ORIGINAL AND ADDITIONAL
4200 EXISTING SITE IMPROVEMENT SERVICES
4300 ARCHITECTURE AND ENGINEERING SERVICES / EDUCATIONAL
SPEICIFICATIONS DEVELOPMENT - ORIGINAL AND ADDITIONAL
4400 ARCHITECTURE AND ENGINEERING SERVICES / EDUCATIONAL

SPECIFICATIONS - IMPROVEMENTS
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4500 BUILDING ACQUISITION AND CONSTRUCTION SERVICES -
ORIGINAL AND ADDITIONAL
4600 EXISTING BUILDING IMPROVEMENT SERVICES
5000 OTHER EXPENDITURES AND FINANCING USES 11118
5100 DEBT SERVICE / OTHER EXPENDITURES AND FINANCING USES 2032
5200 FUND TRANSFERS
5300 TRANSFERS INVOLVING COMPONENT UNITS
5400 INTRAFUND TRANSFERS OUT
5800 SUSPENSE ACCOUNT
5900 BUDGETARY RESERVE
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 7270230

TOTAL REVENUES MINUS TOTAL EXPENDITURES = CURRENT FUND
BALANCE AS OF JUNE 30, 2014
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Imhotep Institute Charter High School
Internal Financial Controls Policy

The Imhotep Institute Charter High School shall have a Director of Operations (DO) to
administer the daily fiscal and accounting functions of the School. A Finance Associate
will assist with these functions. The Board of Trustees and Chief Executive Officer
(CEOQ) will provide fiscal oversight. The Charter School wili contract with an independent
Business Manager (Business Manager) to provide support to the School in analyzing,
reconciling and adjusting account balances, and to ensure the records are maintained in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The Business
Manager also may assist in developing the Charter School's charter of accounts and
implementation of an accounting software system.

The internal financial control policies and procedures of the Charter School are as
follows:

I. ACCOUNTING SYSTEM

Policy: The charter school shall use the accrual basis accounting in accordance with
GAAP.

All financial statements and any reporting to the IRS or other governmental entities shall
be completed using this method.

Procedure: The charter school shall maintain an accrual basis accounting system in
accordance with generally accepted accounting procedures. All financial statements
and reports to the IRS and other governmental entities shall be completed by the
charter school or an accounting firm selected by the charter school on an accrual basis,
or otherwise in accordance with IRS or other regulations, and shall be submitted to such
entities by the charter school.

ll. BOOKS OF ACCOUNT

Policy: The books of account shall be maintained in accordance with GAAP, and
include Budget Reports, General Ledger, and detailed journals for all cash receipts and
cash disbursements (including payroll).

Procedure: The Business Manager shall maintain all books of accounts. An accounting
software package will be utilized to properly record all assets, liabilities, net assets,
revenues, expenses and budgets.

lll. CHART OF ACCOUNTS

Policy: A corporate Chart of Accounts in accordance with GAAP shall be developed by
the Business Manager to properly record all accounting activity.

Procedure: The Business Manager shall record all school fiscal transactions to the
Chart of Accounts in accordance with GAAP. The CEO will allocate revenues and
expenses according to the Chart of Accounts.



IV. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Policy: Financial statements shall be prepared by the Business Manager and shall be
reviewed by the CEO and Board of Trustees.

Procedure: The Business Manager shall prepare monthly balance sheets and
statements of activity. These statements will be prepared in accordance with GAAP,
and include a detailed reporting of asset, liability, revenue and expense categories, and
a comparison between year-to-date actual and year-to-date budget data. Financial
statements shall be presented to and reviewed by the Board of Trustees monthly.

V. BANK ACCOUNT MANAGEMENT: ISSUING/SIGNING CHECKS

Policy: Check signing procedures as established by the Board shall be adhered to by
staff.

Procedure: School checks shall be signed by two of the following persons: CEOQ,
Business Manager or Board President. Checks shall be issued only when within the
approved budget and with the approval of the CEO. Checks shall be prepared for
signature by the Business Manager.

Voided checks shall be retained to insure proper maintenance of checking account
records.

VI. BANK ACCOUNT MANAGEMENT: OPENING/CLOSING ACCOUNTS
Policy: The sighature of the CEO shall be required to open or close accounts,
subject to restrictions of such authority established by the Board of Trustees and by
state law or regulation.

Procedure: The CEO, after consultation with and authorization by the Board Chair,
shall secure any necessary signatures to open or close a charter school account.

VIl. BANK ACCOUNT RECONCILIATION

Policy: Reconciliation of each charter school account shall be done within sixty (60)
days of receipt of bank statements.

Procedure: The Business Manager shall reconcile all bank accounts monthly. The DO
will open all bank statements and review cancelled checks and monthly bank statement
activity, and compare the cash receipts log (prepared by the mail opener) to the
deposits listed on the bank statement.

VIII. PETTY CASH

Policy: The charter school shall maintain a petty cash fund to be used for
reimbursements to employees for minimal out-of-pocket business-related expenses, not
to exceed $500.00.

Procedure: The DO shall reimburse employees for out-of-pocket expenses, not

to exceed $500.00, upon submission of a petty cash reimbursement voucher, approved
by the CEO, and substantiating receipts related to each expenditure. The DO shall
verify all receipts as required for all requested reimbursements, make any required
payment, and maintain the petty cash fund. Replenishment of the petty cash fund will be
documented with a check request and approved by the DO. The DO will count and
reconciie the petty cash fund monthly.



IX. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Policy: The charter school will maintain accounts receivable in accordance with GAAP
for scheduled receipts from the school districts, grants or any other amounts due but not
yet received.

Procedure: All revenues will be recorded on an accrual basis in accordance with
GAAP. The Business Manager will maintain an aged schedule of amounts receivable,
which lists payor, date, description, and account. The Business Manager will reconcile
such schedule to the general ledger on a monthly basis.

X. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

Policy: The charter school, whenever practical, shall pay invoices within 60 days of
their issue, unless alternative arrangements are made with vendors or unless a dispute
arises. invoices of an amount which precludes payment within 60 days may be put on a
payment plan, allowing a monthly payment agreeable to both the charter school and the
vendor, unless ancther arrangement is reached agreeable to both the charter school
and the vendor.

Procedure: All accounts payable shall be recorded on an accrual basis in accordance
with GAAP. Accounts payable shall be maintained by the Business Manager who shall
ensure timely payment and the development of payment plans. The Business Manager
also shall maintain an aging of accounts payable schedule listing the payee, transaction
date, amount and payable description and account. Payments of invoices shall be
processed on or about the end of each week. All purchased in excess of $5,000 shall be
approved by the Board of Trustees. All invoices will be approved by the CEQ prior to
payment by the Business Manager. No payment will be made without a properly
approved invoice or other supporting documentation. All contracts and loans shali be
approved by the Board of Trustees.

Xl. PAYROLL SYSTEM

Policy: The charter school shall maintain a payroll system approved by the Board of
Trustees.

Procedure: Documentation of authorized pay rates shall be maintained in the
employee’s personnel file. Personnel files shall be secured with access limited to
authorized individuals.

The charter school will contract with a payroll service to provide payroll processing.
Personnel will be paid biweekly, by check. Personnel electing direct deposit will receive
a check stub.

Employee time sheets will be maintained daily. Time sheets, signed by the employee
and approved by a supervisor, shall be forwarded to the Business Manager at the end
of the pay period for payroll processing. The Finance Associate will review the time
sheets for sighatures and approvals, review time worked and verify for mathematical
accuracy, summarize the payroll information and forward it to the payroll service for
processing. The DO and CEO will receive all completed payroll reports and paychecks
from the payroll service. The DO will review the payroll reports and document approval.
The Finance Associate will distribute the paychecks. All payroll changes will be
authorized by the CEO and forwarded to the payroll service by the Finance Associate.



The Business Manager will record each payroll to the accounting system, including any
payroll accruals, in accordance with GAAP.

All services performed by independent contractors will be processed as accounts
payable.

At the close of the fiscal year, Forms 1092 will be issued to independent contractors in
accordance with IRS regulations.

Xil. MAIL MANAGEMENT; INCOMING CHECKS

Policy: All incoming mail is opened and distributed by a designated staff person. Any
checks received are immediately restrictively endorsed by the mail opener.
Procedure: All mail shall be opened by the Finance Associate or any other employee
as designated by the CEO. The Finance Associate (or other designated employee) shall
record the name, date received, name(s) or donor, address (if available), amount, and
type of receipt. The check shall be stamped “for deposit only” into the chatter school's
account, and the DO shall prepare the deposit slip and deposit the checks info the
appropriate account. A copy of each check shall be attached to a copy of the deposit
slip and deposit receipt and shall be filed and used for reconciliation of the bank
statement.

The Business Manager will receive the documentation related to the cash receipts

deposit and record the activity to the accounting system. The Board of Trustees will
review all cash receipts monthly, including a comparison of amounts received to the
budget.

Xill. BUDGETING OF FUNDS

Policy: The Board of Trustees shall approve an annual operating budget for the charter
school.

Adjustments to budget categories during the year shall be approved by the Board.
Procedure: The CEO shall develop, in conjunction with the Business Manager, the
charter school’'s annual budgets.

Budget assumptions in the initial year of operations will be based on known
expenditures of similar entities, modified for the charter school’s specifications and
expectations. Future budgets will be based on the school’s history, specifications and
expectations. Budgeted expense categories shall include the cost of personnel
instruction, administration, facilities, operations and other spending categories of the
charter school. Detailed expenses, such as supplies, repairs and maintenance, travel,
contracted services, utilities, rent, and other expenses will be budgeted according the
above spending categories.

The Board of Trustees will approve the annual budget of the charter school by June 1 of
the immediately preceding fiscal year. The Board also will approve any amendments
proposed during the year. The Board of Trustees will compare year-to-date revenues
and expenditures to the budget and review significant variations on a monthly basis.



XIV. CAPITAL DEPRECIATION; DISPOSITIONS AND DEPRECIATION

Policy: The Charter school shall, with the assistance of the Business Manager,
maintain appropriate fixed asset and related depreciation accounts.

Procedure: All property and equipment acquisitions and dispositions shall be approved
by the Board of Trustees. Assets in excess of $500 shall be capitalized and depreciated
over their useful life in accordance with GAAP for nonprofit organizations. Asset
purchases of under $500 and software purchases shall be expensed.

The Business Manager will reconcile the fixed asset and related depreciation schedules
to the general ledger account monthly.

XV. STAFF AND TRAVEL EXPENSES

Policy: Staff shall be reimbursed for travel and related expenses while on approved
charter school business.

Procedure: All out-of-town travel shall be approved by the CEO in advance. All staff
shall submit travel reimbursement forms by which they request reimbursement. Travel
reimbursement forms shall document employee name, travel dates, destination,
business purpose, and detail business costs such as tolls, parking, mileage and meals.
Al receipts and substantive documentation must be attached to the travel
reimbursement form.

Submitted travel reimbursement forms shall be reviewed by the Finance Associate for:
(a) accuracy of computations; (b) completeness of required receipts; and (c) adherence
to established guidelines. Inaccurate or incomplete information shall be discussed with
the submitting staff member, and any necessary additional information shall be
requested by and provided to the Finance Associate prior to reimbursement. Staff shall
be compensated within 20 business days of submission of a complete and accurate
reimbursement form to the DO.

XVI. AUDITS; FINANCIAL REGULATORY FORMS

Policy: Independent audits of the financial statements shall be conducted annually by a
Pennsylvania Certified Public Accountant selected by the Board of Trustees. Annual
financial audits will be conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards.

Procedure: Appropriate financial forms and reports shall be filed with the charter entity,
federal government and appropriate state agencies. Upon completion, audits shall be
reviewed by the Business Manager and CEO and submitted to the Board of Trustees for
review. All audits shall include a management letter.

XVIil. INSURANCE

Policy: The charter school shall maintain appropriate insurance coverage.

Procedure: At a minimum, the following insurance shall be maintained: (a) Commercial
Package (including property and liability); (b) Directors and Officers Liability; {(c)
Disability; and (d) Workers Compensation. The charter school also shall contribute to
the state Unemployment Insurance Fund in accordance with applicable law.



XVill. FEES SCHEDULE
Policy: The charter school does not charge fees for surveys, workshops, consultation,
or publications, and thus does not maintain a schedule of fees.

XIX. PERSONNEL LEAVE

Policy: The charter school shall carry accrued vacation leave on financial statements
as a liability, in accordance with personnel policy.

Procedure: Employees use of accrued leave shall requested of the Personnel Officer in
accordance with established personnel policy. Personnel records, including accounting
of accrued leave, are maintained by the Personnel Officer.

XX. CONTRACTS

Policy: The execution of contracts and grants shall be within the scope of the charter
school's mission, goals, and annual plans.

Procedure; The charter school may enter into contracts for such things as professional
services or rentals or to perform a function with the scope of the charter school's
mission, goals and annual plans. All contractual agreements shall be in writing, and
signed and dated by the CEO. All contracts of the charter school must be approved by
the Board of Trustees.

XXI. INVESTMENT POLICIES

Policy: The charter school's funds shall be invested in a money market funds and
certificates of deposit.

Procedure: The Financial Committee of the Board shall identify excess funds available
for investment, and approve the transfer of such funds to be made by the Business
Manager.

XXIl. BORROWING FUNDS

Policy: All borrowing of funds, and the establishment or increase of all credit lines must
be approved by the Board of Trustees.

Procedure: Based on annual audits, financial statements, and cash flow projections,
the CEO may establish credit lines and borrowing limits as directed by the Board of
Trustees.

Borrowed funds will be repaid with appropriate, measurable and identifiable revenues in
accordance with GAAP. The Business Manager shall alert the Board of Trustees if lines
of credit or borrowing limits ever are not adequate to meet the needs of the
organization. The Board of Trustees may amend the borrowing policy and credit limits.

XXIIl. BEQUESTS AND CONTRIBUTIONS

Policy: Non-restricted bequests and contributions shall be used for operations or
special projects as designated and approved by the CEO and/or the Board of Trustees
of the charter school, consistent with conditions set forth by the Board of Trustees of the
charter school. Bequests and contributions that are donor restricted shall be used for
the purpose articulated by the donor, except that in no case shall the school accept any
such bequest or contribution for which the donor restriction violates any federal or
Pennsylvania law.



Procedure: Bequests and contributions will be properly budgeted and accounted for in
accordance with GAAP for nonprofit organizations. The Business Manager will maintain
supporting schedules to document revenues and expenditures related to unrestricted,
temporarily restricted and permanently restricted net assets. Nonrestricted bequests
and contributions shall be used for operations or special projects as designated and
approved by the CEO and/or Board of Trustees of the charter school. Bequests and
contributions that are donor restricted shall be used for the purpose articulated by the
donor.

The Board of Trustees will review and approve expenditures on a monthly basis in
accordance with donor stipulations, if any.

XXIV. CREDIT CARDS

Policy: The charter school may maintain corporate credit cards which shall be issued to
staff as designated by the CEO. Such credit cards shall be used solely for charter
school business.

Procedure: All credit cards account billing shall be given immediately to the Finance
Associate.

The Finance Associate shall maintain a system of all charges reported by staff and each
charge shall be checked against the bills. Discrepancies in these receipts or billing shall
be reported by the Finance Associate to the CEOQ for investigation. The use of the credit
cards shall adhere to established personnel policy. In the event of termination of
employment, staff shall be required to return any credit cards that have been issued to
them.

XXV. PURCHASING PRACTICES

Policy: Guiding the purchase of all goods and services of the charter school will be: (a)
price;(b) quality; and (¢) dependability. Particular vendors may be chosen for any one or
any combination of these factors; however, at all times the selection of a particular
good, service, or vendor shall be with the intention of maintaining a top-guality school.
The execution of contracts and grants shall be within the scope of the charter school's
mission, goals, and annual plans.

Procedure: When a product is to be purchased that costs more than $10,000, the CEO,
shall make every reasonable effort to secure quotes and product specifications from at
least three providers of the product or a similar product. The CEO shall select from
among these offers, and document the reasons for selecting the chosen option which
shall include mention of the aforementioned factors that guide such selection.

Professional service coniracts are excluded from the requirement to seek multiple bids;
however, nothing shall preclude the CEO from seeking such muitiple bids for these
contracts. All contractual agreements shall be in writing, and signed and dated by the
CEO.



pennsylvania

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

April 23, 2013

Mrs. Christine Wiggins

CEO

Imhotep Institute CHS

6201 North 21st Street
Philadelphia, Pa 19138-2597

Dear Mrs. Wiggins;

I have been informed that the areas of noncompliance cited as a result of the special
education compliance monitoring visit conducted on February 16, 2012 have been
corrected as of April 12, 2013 by the charter school. It is with pleasure that I
commend you and your staff for efforts made in achieving resolution of the
noncompliance areas.

Please note, if you have improvement plans that were developed as a component of the
corrective action plan, they will remain open and you are required to implement the
improvement plans until the specific action for those items has been completed as
approved by your adviser.

As you know, compliance monitoring is required by Federal regulations to determine a
local education agency's compliance with Federal and State requirements for students
identified as eligible for special education. Your response to the monitoring visit and
subsequent corrective action assures the continuation of improved special education
services to Pennsylvania students,

The Department of Education appreciates your cooperation and the Bureau of Special
Education remains available to you should you desire further assistance in the future.

Sincerely,

John I, Tommasini
Director

Special Education
333 Market Street, Tth Floor | Harrisburg, PA 17126 | 717.783.6913 | F 717.783.613% | www.education.state.pa.us




Executive Summary
BSE Compliance Monitoring Review
of the

Imhotep Institute CHS

PARTI
SUMMARY OF FINDINGS

A.

Review Process

Priot to the Bureau's monitoring the week of Februaty 16, 2012, the Tinhotep Institute CHS was formally
notified of the daies the onsile review would be conducted, Notice and fnviiation {o comnient was also
provided to the Local Task Force o Right-to-Education. The charter school was informed of its
responsibilify to compile vatious reports, written policies, and procedures to document compliance with
requirements.

While ouslte, the monitoring team employed a variety of techniques o gain an in depth understanding of
the charter school's program operations. This included:

* Interviews of charter school administrative and instructional personnel

+ Teview of policies, notices, plans, outcome and performatce data, special education forms and
formats, and data reports used and compited by the charier school (Facilitated Self-Assessmeif)

v Comprefiensive case sfudies (including classroom observations, interviews of parents, students, and
general and special education teachers, and student file reviews).

General Findings

In reaching compliance determinations, the Bureau of Special Education {(BSE) monitoring teams apply
criteria contained in federal and state special education regulations, Specifically, these ave:

¢ Individuals with Disabilities Education Improvement Act of 2004
* 22 Pa. Code Chapter 711
* 34 CFR Part300

This report focuses on compliance with regulatory requirements and aiso contains descriptive
information (such as interview and survey results) intended to provide feedback to assist in program
plamning.

Overall Findings
1, FACILITATED SELF ASSESSMENT (FSA)

The teain reviewed the FSA submitted by the charter school and conducted onsite verification
activities of the information submitied in the FSA. The onsite verification activities included
review of policies, notices, procedures, and file reviews.

Executive Sumumary for Iimhotep Institute CHS
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Compliance
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Assistive Technology and Services; Hearing Aids

2

0

Positive Behavior Support Policy

1

0

Child Find (Annwal Public Notice and General
Dissemination Materials)

I

0

Confidentiality

Dispute Resolution {Due process hearing decision
implementation)

Bxclusions: Suspensions and Expulsions
(Procedural Requirements)
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Independent Education Evaluation

Least Resirictive Environment {LRT)

Provision of Extended School Year Services

Trovision of Related Service Including Psychological
Counseling
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Parent Training

Public School Enrollinent

Surrogate Parenis (Students Requiring}

Personnel Training

Intensive Interagency Approach

Summary of Academic Achievenient and Functional
Performance/Procedural Safeguard Requirements for
Graduation
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Effectlve use of Dispute Resolution
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FILE REVIEW (Student case studies)

The education records of randomly selected students participating in special education programs

were studied to determine whether the chatter school comiplied with essential requirements.

The status of compliance of the Imhotep Institute CHS is as follows:
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PART II
CORRECTIVE ACTION PROCESS

Sections of the In Out of

FILE REVIEW Compliance | Complisnce| NA
Essential Student Documents Are Present and Wore 85 2 73
Prepared Within Timelines

Bvaluation/Reevaluation; Process and Content 286 10 484
Individualized Bducation Program: Process and Content 509 20 271
Procedural Safeguards: Process and Content 115 2 3
TOTALS 995 34 831

TEACHER AND PARENT INTERVIEWS

Tnterviews were conducted with parents and teachers of students selected by the BSE for the
sample group. The goal is to determine if the charter school involves parents and professionals
in required processes (e.g., evaluation, IEP development), whether programs and services are
being provided, and whether the charter school provides training to enhance knowledge. Parent
and teacher satisfaction with the special education program is also generally assessed.

#Yes #No  |# of Other
Responses { Responses | Responses
Program Implementation: General Bd Teacher Inferviews 248 7 83
Program Fmplementation: Special Ed ‘Teacher Tnterviews 322 4 122
Prograon Emplementation: Parent Interviews 199 21 3]
TOTALS 769 32 296
STUDENT INTERVIEWS

Results of the student interviews are reflected on the Charter School Corrective Action
Verification/Compliance and Improvement Planning dosument.

CLASSROOM OBSERVATIONS

Observations are conducied in classrooms of students selected by the BSE for the sample group,

#Yes #No {#of Other
Respouses | Responses | Responses

Classreom Observations 36 0 i3

EDUCATIONAL BENEFIT REVIEW

In Out of
Compliance | Contpliance

Educational Benefit Review X

PART I of this report presented an overalt summary of findings, In the Appendix to the report, we have
provided the dotatled findings for each of the criteria of the complinnce monitoring document, i.e, FSA, File
Reviews, Interviews and Classroom Observations, The detailed report of findings includes:
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Criteria Number

Statements of all requirements

Whether each requirement was met, not met, not applicable or other

Stateinents of corrective action requived for those criteria not met. Criferla not et that require correciive
action by the cliarter school are gray-shaded,

Charter schools are advised that Iy nccordance with requirements of the Individuals with Disabilities

Education Act, all noncomplignee must be corrected s soon as possible but in no case later than one year
Jrom the dute of the moniforing report, The BSE is required to verify timely correction of noncompliance,

and must report annually fo the federal government and the public on this requirement,

Upon eceipt of this report, the charter school sheuld review the corrective action and inprovement planning
roquired, The report is formatted so that findings from all components of the monitoring are consolidated by
topical area. The report lists the finding, and whether corrective action is required, For certain types of
findings, corrective action will be prescribed, and will not vary from chavier school to charter school. For
example, if the finding is that the charter school lacks a specific required policy, it is reasonable to have the
BSE prescribe a standardized romedy and timeline for correcting this deficiency. However, the majority of
corrective action activitles will be Individually designed by the charter schoal based on their own unique
ciroumstances and goals. Cousistent with IDEA's general supervision requiremenis for states, BSE must
approve all proposed corrective action.

With respect to the File Review, because students were selected at random, findings are generalized to the
entire population of students with disabilities. During the corrective action review, the BSE Advisor will
select students af random and will review updated data, i.e. records that were developed subsequent to the
monitoring. Consequently, the charter school should approach corrective action on a systemic basis, As
indicated above, the charter school is alse required to correct student specific noncompliance identifled during
monitoring under the ICAP process, If there has been a finding of noncompliance in the Hducational Benefit
Review component, the individual students are identified to the charter school and, because of the significance
of the provision of a free appropriate public education (FAPE) to these students; the charter school must take
immediate corrective action,

The BSE Adviser will schedule an onsite visit with the charter school within 60 days following issuance of
the monitoring repott. The BSE Adviser, charter school, and PaTTAN staff will develop a Charter School
Cortrective Action Verification/Compliance and Tmprovement Plan, PaTTAN and U staff is available to
assist the charter school. .

Upon conclusion of the corrective action process, the charter school will be notified of its successful
completion of the monitoring process.
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This form is designed to serve both as a planning tool and as verification of completion of corrective action.

Charter School: Imhgotep Institute CHS

Charter School Corrective Action Verification/Compliance and Improvement Plan - Burean of Special Education

Chief Executive Officer:

Mrs. Christine Wigging

Special Education Director/Coordinator:

BSE Special Education Adviser:

Jury Seeoers

‘Walter Howard

Date of Report:  April 23, 2013

Date Final Report Sent to LEA:  April 12, 2012

First Visit Date: May 03, 2012

Not
Obs

Y _ Citation
# ' . .

Date Finat Report Sent to LEA

Required Corrective Action
Evidence of Change

Reminder: The timelines for corrective action of all non-compliance iterms may not exceed ONE YEAR from the

Timelines and Closed
Resources Date

Topical Area 1: Policies, Practices, and Procedures

Y

1.

FSA-ASSISTIVE TECHNOLOGY AND
SERVICES

Standard: The Local Education Agency (LEA)
observed the requirement that the provision of assistive
technology is reflected in the student’s IEP

1A.

FSA-HEARING AIDS

Standard: Each public agency shall ensure that the
hearing aids worn in school by children with hearing
impairments, including deafness, are functioning
properly. Each public agency must ensure that the
external components of surgically implanted medical
devices are functioning properly

FSA-POSITIVE BEHAVIOR SUPPORT

Standard: LEA complies with the positive behavior
support policy requirements.

FSA-CHILD FIND

Standard: LEA demonstrates compliance with annual
public notice requirerments.

Imhotep Institute CHS




Citation

Required Corrective Action Timelines and Closed
Evidenee of Change Resources Date

FSA-CONFIDENTIALITY

Standard The LEA is in compliance with
confidentiality requirernents.

FSA-DISPUTE RESOLUTION (DUE PROCESS
HEARING DECISION IMPLEMENTATION)

Standard: The LEA uses dispute resolution processes
for program improvement.

FSA-PROCEDURAL REQUIREMENTS FOR
SUSPENSION

Standard: The LEA adheres to procedural
requirements in suspending students with disabilities.

10,

FSA-INDEPENDENT EDUCATIONAL
EVALUATION

Standard: The LEA documents a procedure for
responding to requests made by parents for an
independent educational evaluation at public expense.

11A

FSA-LEAST RESTRICTIVE ENVIRONMENT

Standard: The LEA’s continuum of special education
services supports the avaitability of LRE under 34 CFR
Part 300.

12.

FSA-EXTENDED SCHOOL YEAR SERVICES

FSA-RELATED SERVICE INCLUDING
PSYCHOLOGICAL COUNSELING

15.

FSA-PARENT TRAINING

Standard: Parent opportunities for training ard
information sharing address the special knowledge,
skills and abilities needed to serve the unique needs of
children with disabilities.

INTERVIEW RESULTS (Parent)

P62

My school district/charter school makes available
training related to the needs of students with
disabilities that I could attend,

Imhotep Institute CHS




Y | N NADK|Noti % i Citation Required Corrective Action Timelines and Closed
Obs # s " Evidence of Change Resources Date
6 Always
0 Sometimes
0 Rarely
0 Never
3 Don't Know
0 Does not Apply
P 63. My school district/charter school invites parents to
trainings that are available to school staff regarding
research based best practices, supplementary aids and
services, differentiating instruction and modifying the
general education curriculurn,
6 Always
0 Sometimes
0 Rarely
0 Never
3 Don't Know
0 Does not Apply

Y 18. FSA-SURROGATE PARENTS (STUDENTS
REQUIRING)

Standard: The LEA identifies eligible students in need
of surrogate parents and recruits, selects, trains, and
assigns in a timely manner.

Y 19. FSA-PERSONNEL TRAINING
Standard: In-service training appropriately and
adequately prepares and trains personnel to address the
special knowledge, skills, and abilities to serve the
unique needs of children with disabilities, including
those with low incidence disabilities, when applicable.

INTERVIEW RESULTS (General & Specizl Education
Teacher)

1071 0 0 GE 88. Do you receive training regarding how to differentiate
instruction and modify the curriculum in your
¢lassroom?

10 0 0 GE 89. Do vou receive training regarding how to provide
positive behavior supports for students with negative
behaviors?

0] 0 0 GE 90, If you have a student with 2 behavioral need, have you
been trained kiow to deescalate negative and aggressive
student behavior?

8 2 0 GE %1. Do you participate in determining the kinds of training

and technical assistance needed to support students
with TEPs in regular education classrooms?

3

Imhotep Institute CHS




S Citation

- -Required Corrective Action

Evidence of Change

Timelines and Closed
: Resources Date

Y | N |Nafpx|Not| % | -
. _Jobs| ¥ |-
g o] 2

GE 94.

If a student has AT included in his/her current IEP,
have you received training in AT, and accessing AT
resources?

100 0

SE 124.

Do you collaborate with general education teachers and
administrators to recommend training needs for
personnel within the LEA?

20.

FSA-INTENSIVE INTERAGENCY APPROACH

Standard: The LEA identifies, reports, and provides
for the provision of Free Appropriate Public Education
(FAPE) for all students with disabilities including those
students needing intensive interagency approaches.

FSA-SUMMARY OF ACADEMIC AND
FUNCTIONAL PERFORMANCE/PROCEDURAL
SAFEGUARD REQUIREMENTS FOR
GRADUATION

Standard: The LEA provides Summary of Academic
Achievement and Functional Performance for children
whose eligibility terminates due to graduation or aging
out. The LEA provides required prior written notice for
graduation

Topical Area 2: Delivery of Service

17.

FSA-PUBLIC SCHOOL ENROLLMENT

Standard: The LEA’s percentage of children with
disabilities served in special education is comparable to
state data.

17B.

FSA-PUBLIC SCHOOL ENROLLMENT

Standard: Timely provision of FAPE for students who
transfer public agencies within state, and from another
state.

22,

FSA-DISPROPORTIONATE REPRESENTATION
THAT IS THE RESULT OF INAPPROFRIATE
IDENTIFICATION

Standard: LEA does not demonstrate disproportionate
representation of racial/ethnic groups receiving special
education or by disability group.
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Required Corrective Action

Evidence of Change

Timelines and Closed
Resottrees Date

23. FSA-EDUCATIONAL BENEFIT REVIEW
Standard: The IEP meets procedural compliance and

is reasonably caleulated to enable the child to advance
appropriately toward attaining their annual goals.

CLASSROOM OBSERVATIONS

COL Is the instruction provided to the student individualized
as required by his/her IEP?

Ccoz. Is the instruction being provided in accordance with the
goals in the student’s IEP?

CO3. If assistive technology is included in the student’s TEP
and required for the activity observed, is it being used?

CO 4, Ifthe student is in a regular education setting, is he/she
participating in the lesson taught by the general
education teacher or a co-teacher?

CO 3. If the student is in a regular education setting, is the
student appropriately integrated (physically) in the
class?

CO6. If the student’s TEP contains supplementary aids and/or
services, are they being delivered in the ¢lassroom
setting as required?

Co7. Does this setting coincide with the student’s IEP with
regard to the extent to which the student is educated
with non-disabled peers?

INTERVIEW RESULTS (Parent, General & Special
Education Teacher)

P 55. My child does classroom work in a regular classroom
with students without disabilities.
3 Always
6 Sometimes
0 Rarely
0 Never
0 Don't Know
0 Does not Apply
P 36, My child participates or has the opportunity to

participate in school activities other than classroom
work, ineluding extra~-curricular activities, with
students without disabilities,
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Y | N [NAIDK|Not| % - Citation: Required Corrective Action Timclines and Closed

9 Always

0 Sometimes

0 Rarely

0 Never

0 Don't Know

0 Does not Apply

P 56a. My child goes on field trips, attends school fimctions

and/or participates in extracurricular activities with
their same age/grade peers who are non-disabled.

9 Always

] Sometimes

0 Rarely

0 Never

0 Don't Know

0 Dogs not Apply

P 56b. There are routing opportunities for my child to interact

with peers who are non-disabled that are planned
and/or facilitated by school personnel,

8 Always

0 Sometimes

0 Rarely

0 Never

1 Don't Know

0 Does not Apply

10 GE 70, Are you familiar with the content of this student's
current IEP, including accommodations, supplementary
aids and services, and annual goals?

10 GE 71. Do you adapt and modify the general education
curriculum based on the student’s current IEP?

10 GE 72, Do you have support from special education personnel
to help you modify curriculum, instruction and
assessment as required in the student’s current TER?

10 GE 73. Are you and the special education personnel working
collaboratively to implement this student’s program?

9 GE 78. Are dll the supplementary aids and services necessary
for the student’s progress in the general education class
included in his/her current IEP?

10 GE 80. Is the student making progress within the general
education curriculum?

10 GE 80a,  In your opinion, is this student benefiting from
participation in your general education classroom?

0 GE 80b.  If yes, in what ways?
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Citation -

Removes stigma of being pulled for modified
instruction. Also has improved socialization,
organization and is more outgoing.

Improved reading.

Able to remain with peers,

Tmproved suceess, academios,

Socially it's helping the student work through issues;
starting to grasp materials & is really getting involved in
group activity.

Increased confidence level, being there doing the same
work as peers with supports.

Group work motivates the student to be expressive &
apply case to real world,

Socialization, test taldng skills, regular academics,
Socialization, test taking skills, regular academics,
programs & development.

Accelerated academics, socialization.

Required Corrective Action : Timelines and Closed
Evidence of Change Resources Date

o} 0 10 GE 80c,  Ifno, what does this student need that he/she is not
receiving in your class?

] 0 0 GE 85, Do you have sufficient time t¢ collaborate with the
special education teacher in order to meet this student’s
needs?

1] 0 0 GE 852 Have you received sufficient training, technical
assistance and other support to teach this student?

0| 0 10 GE 85b,  Ifno, what training or support would assist you?

0] 0 0 GE 93. Do special education personnel work directly with you
to help you reduce negative student behaviors?

0] 0 0 SE 95. Is this student participating in the general education
class and curriculum with students without disabilities
to the maximum extent possible?

10 0 0 SE95a.  Inthe most recent IEP meeting for this student, did you
discuss whether he/she could be educated in a general
education classroom for the entire school day?

& 4 0 SE95b.  Inthe most recent IEP meeting, did the TEP team
recommend removal of this student from the general
education classroom for any part of the school day?

] 0 4 SE95c.  Ifyes, what reasons were discussed for recommending

removal?
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: _ | Obs| #

.=, "o Citation .

Required Corrective Action -
Evidenee of Change

Timelines and Closed
Resources ) Date |

Extra support,
Based on reading & math levels.
Extra support,

Based on reading & muath levels.
To get extra suppott.

To get extra support.

SE 95d.

If ves, how was the amount of time that this student
would be removed from the general education
classroom decided?

Smaller setting to meet the student's needs.

Based on assessments, schedules & trial; a tutor is also

available.

To be in a smaller setting,.

Based on assessments, general ed schedule & trial,

Tutors are also available.

To meet the student's needs.

To meet student's needs.

10

SE 95e.

I the most recent IEP meeting, did the TEP team
discuss whether this student could be educated
satisfactorily in a general education classroom for the
entire school day with supplementary aids and
services?

10

SE 96.

Has the student been given the opportunity to
participate in non-academic and extracurricular
activities with children without disabilitics?

10

SE 97,

Have necessary supports been offered and/or provided
to enable that participation?

e

SE 99.

Are you and related services personnel working
together toward meeting the measurable annual goals
for this student?

10

SE 100.

Are you and general education personnel working
together toward meeting the measurable annual goals
for this student?

10

SE 115,

Did the IEP team have available information regarding
use of the Supplementary Aids and Services ToolKit?

10

SE 125,

Do you collaborate with general education teachers to
identify training needs related to the provision of
supplementary aids and services to students with IEPs
in the general education classroom?

Topical Area 3: Performance Indicators

Imhotep Institute CHS




Y | N |NA|DK|Not| % Citation Required Corrective Action i TFimelines and Closed .
Obs # e B , " . Evidence of Change Resources Date
Y SA. FSA-EFFECTIVE USE OF DISPUTE )
RESOLUTION
Standard: The LEA uses dispute resolution processes
for program improvement.
Y 6. FSA-GRADUATION RATES (SPP)
Standard: The graduation rate of the LEA’s students
with disabilities is comparable to the state graduation
rate.
Y 7. FSA-DROPOUT RATES (SPP)
Standard: The dropout rate of the LEA’s students with
disabilities is comparable to the state dropout rate,
Y A FSA-SUSPENSION RATES
Standard: The LEA’s rate of suspensions and
expulsions of students with disabilities is comparable
to the rate of other LEASs in the state.
Y 11, FSA-LEAST RESTRICTIVE ENVIRONMENT
(SPP)
Standard: Students with disabilities are provided for
in the least restrictive environment
Y 16. FSA-PARTICIPATION IN PSSA AND PASA
{SPP)
Standard: The LEA's population of students who
participate in state assessment is comparable with the
state data,
Y 16A. FSA-DISTRICT-WIDE ASSESSMENT
Topical Area 4: Evaluation and Reevaluation Process
and Content
CONSENT AND WAIVER REQUIREMENTS FOR
EVALUATION/REEVALUATION
PERMISSION TO EVALUATE (File Reviews)
0 10 FR 153, PTE-Consent Fomm is present in the student file
0 10 FR154. Demographic data
0 10 FR 155. Reason(s) for referral for evaluation
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Y | N{NA|DK|Not| % . .:Citation - Required Correetive Action Timelines and Closed
- Obs # R R Evidence of Change Resources Date
0 0 10 FR 156.  Proposed types of tests and assessments
0 0 10 FR157.  Contact person’s name and contact information
0 0 10 FR 158.  Parent signature or documentation of reasonable efforts

to obtain consent
0F 0 10 FR 159,  Parent has selected a consent option
PERMISSION TO REEVALUATE (File Reviews)
8190 2 FR 194. PTRE-Consent Form is present in the student file
g1 0 2 FR 195. Demographic data
g 0 2 FR 196.  Reason for resvaluation
g | ¢ 2 FR197. Types of assessment tools, tests and procedures to be
used
810 2 FR 198.  Contact person’s name and contact information
810 2 FR 199.  Parent has selected a consent option
8 0 2 FR200.  Parent signature or documentation of reasonable efforts
to obtain consent
IAGREEMENT TO WAIVE REEVALUATION (File Reviews)
1 0 9 FR201.  Agreement to Waive Reevaluation is present in the
student file
1 0 9 FR202. Waiver was completed within required timelines (3
years (2 years for any MR student or any student
placed in an Approved Private School) from date of
ER, prior RR, or Agreement to Waive RR)
1 0 9 FR203. Reason regvaluation is not necessary at this time is
in¢luded
1 0 9 FR204.  Contact person’s name and contact information
1 0 9 FR205.  Parent has selected a consent option
1 0 g FR 206.  Parent signature
EVALUATION REPORT (ANITIAL) (File Reviews)
0 0 10 FR 160.  ER is present in the student file

10
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Y | NINA|DK|Net{ % | . e .. Citation " Required Corrective Action Timelines and Closed
. Obs # e . R S ) : _.Evidence of Change - Resources ) Date

0 0 10 FR 161.  Evaluation was completed within timelines

0 0 10 FR162. A copy of the ER was disseminated to parents af [east
10 school days prior to meeting of the IEP team (unless
this requirement is waived by parent in writing)

¢ 0 10 FR 163. Demographic data

¢cl] 0 10 FR 164.  Date report was provided to parent

¢l 0 10 FR 165.  Reason(s) for referral

0 0 10 FR 166, Reason(s) for referral reflect the reason(s) listed on the
PTE-~Consent Form

ol 0 10 FR 167.  Evaluations and information provided by the parents of
the student (or documentation of LEA's attempts to
obtain parent input)

0 0 10 FR 168.  Teacher observations and observations by related
service providers, when appropriate

0 0 10 FR16%.  Recommendations by teachers

o 0 10 FR170.  The student’s physical condition {including health,
vision, hearing); social or cultural background; and
adaptive behavior relevant to the student’s suspected
disability and potential need for special education

0 0 10 FR171.  Assessments, mcluding when appropriate, current
classroom based assessments, aptitude and
achievement tests; local and/or state assessments;
behavioral assessments; vocational technical education
assessment results; interests, preferences, aptitudes (for
secondary transition); etc.

0 0 10 FR172.  Ifan assessment is not conducted under standard
conditions, description of the extent to which it varied
from standard cenditions (including if the assessment
was given in the student’s native language or other
mode of communication}

] 0 10 FR 175.  Lack of appropriate instruction in reading

0 0 10 FR 174,  Lack of appropriate instruction in math

01 0 10 FR175.  Limited English proficiency

11
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Y | N [NA|DK|Not| % - Citation _ . Required Corrective Action Timelincsand © | Closed
o Obs| # - T T e - Evidenee of Change Resources Date -

0 0 10 FR 176.  Present levels of academic achievement

0 ¢ 10 FR177.  Present levels of functional performance

¢ o} 10 FR 178. Behavioral information

0 0 10 FR 179.  Conclusions

0 0 10 FR 180.  Disability Category

0 0 10 FR 181. Recommendations for consideration by the I[EP team

0| 0 10 FR 182,  Evaluation Team Participants documented

0 0 10 FR183.  For students evaluated for SLD documentation of
Agree/Disagree

0 0 10 FR 184. Documentation that the student does not achieve
adequately for age, etc.

0 0 10 FR 185. Indication of process{es) used to determine eligibility

0 0 10 FR 186.  Instructional strategics used and student-centered data
collected

0 0 10 FR 187.  Educationally relevant medical findings, if any

0 0 10 FR 188,  Effects of the student’s environment, culture, or
economic background

0 0 10 FR 189.  Data demonstrating that regular education instruction
was delivered by qualified personnel, including the
ESL program, if applicable

0 0 10 FR190. Databased documentation of repeated assessments of
achievement at reasonable intervals, which was
provided to parents

o0l 0 10 FR 191.  Observation in the student’s learning environment

0 0 10 FR 192,  Other data if needed

0 0 10 FR 193,  Statement for all ¢ items indicated to support
conclusions of the evaluation team

REEVALUATION REPORT (File Reviews)
91 0 1 FR207. RRispresent in the student file
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FR 208.

e
#

Sl e Cltation L

Reevaluation was completed within timelines (either 60

calendar days from the date of LEA receipt of signed
PTRE-Consent Form, excluding summer break, or
within 3 years (2 vears for any MR student or any
student placed in an Approved Private School) of date
of ER, prior RR, or Agreement to Waive RR)

Required ‘Corrective Action -

- Evidenée of Change

Timétinesand | Closed . -
" Resources .| - Date:

copy.oft disse WS

9 0 1 FR210. Demographic data

9 G 1 FR211.  Date IEP team reviewed existing evaluation data

g ¢ 1 FR212.  Physical condition, social, or cultural background and
adaptive behavior relevant to the student’s need for
special education

g1 0 1 FR213. Evaluations and information provided by the parent (or
documentation of LEA’s attempts to obtain parent
input)

9 ¢ 1 FR214.  Aptitude and achievement tests

8 0 2 FR216.  Qbservations by teacher(s) and related service
provider(s) when appropriate

8 0 2 FR 217,  Teacher recommendations

8 0 2 FR218.  Lack of appropriate instruction in reading

8 0 2 FR 219.  Lack of appropriate instruction in math

Tmbotep Institute CHS
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Required Corrective Action

. -Evidence of Change - -

Timelines and Closed
Resources Date .

Y | NINA|DK]|Not| %
. : Obs #
g 0 2

FR220.  Limited English proficiency

FR221.

Conclusion regarding need for additional data is
indicated

9 0 1 FR 223.  Determination whether the child has a disability and
requires special education

9 0 1 FR224.  Disability category(ics)

9 0 1 FR 225, Summary of findings includes student’s educational
strengths and needs

9 0 1 FR 226,  Summary of findings includes present levels of
academic achievement and related developmental
needs, including transition needs as appropriate

9 0 1 FR 227,  Summary of findings includes recommendations for
consideration by the IEP team regarding additions or
modifications to the student’s programs

8190 2 FR228.  Interpretation of additional data

71 90 3 FR229. Documentation that the student does not achieve
adequately for age, etc,

7 0 3 FR230.  Indication of process(es) used to determine eligibility

FR 232,

Educationally relevant medical findings, if any

FR 235,

Effects of the student’s environment, culture, or
economic background

14
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: Sl Citation - Required Correetive Action Timelines and Closed -
s I : SQobs| o o# ] : e e . T Evideénee of Change R Resources - Date -
0 3 FR 234, Data demonstrating that regular education instruction

was delivered by qualified personnel, including the
ESL program, if applicable

71 0 3 FR235. Data based documentation of repeated assessments of
achievernent at reasonable intervals, which was
provided to parents

7 0 3 FR 236.  Observation in the student’s learning environment

5 0 5 FR237.  Other data if needed

INTERVIEW RESULTS (Parent & Special Education
[Teacher)
9 0 0 0 P24, Have you been asked to provide information for your
child's evaluation/reevaluation?
9 0 0 0 P25, Were you given the opportunity to provide this
information in: writing or in another way that worked
for you?

15 Imhotep Institute CHS
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“ii Citation

5 "Required Corrective Action

Evidence of Change

Timclines and Closed
Resources Date -

¢{0 0 0

Was the information you provided to the school for

your child’s evaluation considered in your child’s
Evaluation Report?

410 5 0 P 27. If your child was not reevaluated when required (every
2 years for children with mental retardation, or any
child placed in an Approved Private School, and every
3 years for children with other disabilities) did you
agree in writing to waive the reevaluation?

01 6 2 1 P 51. Have you requested an Independent Educational
Evaluation (IEE} for your child to be paid for by the
school?

0 0 7 2 P 52, If you have obtained an IEE for your child, were the
results of that evaluation considered by the team?

0 ] 7 2 P 53. Were the results of the TEE included in the school’s
Evaluation Report for your c¢hild?

3 0 7 SE119.  Ifthis student is not making progress, has he/she been
reevaluated and/or has the IEP been reviewed?

Topical Area 5: IEP Process and Content
INVITATION TO PARTICIPATE IN IEP TEAM OR
(OTHER MEETING (File Reviews)

10} 0 0 FR 241. Invitation is present in the student file

1] o0 0 FR 242,  Invitation to Participate in the IEP Meeting was issued
prior to the meeting (or documentation that parent
signed waiver to move directly to [EP meeting)

10} 0 0 FR 243. Demographic data

0] 0 0 FR 244.  Purpose(s) of the meeting

10] 0 0 FR245.  Transition planning and services — Invitation to parents

is checked (age 14, younger if determined appropriate)
Siti

101 0 0

FR 247.

Transition planning and services — Invitation to student
is checked (age 14, or younger if determined
appropriate)

16

Imhotep Institute CHS




- - Citation” - _Required Corrective Action Timelines and Closed
' ‘77 Evidence of Change Resources Date
10 0 FR249. Date/time/location of meeting
10 0 FR250.  Parent response, or documentation of parent attendance
at the meeting, or documentation of multiple efforts to
encourage participation
PARENT CONSENT TO EXCUSE MEMEERS FROM
IATTENDING IEP TEAM MEETING (File Reviews)
0 10 FR251.  Parent Consent to Excuse Members from Attending the
IEP Team Meeting is present in the student file
0 10 FR 252. Demographic data
0 10 FR253.  Form designates JEP team member(s) for whom
attendance is not necessary
0 10 FR254. Form designates which members will submit written
input prior to the meeting
¢ 10 FR 255,  Parent written consent is documented
FR256. The team members excused:
0 a. General Education Teacher
0 b. Special Education Teacher
0 ¢. Local Education Agency Representative
TEP CONTENT (File Reviews)
10 ] FR 257.  IEP is present in the student file
10 0 FR 258.  TEP was completed within timelines
10 0 FR 259, Demographic data
10 0 FR 260, IEP implementation date
10 0 FR261.  Anticipated duration of services and programs

17
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- Required Corrective Action Timelines and
Evidence of Change Resources

120

DOCUMENTATION OF IEP TEAM PARTICIPATION (File

Reviews)
101 0 0 FR 263.  Parents
101 0 0 FR264.  Student
10{ 0 0 FR 265,  General Education Teacher
Wi o 0 FR 266.  Special Education Teacher
10} 0 0 FR 267. Local Education Agency Representative
1 0 9 FR268.  Career/Technical Education (CTE) Representative
0 0 10 FR 265,  CTE Representative was in attendance if student was
attending CTE
0 0 10 FR270. Commumity Agency Representative
0 0 10 FR271.  Teacher of the Gifted
0 0 10 FR 272,  Written input provided by [EP team member(s)

excused from participating in the IEP meeting if the

invitation stated they were to provide written: input

10] 0 0 FR273.  Copy of Procedural Safeguards Notice was given to
parent during the school year

SPECIAL CONSIDERATIONS (File Reviews)

010 10 FR274.  Ifthe student is blind or visually impaired, a

description of the instruction in Braille and the use of

Braille, unless the [EP team determines that such

instruction is not appropriate

0 0 10 FR 275.  Ifthe student is deaf or hard of hearing, a
communication plan

0 0 10 FR 276,  If the student has communication needs, needs must be
addressed in the JEP
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o+ Citation - Required Corrective Action - Timelines and Closed
Sl __ Evidence of Change _ Resources Date

FR 277,  Ifthe student requires assistive technology devices
and/or services, needs must be addressed in the [EP

0 10 FR278.  Ifthe student has limited English proficiency, the IEP
teamn must consider English as Second Language for
provision of FAPE

2 8 FR 279.  If the student has behaviors that impede his/her
learning or that of others, the IEP includes a Positive
Behavior Support Plan based on a finctional
assessment of behavior utilizing positive behavior
techniques

0 10 FR 280.  Ifthe student has other special considerations, these are
addressed in the IEP

PRESENT LEVELS OF ACADEMIC ACHIEVEMENT AND
FUNCTIONAL PERFORMANCE (File Reviews)

10 0 FR281.,  Student’s present levels of academic achievement

9 1 FR282.  Student’s present levels of functional performance

10 0 FR283.  Present levels related to current postsecondary
transition goals (if student is 14, or younger if
determined by [EP team)

10 0 FR 284,  Parental concemns for enhancing the education of the
student (if provided by parent to the LEA)

10 0 FR 285. How the student’s disability affects involvernent and
progress in the general education curriculum

10 0 FR286.  Strengths

10 0 FR287.  Academic, developmental, and functional needs related
to student’s disability

TRANSITION SERVICES (File Reviews)
0 10 FR 288.  Ifthe student’s [EP required participation in CTE

program, was the CIP code completed

19
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Obs N B : ' : idérice of Change Resources Date

10

FR 290.  An appropriate measurable postsecondary goal or goals
that covers education or training, employment, and, as
needed, independent living

1
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NA|DK|Not| % _ © Wm0 7 Citation “ ! 7l Required Corrective Action - Timelines and
Obs # i _Evidence of Change Resources

10| o 0 FR 282a  Transition services include courses of study that will
reasonably enable the student to meet his‘her
postsecondary goal(s)

9 0 1 FR 262b. Transition services in the IEP that will reasonably
enable the student to meet his/her postsecondary
goai(s)

[PARTICIPATION IN STATE AND LOCAL ASSESSMENTS
(File Review)

3 0 7 FR 263.  Documentation of IEP team decision regarding
participation in statewide assessments (PSSA or
PASA)

3 0 7 FR 284,  Ifthe student will participate in the PSSA,

documentation of IEP team decision regarding
participation with or without accommodations
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Obs| # T . . ) __ Evidence of Change . Resources Date

1 0 9 FR 295,  If the student will participate in the PASA, an

explanation of why the student cannot participate in the
PSSA

0 0 10 FR 296,  Ifthe student will participate in the PASA, explanation
of why PASA is appropriate

0 0 10 FR297.  Ithe student will participate in the PASA, how
student’s performance will be documented (videotape
or written narrative)

8 o 2 FR298. Indication of IEP team decision regarding participation
in Iocal assessments (local or alternate local)

JLN B 0 FR 299.  Ifthe student will participate in local assessments,

indication of TEP teamn decision regarding participation
with or without accommodations

1 0 9 FR 300, Ifthe IEP indicates the student will participate in an
alternate local assessment, explanation of why the
student cannot participate in the regular assessment

0 0 10 FR 301.  Ifthe student will participate in an alternate local
assessment, explanation of why the alternate
assessment is appropriate

IANNUAL GOALS AND OBJECTIVES (INCLUDING
IACADEMIC AND FUNCTIONAL GOALS) (File Reviews)

v,

30 able Anoual Go

0] 0 0 Descriptior: of how student prograss toward meeting
goals will be measured
0] 0 0 FR 304.  Description of when periodic reports on progress will
be provided to parents
101 0 ¢ FR 305. Documentation of progress reporting on Annual Goals
1 0 9 FR 306,  Short Term Objectives
SPECIAL EDUCATION/RELATED
SERVICES/SUPPLEMENTARY AIDS AND
SERVICES/PROGRAMS MODIFICATIONS (File Reviews)
il 0 ] FR307. Program Modifications and Specially-Designed
Instruction
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T e I T oUTeC UEvidence of Change . Resourees

9 0 1 FR308.  Ifthe student’s most recent Evaluation Report
contained recommendations for modifications and
accommodations, did the [EP team address those
recommendations in development of this IEP

=

0 0 10 FR310. Ifastudent attends a Career or Vocational Technical
School, evidence that the specially designed instruction
addresses the student’s needs in Career and Vocational
Technical School ‘

6 0 4 FR 311, IfRelated Services are included on the TEP, the
location, frequency, projected beginning date and
anticipated duration of services

6 0 4 FR312. TIfthe student’s most recent Evaluation Report
contained recommendations for the provision of related
services, including psychological counseling, did the
TEP team address those recommendations in
development of this IEP

101 0 0 FR313.  If Supports for school personnel are included on the
IEP, the personnel to receive support, support,
locaton, frequency, projected beginning date and
anticipated duration of services

4 0 6 FR 314,  [fthe smdent’s most recent Evaluation Report
contained recommendations for program modifications
or supports for school personnel provided for the
student, did the TEP team address those
recommendations in development of this IEP

U 10 FR 315, Support services, if the student is identified as gified
and 2lso 15 identified as a student with a disability
101 0 0 FR316. A conclusion regarding student eligibility for ESY
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'+ Required Correttive Action.- -~ .- _Timelines and Closed .
- Evidenee of C Resources - Date - .

1 0 9 FR 318. Where ESY services were deemed appropriate, annual

goals and when appropriate, short term objectives that

are to be addressed in the child's ESY program

1 0 9 FR 318, Where ESY was determined to be appropriate, ESY
service to be provided, location, frequency, projected
beginning date and anticipated duration of services

EDUCATIONAL PLACEMENT (File Reviews)

1

10 0 0 FR 322,  Type of support, by amount (itinerant, supplemental,
full-time)
0] 0 0 FR 323.  Type of special education supports, ¢.g. autistic
support, emotional support, learning support, etc.
0] 0 0 FR 324, Location of student’s program (name of LEA where the
IEP will be implemented)
il 0 0 FR 325. Lecation of student’s pregram (name of School
Building where the IEP will be implemented)
5 0 5 FR 326,  If chilé will not be attending his/her neighborhood
school, reason why not
PENNDATA REPORTING FOR EDUCATIONAL
ENVIRONMENT (File Reviews)
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... Citation

_ “‘Required Corrective Action
- Evidenee of Change

Timelines and Closed
Resources Date |

FR 327. Completed Section A or Section B

10 ¢ ]
IEP DEVELOPMENT
INTERVIEW RESULTS (Parent & General Education
[Teacher)

g 0 0 0 P 28. Were you invited to participate in your child’s most
recent [EP team meeting?

8 1 0 0 P 20. Did you participate in developing the current IEP for
your child?

8 0 0 1 P 30, Was the meeting held at a time and location that was
convenient for you?

5 0 3 1 P31 If you were unable to participate in person, did the
school offer other arrangements for you to participate
by phone or through other methods?

9 0 0 0 P 32 Was the input you provided considered in: the
development of your ¢hild’s current IEP?

i 0 0 1 P 32a. Have you received sufficient training, technical
assistance and other support to participate as an IEP
team member?

0 0 9 0 P 32b. If no, what training or support would assist you?

8 0 0 1 P 33. Were the services you requested for your child
considered by the IEP team in the development of your
child’s current [EP?

8 ] 0 1 P35 Was the current IEP developed at the [EP meeting?

6 ] 2 1 P 36. If there was a draft [EP developed prior to the [EP
meeting were you provided a copy of the draft either
before or at the meeting?

7 1 0 1 P37 Were the special education teacher, the general
education teacher and the school representative at the
TER meeting?

0 1 6 2 P38, Ifrequired IEP tearn members (special education
teacher, general education teacher, or LEA) did not
attend the meeting, did you agree in writing to them not
being there?

0 0 7 2 P39, ‘Was written input from the excused IEP team
member(s) available to you before the meeting?

7 1 P as. If you did not participate in your child's [EP mecting,
what kept you from participating?
1 g. other
Not able to at the time.
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§} 0 2

Required Corrective Action
Evidence of Change

Timelines and Closed
Resources Date

GE 74. Did you attend the most recent IEP meeting for this
student or have the opportunity to provide input?

jie]

GE 75. Did you recommend any needed supports to implement
the current IEP for this student?

[

GE 76. ‘Were those recommendations considered by the IEP
team?

10

GE 86. When 2 student with a disability is included in your
class do you have the opportunity to provide
information to the IEP team?

10

GE 87. Do you provide progress monitoring data as part of the
IEP development process?

TEP CONTENT

INTERVIEW RESULTS (Parent, General & Special
Education Teacher)

P 40. Did the IEP team consider the recommendations that
were made in your child's most recent evaluation,
including all recommendations that were made by the
evaluation team for special education, related services,
and supports for school personnel?

P 41. Did the IEP team accept or reject the evaluation team’s
recommendations for special education, related
services, and supports for school personnel for
appropriate educational reasons.

10

GE 81. Are this student’s goals based on the PA Academic
Standards or, if appropriate, alternate standards?

10

GE 82. Is the specially designed instruction in this student’s
current [EP appropriate to meet his/her educational
needs?

10

GE 83. Is the current IEP appropriate to meet this student’s
educational needs?

10

SE 98. Unless otherwise specified in the student’s IEP, is the
length of this student’s instructional day the same as
nondisabled students?

10

SE 102,  Isthe specially-designed instruction in the current [EP
appropriate to meet this student’s educational needs?

10

SE103.  Are the student’s annual goals based on the PA
Academic Standards or, if appropriate, alternate
standards?

)

SE 104.  If appropriate, are the student’s annual goals based on
fimetional performance?
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© 0 Cifation

SE 106.

If the student's most recent Evaluation Report
contained recommendations for modifications and
accommodations did the TEP team address those
recornmendations in development of the student's
current [EP and accept or reject the ER
recommendations for appropriate educational reasons?

~Required Corrective Action Timelines and

. - Evidence of Change Resources

SE 107.

If the student’s most recent Evaluation Report
contained recommendations for provision of related
services, including psychological counseling, did the
IEP team address those recommendations in
development of the student's current IEP and accept or
reject the ER recommendations for appropriate
educational reasons?

SE 108,

If the student’s most recent Evaluation Report
contained recommendations for program modifications
or supports for school personnel that will be provided
for the student, did the IEP team address those
recommendations in development of the student's
current IEP and zccept or reject the ER
recommendations for appropriate educational reasons?

[§3

SE 112.

Was 1t an TEP team decision as to whether this student
would participate in the PSSA, PASA, and other
district-wide/charter school-wide assessments?

10

SE 117.

Is this student making progress in meeting the annual
goals of his/her current IEP?

10

SE 117a.

In your opinion, is this student benefiting from
participation in the general education classroom?

SE117b.

If ves, in what ways?

27
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Y N | NA | DK | Not % . Citation Required Corrective Action Timelines and Closed
Obs| # T ‘ L Evidente of Change Resources Date
| Grades have gone up, Track team, More confident in
math.
Able to attend class with students that are stronger
academically, peer tutoring, role modeling, increases
student’s self-esteem being with non-disabled peers.
Socially - not isolated from peers. Making progress.
The student is very intelligent and demonstrates skills
that are comparzable to other students and has made
improvements in conduct by mentoring (by peers).
Many
Not isolated, feels confident, excelling.
More motivated to keep up with others; doesn't feel less
than others; is held to 2 higher standard.
Accelerated academics & socialization.
Accelerated academics, secialization,
Social exposure.

0 10 SE 117c. Ifno, what does this student need that he/she is not
receiving?

10 0 SE 118,  Is the progress on anmual goals recorded and reported
to the parent based on objective and measurable data?

IEP IMPLEMENTATION
INTERVIEW RESULTS (Parent, General & Special
Education Teacher)

7 0 P 48, Were the special education and related services in your
child’s current IEP provided within 10 school days of
the completion of the IEP?

7 0 P 49. Are the special education and related services included
in your child’s current IEP provided at no cost to you?

P 57. When all students in the school receive a report card, I
also receivs a progress report on my child's IEP goals.
8 Always
0 Sometimes
0 Rarely
0 Never
1 Don't Know
0 Does not Apply
P 58, My child’s progress is reported to me by the school in
amacner that I understand.
9 Always
o Sometimes
¢ Rarely
o Never
0 Don't Know
0 Does not Apply
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" -Required Corrective Action

Evidenee of Change

Timelines and Closed
Resources Date

]

0

1

P o4,

My child is receiving the supports and services agreed
upon at the TEP meeting,.

3]

GE 77.

If supports for school personnel are inchided in the
student’s current [EP, has the LEA provided those
supports?

GE 79.

Are the supplementary aids and services, including
program modifications and specially designed
instruction in the student’s current IEP, being
provided?

GE 79a.

In the most recent IEP meeting for this student, did you
discuss whether the student could be educated in &
general education classroom for the entire school day?

GE 79h.

In the most recent IEF meeting, did the [EP team
recommend removal of this student from the general
education classroom for any part of the school day?

GE 7%c.

If yes, what reasons were discussed for recommending
removai?
Any general ed subject in smaller setting with hi tech
TESOUrces.

GE 79d.

If yes, how was the amount of time that this student
would be removed from the general education
classroom decided?

Not sure.

GE 79e.

In the most recent IEP meeting, did the IEP team
discuss whether this student could be educated
satisfactorily in 2 general education ¢lassroom for the
entire school day with supplementary aids and
services?

GE 84.

If appropriate, are you implementing the positive
behavior support plan for this student as written in the
current IEP

10

GE 92.

If a student with an IEP is having behavioral
difficulties in yvour classroom, do you address the
behavior in your classroom rather than sending him/her
back to the special education classroom to address the
behavior issue unless indicated otherwise in the
student’s TEP?

10

SE 105,

Are the supplementary aids and services, including
program modifications and specially designed
instruction in the student’s current [EP, being
provided?

29
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1010 SE109.  Is this student receiving the type and amount of special
gducation instruction and related services specified in
his/her current TEP?

JL B 0 SE11C.  Was this student’s cwrrent JEP implemented no later
than 10 school days after its completion or no later than
the IEP implementation date?

1010 0 SE 111,  Ifsupports for school personnel are included in this
student’s current TEP, hes the LEA provided those
supports?

kS 0 2 SE113.  Ifrequired, were the testing accommodations included
in this student’s current [EP implemented?

0] 0 0 SE114.  Was the placement decision made by the IEP team
after the anmual goals, specially designed instruction,
and related services were developed?

0] 0 0 SE120.  Is this student receiving the supports and services
agreed upon i his/her current IEP, including related
services?

PROVISION OF ESY AND RELATED SERVICES
INTERVIEW RESULTS (Parent & Special Education
Teacher)

010 7 2 P42, Tfyour child's eurrent IEP includes psychological

counseling as arelated service, and he/she receives
these services, including transportation, are they
provided at no cost to you?

6 2 0 1 P43, Was your child's need for extended school year (ESY)

— which means services over the summer or during
breaks from the regular school calendar - discussed at

an [EP meeting?

6 2 0 1 P44, Did you receive an explanation of what would make
your child eligible for ESY services?

6 0 1 2 P45, Did you agree with the TEP team’s conclusion about
your child's eligibility for ESY services?

1 0 6 2 P 46, If you did not agree with the decision on ESY

eligibility, were you given a written notice
(NOREP/PWN) explaining that you could ask for a
due process hearing?

1 0 6 2 P47, If vour child was determined to be eligible for ESY
services, did the [EP team decide upon the goals and
services needed for the ESY program?

161 0 0 SE 121,  Was the consideration of ESY eligibility discussed
during this student’s current IEP meeting?
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SE 122,

If this student was determined to be ESY eligible, did
the TEP team determine what goals and services were
needed and include them in the TEP?

Required Corrective Action Timelines and Closed
) Evidence of Change Resources Date

SE 122a

At the most recent IEP meeting, did the IEP team
discuss the development of a plan to transition this
student back into the school district {or charter school
if student is enrolled in a charter school) with
supplementary aids and services?

SE 122b.

Are staff from the home district (or charter school if
student is enrolled in a charter school) involved with
the planning and implementation of this student

program?

SE 122¢.

Does this student go on field trips, attend school
functions or participate in extracurricular activities
with his/her same age/grade peers who are
non-disabled?

10

SE 1224

Does this student need supplementary aids and services
to participate in non-academic and/or extra-curricular
activities?

10

SE 122e.

If yes, are needed supplementary aids and services
being provided to this student?

10

SE 122f.

Are there routine opportumities for this student to
interact with non-disabled peers that are planned and/or
facilitated by school personnel?

SECONDARY TRANSITION (Parent & Special Education

Teacher)

P 50.

If your child is age 14 or older was he/she invited to
participate in the JEP meeting for transition planning?

b

P 50a.

In the most recent JEP meeting for your child, did you
discuss whether your child conld be educated in &
general education classroom for the entire school day?

P 5Ch,

In the most recent IEP meeting, did the TEP team
recommend removal of your child from the general
education classroom for any part of the school day?

(5]

P 50c.

If ves, what reasons were discussed for recommending
removat?
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Additional help for reading and losing focus.

Extra support,

Based on when the student needed it.

Works on things hard for the student to get or struggles
with; helps with projects. Child is easily distracted & the
extra time makes sure the student doesn't miss anything,
understands it a1l & has the time needed for testings.

To meet the student's needs.

The student's needs.

Required Corrective Action
Evidence of Change

Timelines and Closed .
Resources Date

P 50d.

If yes, how was the amount of time that your child
would be removed from the general education
classroom decided?

Not sure,

Reading needs.

Based on when the student needed it, You should ask

them or lock at the IEP,

It was decided in testing that the student should go to all

regular ¢d classes.

Level of need.

The student's scores on the PSSA.

P 50e,

In the most recent IEP meeting, did the IEP team
discuss whether your child could be educated
satisfactorily in a general education classroom for the
entire school day with supplementary aids and
services?

P 50f,

It your opinion, is your child benefiting from
participation in the general education classroom?

P 50g.

If yes, in what ways?

Boosts self-esteem.

The student is becoming more independent & tries more.
Needs push - gives confidence,

Grades are improving,

Grades

The student does great & keeps up.

Behavior, academics.

Socialization & sports.

Socialization

P 50h.

If no, what does your child nead that he/she is not
receiving in the class?

P59,

I am satisfied with the transition services developed for
my child.

32
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8 Always
0 Sometimes
0 Rarely
0 Never
1 Don't Know
0 Does not Apply
P 60. My chiid is learning skills that will lead to a high
school diploma and further education and/or
employment,
9 Always
0 Sometimes
0 Rarely
0 Never
0 Don't Know
0 Does not Apply

10 SE 115.  Were this student’s desired post school outcomes
congidered when the JEP team developed the annual
goals?

9 SE 123,  Where appropriate, does the LEA invite a
representative of a participating agency that is likely to
be responsible for providing or paying for transition
services to the IEP meeting?

Topical Area 6: NOREP/PWN

(File Reviews)
10 FR328. NOREP/PWN is present in the student file
10 FR 329. Demographic data

10

FR 331. A description of the action proposed or refused by the

LEA
10 FR 332, Anexplanation of why the LEA proposed or refused to

take the action
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: ' " Evidence of Change *

el o 0 FR 334,  Description of each evaluation procedure, assessment,
record or report used as the basis for proposed action
or action refused

710 3 FR 335.  Description of other factor(s) relevant to LEA’s
proposal or refusal

] 0 0 FR 336.  Educational placement recommended (including
amount and type)

101 0 0 FR 337, Signature of school district superintendent or charter
school CEOQ or designee

0] 0 0 FR 338.  Parent signature or documentation of reasonable efforts

to obtain consent (e.g. mailed to parents, certified madi,
visit to the parent’s home, etc.)

101 0 0 FR 339.  Parent has selected a consent option

1010 ¢ FR 340, NOREP/PWN reflects the educational placement
indicated on the student’s JEP

INTERVIEW RESULTS (Parent)

0 0 7 2 P 34 If services that you requested for your child were
rejected by the school, did you receive a written notice
(NOREP/PWN) explaining why the request was
refected?

P61 IfT don't understand my child’s educational rights, and
T inquire about them, someone from the school takes
the time to explain them to me.

Always
Sometimes
Rarely

Never

Don't Know
Does not Apply

O OO O

Topical Area 7: Additional Interview Responses

INTERVIEW RESULTS (Parent & Special Education
Teacher)
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Required Corrective Action
. Evidence of Change

- Timelines and Closed .
Resources Date

O o SO O D

P54 1 am a partmer with school personnel when we plan my
child's education program.

Always

Sometimes

Rarely

Never

Don't Know

Does not Apply

e BT S B VU & L R

P 66, Tell me anything you really like gbout your child's

special education program.

a. modifications

b. progress reports

c. staff-aide ratios

d. staff’s knowledge, {raining

e. instructional materials

. staff open to suggestions, good communication

h. foliow the IEP

1. support services

k staff’s understanding and attitnde

n. other

The support is there when needed.

The pacing & they encourage the student.

Team is really involved.

Grades are mproving,

The monthly parent meetings.

Gets attention needed.

I am comfortable with my child there.

P 67. Tell me anything you would like to change about the
program,

1. support services

n, other

Nothing

School hours, length of day.

Nothing

Putting instructional grade level in the IEP & eval report has a
negative effect on the child's self-esteem when hearing it. I wish
there were another way or that it did not have to be there.
Nothing

I would like the grades up.

- L g

P 68. The school explaing what options parents have if the
parent disagrees with a decision of the school,

a Very strongly agres
b, Strongly agree

c. Agree
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Required Corrective Action
_ Evidence of Change

Timelines and

Closed -
Date

Resources

P 69. Additional comments about your child's program.

T like Imhotep. My child strives to be a better person
because of the support the school gives.
The team is always there for my child,

+ It is wonderful,
10 0 SE101. Do youhold the required certification to implement
this student’s program?
9 1 SE 10la. Have you received sufficient training, technical
assistance and other support to teach this student?
0 10 SE 101b, Ifre, what training or support would assist you?
Topical Area 8: Student Interview Results
5 126. What kind of support are you currently receiving?
8 2. Learning Support
1 k., Don’t Know
8 ¢ S127. Is this support enough to help you be successful in your
school program?
5128, Hovw satisfied are you with your high school
educational program?
5 Very
3 Somewhat
1 A Little
0 Not at All
0 Dor't Know

5 129. ‘What do you like best about the program?

Teachers are right there to help me when T struggle,
Teachers are right there to help me when [ struggle.
Teachers care, take time & teach us. Kids run around in
other schools, There are resources t help me,

Helps me to get where I need to be.

They help me & give me advice.

The tutors help me. I can ask them anything.

Staff

Teachers care & get us where we need to be.

Improved my reading,

S 130. What do you like least about the program?

Imhotep Institute CHS




Not %
Obs #

Citation

Required Corrective Action Timelines and Closed
Evidence of Change Resources Date

Nothing
Nothing
Sometimes wish I had time to settle & get ready,
That I have to be in it.

Being put in 2 class with weirdos.

Nothing

We need more learning support teachers,
Nothing

[ar B s A =0 - -

8 131. How satisfied are you with your special education
supports/services?
Very
Somewhat
Alittle
Not at All
Don't Know

S132. What do you like best about the special education
supports/services?
Help is available when I need it.
Help is available when I need it
Willing to help,
They help me whenever I need it. My grades are better.
Being treated as equal.
2 teachers, individual attention & somestimes we work in
group.
Teachers
Teachers care.
It helped me improve my reading.

S 133. ‘What do vou like least about the special education
supports/services?
Nothing
Nothing
Sometimes brings extra attention to me in ciass.
Can't think of anything,
Nothing
Nothing
Nothing
Need more learning support.
Nothing

S 134 How much time do you spend with students who do not

have disabilities?

Imhotep Institute CHS




S Citation * Required Corrective Action Timelines and ‘Closed
; ) Py Obs| # SRR il ; Evidénce of Change Resources " Date

0 Too Much

8 Enough

0 ALittle

0 Not Enough

1 Don't Know

8 1 0 0 S 135. Do you participate in any extra-curricular activities?

5 136. If ves, which ones

Sports

Sports

Go to games at school.
Basketball, drumming
Baskektball

Trips to movies, fundraising,
Basketball

Football

5137, If no, why not

I do them somewhere else.

9 0 0 S 138, Were you invited to participate in the last TEP meeting?
Other
8 1 0 5139, Did you participate in the last IEP meeting?
Other
810 1 S 140. Do you have a post secondary transition program?
Other
8 1 0 S 141. Do you have an employment transition program?
Other
41 4 1 S 142, Do you have a community living transition program?
Other
8| o0 1 S 143. Did you assist in the development of the transition
program?
Other
7 1 1 $ 144, Is that transition plan being followed?
Other
9 0 ] 5145, Did you discuss what you would do after graduation or
finishing high school?
Other

Imhotep Institute CHS




o T Citation

~ Required Corrective Action

. Evidence of Change

Timelines and Closed -
Resources Date

Y N | NA | DK | Not %o = )
: Obs| &
0

S 146. Which of the following agencies participate in your

[EP development?
1 a Office of Vocational Rehabilitation
6 e, None
2 g Don't Know
0l 0 3 S 147, If any agency participated in your TEP did they assist
you or provide services?
Other
S 148. Comments
7 2 0 0 3 149, Do you participate in any activities in the community?

S 150 If'yes, which ones?

A sport.

Drill team & the boys and girls club.

Go shopping, to movies, [ do all that stuff when T have
some money.

Community service, hang out, go to the rec center,
movies.

Basketball

Community service.

Church

S 151, If no, why not?

I participate in school activities. [ don't have enough
time to participate cutside of school,
Participate inn school agtivities. Not enough time.

$ 152, Are there anty other agencies that could help you withirn
the community?
Some daycare workers that could help.,
No
No
No
Don't know.
None

Topical Area 9: Other Non~compliance Issues

Topical Area 10: Other Improvement Plan Issues

Imheotep Institute CHS
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ANTHONY J. KUBICEK
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT
1240 WEST CHESTER PIKE, SUITE 210
WEST CHESTER, PA 19382
TEL 610- 430-7826
FAX 610- 430-0552

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Board of Trustees
Tmhotep Institute Charter High School
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania

1 have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business type activity, the
discretely presented component unit, the major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of Imhotep
Institute Charter High School (a nonprofit organization) (the “School) as of June 30, 2013, which collectively
comprise the School’s basic financial staterents as listed in the table of contents,

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generaily accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. I conducted my audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that
I plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control, Accordingly, I express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriatencss of accounting policies used and the reasonablencss of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion,

QOpinion

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in ail material respects. The financial
position of the governmental activities, the business type activity, the discretely presented component unit, the major
fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the School as of June 30, 2013, and the respective changes in
financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended, in conformity with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles.

Other Matters

In accordance with Govermment Auditing Standards, 1 have also issued my report dated November 15, 2013 on my
consideration of the School’s internal control over financial reporting and on my tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of law, regulations, contracts, grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of my testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report
is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be
considered in assessing the results of my audit,

1
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Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion
and analysis and budgetary comparison information on page 3-6 and page 14, respectively, be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. [
have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses
to my inquities, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge I obtained during my audit of the basic financial
statements. 1 do not express and opinion or provide any assurance ofl the information because the limited
procedures do not provide me with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

My audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the Imhotep Institute Charter High School basic financial statements. The introductory section and combining and
individual nonmajor fund financial statements are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is
presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office Management and Budget Circular A-133,
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is also not a required part of the basic
financial statements of Tmhotep Institute Charter High School. The combining and individual nonmajor fund
financial statements and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards have been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in my opinion, are fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

ANTHONY J/KUBICEK, CPA

November 15, 2013




IMHOTEP INSTITUTE CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30,2013

The Board of Trustees of the Timhotep Institute Charter High School (the “School”) offers readers of the School’s
financial statements this natrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the School for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2013. I encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with the
School’s financial statements,

Financial Highlights

o Total revenues for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, were $8,685,489, representing an increase of
$1,051,605 from June 30, 2012.

o At June 30, 2013, the School reported an ending fund balance of $983,548, representing an increase of
$798,152 from June 30, 2012.

e The School’s cash balance at June 30, 2013 was $856,742 representing an increase of $565,058 from June
30, 2012,

Overview of the Financial Statements

The discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the School’s basic financial statements. The
School’s basic financial statements as presented comprise four components: (1)imanagement’s discussion and
Analysis (this section), (2)the basic financial statements, (3)the notes to the financial statements, and (4)the federal
awards sections. This report also contains supplementary information in addition fo the basic financial statements.

Government-Wide Financial Statemnents
The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the School’s
finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statentent of net assets presents information on all of the School’s assets and liabilities, with the difference
between the two reporied as net assets, Over time, increases or decreases in net assels may serve as a usetul
indicator of whether the financial position of the School is improving or detetiorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the School’s net assets changed during the most recent
fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs,
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some
items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g expenditures accrued in one fiscal year but paid
in subsequent years, and depreciation).

The government-wide financial statements report on the function of the School that is principally supported by
subsidies from school districts whose constituents attend the School. The School’s function is to provide an
alternative educational opportunity.

Fund Financial Statements

A find is a group of related accounts that are used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for
specific activities or purposes. The School, like governmental type entities, utilizes fund accounting to ensure and
demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements, The School has only two fund types, the
governmental general fund and the proprietary fund.

Notes to the Financial Statements
The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the

government-wide and fund financial statements.




IMHOTEP INSTITUTE CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2013

Overview of the Financial Statements (Continued)

Supplementary Information

The governmental fund budgetary comparison schedule is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is
prepared using a basis other than accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP)
for state reporting requirements.

Single Audit Requirements

The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the
U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments and Non-profit
Organizations.

Government-Wide Financial Analysis

Management has adopted Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) Statement 34, Basic Financial
Statements — and Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments, which requires a
comparative analysis of current and prior year balances.

2013 . 2012 .
Current Assets $1,281,131 $ 702,960
Noncurrent Assets 1,081,566 1,275,437
Total Assets $2,362,697 $1,978,397
Current Liabilities $1,128,762 $1,577,414
Long-term Liabilities 193,937 112,685
Total Liabilities $1,322,699 $1,690,099
Net Assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt $ 111,666 $ 133,877
Restricted 871,978 939,083
Unresiricted 56,354 {754,662)
Net Assets, Ending $1,039,998 $ 288298

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. In the
case of the School, assets exceeded liabilities by $1,039,998 as of June 30, 2013.




IMHOTEP INSTITUTE CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2013

The School’s revenues are predominately received from the School District of Philadelphia based on student
enrollment. For the year ended June 30, 2013, the School’s revenues ($8,685,489) exceeded its expenditures
($7,933,789) by $751,700.

2013 2012
Revenues:
Local educational agencies $6,877,134 $5,979,721
Other local sources 261,013 171,476
State sources 380,548 361,705
Federal Sources 610,121 674,335
Food services 556,073 446,647
Total revenues 8.685.489 7,633,884
Expenditures:
Instructional 2,969,279 3,359,493
Instructional staff support 203,220 159,190
Administrative support 1,199,449 1,111,581
Pupil health services 181,230 329,736
Business services 656,192 884,286
Operation and maintenance of plant services 1,356,966 1,357,532
Student fransportation 86,094 161,796
Other support services 262,511 301,529
Student activities 273,584 168,348
Food services 566,005 518,804
Interest expense 4,593 24,047
Depreciation expense 174,666 172,984
Total expenditures 7,933,789 8.549.326
Change in net assets 751,700 (915,442)
Net assets — beginning 288,298 1,203,740
Net assets — ending §1,039.998 § 288,298

Government Fund

The focus of the School’s govermmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and
balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the School’s financing requirements. In
particular, fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for spending for
program purposes at the end of the fiscal year.

The School’s governmental funds reported an ending fund balance of $983,542 at June 30, 2013.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights
Over the course of the year, the School revised the annual budget several times. These budget amendments

consisted of changes made among budgeted amounts for programs, supplies and equipment. There were no formal
budget amendments made that were required to be submitted to the State of Pennsylvania.




IMHOTEF INSTITUTE CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2013

Capital Asset and Debt Administration
Capital Asseis

As of June 30, 2013, the School’s investment in capital assets for its governmental activities totaled $209,588
(net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes furniture for the School along with
leasehold improvements.

Long-Term Debt

As of June 30, 2013, the School has capital lease payables for $34,922 and an outstanding line of credit in the
amount of $63,000.

Economiic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates and Future Events that will Financially Impaet the
Scheol

The School does not foresee any future events at this time that will financially impact the school. The School’s
enrollment for next year will decrease from 725 to 575 students accordingly, the School’s budget will be adjusted to
accominodate the decrease in student population. As of November 15, 2013, the School’s charter has expired and
renewal is pending.

Contacting the School’s Financial Management

The financial report is designed to provide interested parties a general overview of the School’s finances. Questions
regarding any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be
addressed to the Chief Executive Officer, Imhotep Institute Charter High School, 6201 North 21% Street,
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19138 or call (215) 551-4000.

Component Unit
Sankofa Network, Inc. (“Sankofs™) is a component unit of the School and is reported in a separate column in the

government-wide financial statements to emphasize that Sankofa is legally separate from the School. Complete
financial statements of Sankofa can be obtained at 6201 North 21* Street, Philadelphia, PA 19138.




IMHOTEP INSTITUTE GHARTER HIGH SCHOOCL

CURRENT ASSETS
CASH
STATE SUBSIDIES RECEIVABLE
FEDERAL SUBSIDIES RECEIVABLE
OTHER RECEIVABLES
DUE FROM RELATED PARTY
DUE FROM PROPRIETARY FUND
PREPAID RENT-CURRENT PORTION
PREPAID EXPENSES

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

NONCURRENT ASSETS
CAPITAL ASSETS:
BUILDING AND IMPROVEMENTS
LEASEHOLD IMPROVEMENTS
FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT
SOFTWARE
TRANSPORTAION EQUIPMENT

LESS: ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

CAPITAL ASSETS, NET

PREFAID RENT, NET OF CURRENT PORTION

TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

ASSETS

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
June 30, 2013

GOVERMENTAL BUSINESS TYPE COMPONET
ACTIVITES ACTIVITES TOTAL UNIT
895742  $ 11,199 $ 908,941 $ -
180,654 190,654 -
2,317 29,141 31,458 -
4,805 - 4,605 -
- - - 73,024
58,638 - 58,638 .
37,105 - 37,105 .
51,730 - 51,730 -
1,240,791 40,340 1,281,131 73,024
- - - 9,388,912
14,787 - 14,787 ;
962,068 133,285 1,096,353 -
121,992 - 121,992 -
29,015 - 29,015 -
(956,976) (94,583) _ (1,051,559) _ (1,211,581)
170,886 38,702 209,588 8,177,331
871,978 - 871,978 -
1,042,864 38,702 1,081,566 8,177,331
2283655 $ 79042  $2,362,897 $ 8,250,355

See the accompanying notes to the financial statements.




IMHOTEP INSTITUTE CHARTER HIGH SCHOOGL
STATEMENT QF NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS {DEFICIENCY) IN ASSETS

GOVERMMENTIAL BUSINESS COMPONENT
ACTIVITIES TYPE ACTIVITY TOTAL UNIT
GURRENT LIABILITES
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCURED EXPENSES $ 480,029 3§ 36,918 $ 516,047 8 -
ACCRUED SALARY AND BENEFITS 445,231 - 445,231 -
ADVANGED RENTAL PAYMENTS, CURRENT PORTION - - - 37,105
CURRENT PORTION, LONG-TERM DEBT - - - 228,716
DUE TO RELATED PARTY 73,024 - 73,024 -
DUE TO STATE AND LOCAL GOVERNMENTS - - - -
DUE TO GENERAL FUND - 58,638 58,638 -
CURRENT MATURITES OF CAPITAL LEASE 34,922 34,922
OBLIGATIONS UNDER INTEREST RATE SWAP - - - 18,368
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITES ’ 1,033,206 956,656 1,128,762 282,189
LONG-TERM LIABILITES:
CAPITAL LEASES, NET OF CURRENT PORTION - - - -
LINE OF CREDIT 83,000 - 63,000 871,978
ADVANCED RENTAL PAYMENTS, NET OF CURRENT PORTION - - - -
LONG-TERM DEBT, NET OF CURRENT PORTION - - - 7,038,500
UNEARNED REVENUE 130,937 - 130,937 -
TOTAL LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 163,837 - 193,937 7,910,478
TOTAL LAIBILITIES 1,227,143 95,656 1,322,699 8,192,667
NET ASSETS:
INVESTED IN CAPITAL ASSEST, NET OF REALTED
DEBT 72,964 38,702 111,666 -
NON-SPENDABLE, ASSETS 871,978 - 874,978 -
UNRESTRICTED{DEFICIENCY IN ASSETS) 111,570 (65,218} 56,354 57,688
TOTAL NET ASSETS(DEFICIENCY IN ASSETS) 1,056,512 {16,614) 1,039,098 57,688
TOTAL LIABILITES AND NET ASSETS $ 2,283,655 % 79,042 $ 2,362,697 § 8,250,355

See the accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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FUNCTIONS

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT:

INSTRUCTICNAL

INSTRUCTIONAL STAFF SUPPORT
ADMINISTRATION SUPPORT
PUPIL HEALTH

BUSINESS SERVICES
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE
STUDENT TRANSPORTATION
OTHER SUPPORT SERVICES
STUDENT ACTIVITES

FOQD SERVICE

INTEREST EXPENSE
DEPRECIATION EXPENSE

TOTAL GOVERMENTAL
ACTWITIES

COMPONENT UNIT
SANKOFA NETWORK, INC

IMHOTEP INSTITUTE CHARTER HIGH SCHCOL
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

PROGRAM
REVENUES NET REVENUE{EXPENSE) AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
OPERATING BUSINESS
GRANTS AND GOVERMENTAL TYPE COMPONENT
EXPENSES CONTRIBUTIONS ACTIVITIES ACTIVITES TOTAL UNIT
$2969.279 § (870,808) $ 2,098,371 $ - $2,008,371 $ -
203,220 203,220 - 203,220 -
1,199,449 1,199,449 - 1,199,449 -
181,230 {10,898) 170,332 - 170,332 -
656,192 656,192 - 656,192 -
1,356,866 {i108,863) 1,248,103 - 1,248,103 -
85,084 - 86,094 - 86,094 -
282,511 - 262,511 - 262,811 -
273,584 - 273,584 - 273,584 -
- - 566,006 566,605 -
4,583 - 4,693 4,503 .
150,887 - 150,887 23,779 174,668 -
$7,344,005 % (990,668) 6,353,336 589,784 6,843,120 -
$ 425801 _§ - - - - (425,901)
GENERAL REVENUES:
LOCAL EDUCATIONAL AGENCIES 6,877,134 - 6,877,134 -
FOOD SERVICES 556,073 556,073 -
RENTAL INCOME - - 855418
ALL OTHER REVENUES 261,613 - 261,613 -
TOTAL GENERAL REVENUES 7,138,747 556,073 7,694,820
INCOME(LOSS) BEFORE
INTERFUND TRANFERS 785,411 (33,711) 761,700 229,517
INTERFUND TRANSFERS 2,757 {2,757) - -
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 788,168 {36,468) 761,700 229,517
NET ASSETS(DEFICIENCY IN
ASSETS)-BEGINNING OF YEAR 268,344 19,954 268,208 (171,829)
NET ASSETS
(DEFICIENCY IN ASSETS)-
END OF YEAR $ 1,066,612 $  (15514) $1,030008 § 657,688

See Ihe accompanying netes to the financial stalements.




IMHOTEP INSTITUTE CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2013
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash $ 895,742
State Subsidies Receivable 190,654
Federal Subsidies Receivable 2,317
Other Receivables 4,605
Due from proprietary fund 58,638
Prepaid Expenses 960,813
Total Current Assets $ 2,112,769
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable and accrued expenses $ 480,029
Accrued salary and benefits 445,231
Due to related party 73,024
Unearned revenue 130,937
Total Liabilities 1,128,221
Fund halance:
Unassigned 983,648
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS % 2,112,769

See the accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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IMHOTEP INSTITUTE CHARTER HIGI SCHOOL
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
' TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2013

Total Fund Balances for Governmental Funds $ 983,548

Total net assets reported for governmental activities in the
Statement of net assets is different because:

Capital assets used in governmental funds are not financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.
Those assets consist of:

Leasehold improvements 14,787
Furniture and Equipment 962,068
Software 121,992
Transportation equipment 29,015
Less: accumulated depreciation {956,976)
170,886
Long-term liabilities that pertain to governmental funds,
including notes payable are not due and payable in the current period
and therefore are not reported as fund liabilities.
All liabilities — both current and long-term are reported in the
statements of net assets. Balances at year-end are:
Capital lease payables { 34,922)
Lines of credit ( 63,000}
{ 97922)
Total Net Assets of Governmental Activities $1,056,512

See the accompanying notes lo the financial statements.
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IMHOTEP INSTITUTE CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

REVENUES
Local Educational Agency
Other Local Sources
State Sources
Federal Sources

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Instruction
Support Services
Non-instructional Services
Capital Outlays
Debt Service

Total Expenditures

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES

Other financing uses:
Interfund transfers in

Net change in fund balance

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR

See the accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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6,877,134
261,613
380,548
610,121

8,129,416

2,968,279
3,563,054
656,192
17,900
127,596

7,334,021

795,385

2,757

798,152

185,396

$

983,548




IMHOTEP INSTITUTE CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Net Change in Fund Balances —- Total Governmental Funds $ 798,152

Amounts Reported for Governmental Activities in the
Statement of Activities is Different Because:

Governmenta! Funds Report Capital Outlays as Expenditures. However,
in the Statement of Activities, Assets are Capitalized and the Cost is
allocated over their Estimated Useful Lives and Reported as
depreciation Expense, as follows:

Capital Outlays 17,900
Depreciation Expense ( 150,887)
( 132,987)

The Governmental Funds report note proceeds as financing sources,
while repayment of note principal is reported as an expenditure.
In the statement of net assets, however, issuing debt increases
tong-term liabilities and does not affect the statement of activities
and repayment of principal reduces the liability. The net effect of these
differences in the treatment of notes payable is as follows:

Repayment of Long-Term Debt 123,003

Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities $ 788,168

See {he accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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IMHOTEP INSTITUTE CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL
STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

BUDGET AMOUNTS ACTUAL QOVER (UNDER})
ORIGINAL/FINAL AMOUNTS  FINAL BUDGET
REVENUES
Local Educational Agency Assistance $ 7,427,185 $ 6,877,134 $ (250,051)
Cther Local Sources 50,000 261,613 211,613
State Sources 330,736 380,548 49,812
Federal Sources 898,640 $10,121 {288,519)
Total Revenues 8,406,561 8,129,416 (277,145)
EXPENDITURES
Instruction 4 177,695 2,969,279 (1,208,416}
Support Services 2,015,172 3,663,054 1,547,882
Non-instructional Services 1,599,846 656,192 (843,654)
Capital Outlays 10,000 17,900 7,800
Debt Service 95,000 127,696 32,596
Total Expenditures 7,897,713 7,334,021 {563,692)
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES $ 508,848 795,395 % 286,547
Other financing uses:
Interfund transfers IN 2,757
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 798,152
FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING OF YEAR 185,396
FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR 3 983,548

See the accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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IMHOTEP INSTITUTE CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUND
JUNE 30, 2013

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash $ 11,199
Federal Subsidies Receivable 29,141
Total Current Assets 40,340
CAPITAL ASSETS
Equipment 133,285
Less: Accumulated Depreciation {94,583)
Total Capital Assets, Net 38,702
TOTAL ASSETS 5 79,042
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expense $ 36,918
Due to General Fund 58,638
Total Current Liabilities 95,566
Nef assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 38,702
Unrestricted (565,2186)
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET DEFICIENCY IN ASSETS $ 79,042

See the accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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IMHOTEP INSTITUTE CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Revenues.
Food service revenues

Expenses
Management and food
Depreciation
Total expenses
QOperating loss

Interfund transfers in

Net change in proprietary fund

Net deficiency in assets - beginning of year

Net deficiency in assets - end of year

See the accompanying notes lo the financial statements.

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
PROPRIETARY FUND
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Enterprise
Fund

Food Service
Fund

$

556,073

566,005
23,779

589,784

(33,711)

(2,757)

(36,468)

19,954

$

(16,514)




IMHOTEP INSTITUTE CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Cash flows from operaling activities:
Cash received from federal and state sources

Payments to supplies

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:

Transfer to general fund

Net cash used in noncapital financing activities

Cash used In capital and related financing activities:
Payments on capital lease payable

Net cash used in financing acfivities

Net change in cash
Cash - beginning of year

Cash - end of year

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash used in operating activities:

Operating loss

Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash used in operating activities:

Depreciation

Changes in operating asets and liabilities:

Federal subsidies receivable
Accounts payable

NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES

See the accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Enterprise
Fund

Food Service
Fund

$ 566,729
(607,117)

(40,388)

Q.757)

(43,145)

{11,652}

{11,552)

(64,697)

65,896

$ 11,199

§ (33,711}
23,779

10,656
{41,112)

$ (40,388)




NOTE 1

IMHOTEP INSTITUTE CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2013

BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Background
Tmhotep Institute Charter High School (the School) is organized as a nonprofit corporation in

Pennsylvania to operate a charter school in accordance with Pennsylvania Act 22 of 1997 (“the
Act), and is operating under a charter school contract ending on August 31, 2012. The School is
located in Philadelphia, Pennsylvania. During the 2012-2013 school year, the School served
students in grades 9 through 12.

As of November 15, 2013, the renewal of the School’s charter was pending.

The School has financial accountability and control over all activities related to the students’
education. The School receives funding from local, state and federal government sources and
must comply with the requirements of these funding source entities. The reporting entify of the
School is based upon criteria set forth by Governmental Accounting Standards Board )’GASB™)
Statement 14, the Financial Reporting Entity. The financial reporting entity consists of the
primary government, organizations for which the primary government is financially accountable,
and other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the primary
government are such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity’s financial statements to be
misleading or incomplete.

The accompanying financial statements present the activities of the School. The School is not a
component unit of another reporting entity. The decision to include a potential component unit in
the School’s reporting entity is based on several criteria, including legal standing, fiscal
dependency, and financial accountability.

Component Unit
Sankofa Network, Inc. (“Sankofa®) is a legally separate, tax-exempt component unit of the School.

Sankofa was organized to acquire and construct the School’s facilities. Although the School does
not control the timing or amounts of receipts from Sankofa, the majority of resources, and income
thereon, that Sankofa holds are restricted to the activities of the School. Because these restricted
resources held by Sankofa can only be used by, or for the benefit of the School, Sankofa is
considered a component unit to the School and is discretely presented in the Schools’ financial
statements.

Basis of Presentation
The financial statements of the School have been prepared in conformity with generally
Accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for establishing
government accounting and financial reporting principles. The GASB has issued a codification
of governmental accounting and financial reporting standards. This codification and subsequent
GASB pronouncements ate recognized as generally accepted accounting principles for state and
local governments that have implemented GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements —
and Management’s Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Governments, issued in June
1999.
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IMHOTEP INSTITUTE CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30,2013

NOTE1 BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (the statement of net assets (deficit) and the statement
of activities) report on the School as a whole. The statement of activities demonstrates the degree
to which the direct expenses of the School’s function are offset by program revenues.

The fund financial statements (governmental fund balance sheet and statement of governmental
fund. Revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balance (deficit) report on the School’s general,
food services and student activities.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation
Government-wide financial statements:

The statement of net assets (deficit) and the statement of activities are prepared using the
economic resources measurement focus and the acerual basis of accounting, Revenues are
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred regardless of the
timing of the related cash flows. Grants and similar items are recognized as soon as all eligibility
requirements imposed by provider have been met,

Fund financial statements:

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized
as soon as they are measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when
they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the
current period. For this purpose, the School considers revenues to be available if they are
collected within 60 days of the end of the current period. Expenditures generaily are recorded
when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.

The government reports the following major governmental fund:

General Fund — The General Fund is the operating fund of the School and accounts for
all revenues and expenditures of the School.

The School reports the following proprietary fund:

Food Service Fund — Enterprise funds are required to be used to account for operations for which a
fee is charged to external users for goods and service and the activity (a) is financed with debt that
is solely secured by a pledge of the net revenues, (b) has third-party requirements that the cost of
providing services, including capital costs, be recovered with fees and charges, or (c) establishes
fees and charges based on a pricing policy designed to recover similar costs.
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NOTE 1

IMHOTEP INSTITUTE CHARTER HIGIH SCHOOL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2013

BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Method of Accounting
The School has adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No, 34 (“Statement 347

“Basic Financial Statements — and Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local
Governments.” Statement 34 established standards for external financial reporting for all State and
Local governmental entities, which includes a statement of net assets and a statement of activities. It
requires the classification of net assets into three components — invested in capital assets, net of related
debt; restricted; and unrestricted. These calculations are defined as follows:

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt — This component of net assets

consists of capital assets, including restricted capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages,
notes, or othet borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction,

or improvement of those assets. If there are significant unspent related debt proceeds
at year-end, the portion of the debt attributable to the unspent proceeds are not
included in the calculation of invested in capital assets, net of related debt. Rather,
that portion of the debt is included in the same net assets component as the unspent
proceeds.

Restricted — This component of net assets consists of constraints placed on net
assets use through external constraints imposed by creditors such as through debt
covenants, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or
constraints imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Unrestricted net assets — This component of net asscts consists of net assets that do
not meet the definition of “restricted” or “invested in capital assets, net of related
debt.”

Fund Balance Classification Policies and Procedures

As of Yuly 1, 2010, the School adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balances
(“Statement 54”). Statement 54 requires the classification of the School’s fund balance in five
components; non-spendable, restricted, committed, assigned and unassigned. These classifications are
defined as follows:

Non-spendable — This category is for amounts that cannot be spent because they are
either (1) not in spendable form or (2) legally or contractually required to remain intact.

Restricted — This category is the part of the fund balance that is restricted to be spent fora
specific purpose. The constraints on these amounts must be externally imposed by
creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other government, or by
enabling legislation.

Committed — This category is the portion of the fund balance that can only be used for
specific purposes as a result of formal action by the School’s highest level of authority.

Assigned — This category reflects funds that the School intends to use for a specitic
purpose but are not considered restricted or committed.

Unassigned — This category represents the part of the spendable fund balance that has not
been categorized as non-spendable, restricted, committed or assigned.
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IMHOTEP INSTITUTE CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2013

NOTE1 BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

The School adopts an annual budget on a basis consistent with GAAP for the general fund.

The School is required to present the adopted and final budgeted revenues and expenditures for the
general fund that were filed and accepted by the Labor, Education and Community Services
Comptroller’s Office. The general fund budget appears on Page 14.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual resulis could differ from those estimates.

Cash
The School’s cash is considered to be cash on hand and demand deposits.

Prepaid Expenses
Prepaid expenses include payments to vendors for services applicable to future accounting
periods such as rental payments and insurance premiums.

Receivables

Receivables primarily consists of amounts due from the Pennsylvania Department of Education for
federal and state grants and subsidies. Receivables ave stated at the amount management expeets to
collect. As of June 30, 2013, based on historical experience, no allowance has been established.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The School’s financial instruments are cash, investments, grants received, accounts receivable,
accounts payable and accrued liabilities, The recorded values of cash, investments, grants received,
accounts receivable, accounis payable and accrued Iliabilities approximate their fair values based on
their short-term nature.

Capital Assefs
Capital assets, which include leasehold improvements and furniture and equipment, are reported in the

government-wide financial statements, All capital assets are capitalized at cost and updated for
additions and retirements during the year. The School maintains a threshold level of $2,500 or more
for capitalizing assets. The School does not possess any infrastructure. The infrastructure is owned
by Sankofa, which is shown discretely. Improvements are capitalized; the cost of normal mainfenance
and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend an asset’s life are expensed,
Capital assets of the School are depreciated using the straight-line method over the useful lives of the
assets. The estimated useful life of furniture and equipment ranges from three to seven years.

Unecarned Revenue

Unearned revenue represents receipts for food services, but have not been spent by the students as of
June 30, 2013.
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IMHOTEP INSTITUTE CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2013

NOTE1 BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Advertising Costs
All costs associated with advertising and promotions are expensed in the year incurred.

Income Tax Status
The School is exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue

Service Code.

Uncertain Tax Positions
Effective July 1, 2009, the School implemented the new standard regarding accounting for uncertainty

in income taxes. Using that gnidance, tax positions initially need to be recognized in the financial
statements when it is more likely than nof that the positions will be sustained upon examination by
taxing authorities. It also provides guidance for de-recognition, classification, interest and penalties,
accounting in interim periods, disclosure and transition.

As of June 30, 2013, the School had no unceriain tax positions that qualified for either recognition or
disclosure in the financial statements. Additionally, the School had no interest and penalties related to

income taxes.

The School files an income tax return in the U.S. federal jurisdiction. With few exceptions, the School
is no longer subject fo U.S, federal and state tax examinations by taxing authorities for the years before

fiscal year ended June 30, 2009.

Subsequent Events
The School has evaluated subsequent events through November 15, 2013, the date on which these

financial statements were available to be issued. There were no material subsequent events that
required recognitions or additional disclosure in these financial statements.

22




IMHOTEP INSTITUTE CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2013

NOTE2 CASH

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the School’s deposits may not be
returned to the School. The School monitors custodial credit risk by periodically reviewing the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation’s (“FDIC”) limits and published credit ratings of its depository
bank(s). Accounts are insured by the FDIC up to $250,000 for interesi-bearing accounts.
Noninterest-bearing accounts are fully insured under the FDIC’s temporary transaction guarantee
program.

As of June 30, 2013, the custodial risk is as follows:
Governmmental — Business-Type Component

Activities Activities Unit
Uninsured and uncollateralized - - .
Collateralized - - -
Uninsured and collateral held by
the pledging bank’s trust dept.
not in the Schoo!’s name 587,740 -
Total $587,740 $ - 3 - .

Reconciliation to the financial statements:
Governmental  Business-Type Component

Activities Activities Unit
Cash exposed to custodial risk $587,740 $ - $ -
Plus: Insured amount 328,898 75,722 -
Less: Quistanding checks {20,896} (64,523) -
$895,742 $11,199 5 -

NOTE 3 RECEIVABLES

Receivables at June 30, 2013 consist of subsidies from federal, state, local and private authorities. All
receivables are considered collectible due to the stable condition of the state and private programs.

A summary of receivables is as follows:

Receivables Amount
Federal $ 31,458
State 190,654

$222.112

NOTE 4 LOCAL EDUCATIONAL AGENCY ASSISTANCE (REVENUE)

The School receives funding from the School District of Philadelphia on a monthly basis based on
envollment. The rate of funding per student is determined on an annual basis.

Charter schools are funded by the local public school district. For non-special education student, the
charter school receives for each student enrolled no less than the budgeted total expenditure per average
daily membership of the prior school year as defined by the Act. The rates for regular and special
education for the year ended June 30, 2013 were $8,064 and $19,831, respectively.

The annual rate is paid monthly and is prorated if a student enters or lease during the year.

Total revenue from student enrollment was $6,877,134 for the year ended June 30, 2013.
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IMHOTEP INSTITUTE CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30,2013
NOTE 5 CAPITAL ASSETS, NET

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2013 was as follows:

Governmental Activities:

Balance Balance
July 1, 2012 Additions Disposals June 30,2013

Leasehold improvements $ 14,787 5 - $ - $ 14,787
Furniture and equipment 944,168 17,900 - 962,068
Software 121,992 - - 121,992
Transportation equipment 29,015 - - 29,015
Less: accumulated depreciation  _( 806,089} (150,887 - (956,976}
Capital assets, net $ 303,873 $(132,987) 3 - $ 170,886

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2013 was $150,887.

Business-Type Activity:

Balance Balance
! July 1,2012 Additions Disposals June 30. 2013
Furniture and equipment $ 133,285 $ - $ - § 133,285
' Less: accumulated depreciation _(_ 70,804) (23,779) - { 94,583)
1 Capital assets, net $ 62481 $(23,779) $ - $ 38702

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2013 was $23,779.
NOTE 6 LINE OF CREDIT
The Schoo! maintains a $100,000 line of credit from Sovereign Bank for working capital purposes. The
: line bears interest at .8% above the prime which was 2.75% At June 30, 2013. The credit line is payable
. on demand and expires on March 6, 2014. As of June 30, 2013, the balance outstanding was $63,000.
NOTE 7 OBLIGATIONS UNDER LEASES
Government Activities

Equipment costing $594,134, with a net book value of $168,530, is held under capital leases.
Future minimum lease payments required under capital leases as of June 30, 2013 are as follows:

Year Ending June 30, Amount
2014 $ 34922

34,922

Less: current portion 34,922

$,__'_..v.

Changes in capital lease obligations were as follows for the year ended June 30, 2013:

Balance, June 30, 2012 $ 157,925
Repayments of principal (123,000}
Balauce, June 30, 2013 34,922
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IMHOTEP INSTITUTE CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2013

NOTE 8 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND FACILITY LEASING ARRANGEMENTS

In July 2007, the School entered into a twenty-nine year, six month lease with Sankofa, The School
began utilizing the facilities for the 2008-2009 school year. The annual rental income is approximately
1.1 times Sankofa’s debt service. All costs of the building, such as utilities, assessments and taxes, etc,
are paid by the School as additional rent. The School had advanced funds to Sankofa totaling
$1,057,504, and has a current balance of $909,083, which has been recorded as “Prepaid rent”, It is
anticipated that these funds will be charged to operations at the rate of approximately $37,105 per year.
Rental expense for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, was $655,418.

NOTEY9 COMMITMENT

In July 2011, the School entered into a three (3) year Business Service Agreement with a management
company for various business services at a monthly rate of $8,738, and will increase each year under the
terms of the agreement. Under the terms of the agreement, the management company is to

provide certain administrative services to the School.

Minimum future management fees under this agreement as of June 30, 2013 are as follows:

Year ending June 30: Awmount
2014 $107,885
2015 119,000

$226.885

Management Fees
Management fees relating to the School’s Business Services Agreement for the year
ended June 30, 2013 was $104,800,

NOTE 10 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

In July 2007, Sovereign Bank entered into a series of loans (collectively, the “Loan”) with the School
and Sankofa. The Loan is secured by the property and by substantially all of the assets of the School
and Sankofa and the assignment of all grants, leases and rents,

Facility-A Loan is a secured, tax free mortgage loan made available to Sankofa in a principal amount
not to exceed $6,800,000 to fund the constructions of, and payment of soft costs associated with, the
real property located at 6201 North 21* Street, Philadelphia, PA 19138. The Facility-A Loan bears a
tax-free floating interest rate equal to 65% of the sum of the 30-day reserve adjusted London Inter-Bank
Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) plus 200 basis points. Sankofa makes monthly installments of principal and
interest, based on a 25-year amortization schedule. The Facility-A Loan balance at June 30, 2013, was
$6,043,150.

Facility-B Loan is a secured, taxable line of credit loan made available to the School in a principal
amount not to exceed $554,753 to use for working capital. The Facility-B Loan bears interest at the 30-
day reserve adjusted LIBOR plus 200 basis points. Commencing on July 1, 2008, and continuing until
the maturity date, July 1, 2023, Sankofa makes equal payments of principal and interest as accrued on
the outstanding principal balance. The Facility-B Loan balance at June 30, 2013, was $437,034.

Please refer to Note 15, Component Unit, for additional information regarding the Loan and additional
contingent liabilities associated with the Loan,
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IMIIOTEP INSTITUTE CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2013

NOTE 11 RETIREMENT PLAN

The School contributes to the Public Schoo! Employees’ Retirement System (the System),

3 cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the

Pennsylvania Public School Employees® Retirement System, which provides retirement

and disability benefits, legislative mandated ad hoc cost-of-living adjustments, and health

care insurance premium assistance to qualifying annuitants. The Public School Employees’
Retirement Code (Act No. 96 of October 2, 1975, as amended) (24 PA.C.S. 8101-8535)

assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the System. The System

issues a comprehensive annual financial report that includes financial staternents and required
supplementary information for the plan. A copy of the report may be obtained by writing to Diane J.
Wert, Office of Financial Management, Public School Employees’ Retirement System, P.O. Box 125,
Harrisburg, Pennsylvania 17108-0125, This publication is also available on the PSERS website at
http:f’/www.psers.state.pa.usfpub]ications/general/caﬁ'.htm.

The contribution policy is established in the Public School Employer’s Retirement Code and requires
contributions by active members, employers and the Commeonwealth.

Member contributions are as follows:

e Active members who joined the System prior to July 22, 1983, contribute at 5.25%

{(Membership Class T-C) or at 6.50% (Membership Class T-D) of the member’s
‘ qualifying compensation.

o Members who joined the Systems prior to, on or after July 22, 1983, and who were active
or inactive as of July 1, 2001, contribute at 6.25% (Membership Class T-C) or at 7.50%
(Membership Class T-D) of the membex’s qualifying compensation.

e Members who joined the System after June 30, 2001, contribute at 7.50% (Membership
Class T-D). For all new hires and for members who elected Class T-D membership, the
higher contribution rates began with service rendered on or after January, 1, 2002,

Subsequently, members who joined the System on or after July 1, 2011, may choose between two
classes of membership, and thetefore, two different base contribution rates that are subjectto a
limited fluctuation base on a “shared risk”. Membership Class T-E members will have a base
employee contribution rate of 7.5%, with shred risk contribution rate levels from 7.5% through
including 9.5%. Membership Class T-F members will have a base employee contribution rate of
10.3%, with shared risk contribution rate levels from 10.3% through and including 12.3%.

With the “shared risk” program, members benefit when investments of the fund are doing well
and share some of the risk when investments under perform. Membership Class T-E or T-F
contribution rates will stay within the specified range, but may increase or decrease by .5% with
the specified range once every three year, starting July 1, 2015. The contribution rates for these
two membership classes will never go below the base rent or above the highest percentage rate.

Contributions required of the School are based upon an actuarial valuation. For the fiscal year
ending June 30, 2013, the rate of the School’s contribution was 12.36% of covered payroll. The
12.36% rate is composed of a pension contribution rate of 1 1,71 for pension benefits and .65% for
healthcare insurance premium assistance. Payroil expense for employees covered by the System
for the year ended June 30, 2013, was approximately $3,383,106. The School’s contributions to
the System for the years ended June 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011, amounted to $382,873, $325,846,
and $188,105, respectively.
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IMHOTEP INSTITUTE CHARTER HIGI SCHOOL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30,2013

NOTE 12 INTERFUND TRANSFERS

NOTE 13

NOTE 14

NOTE 15

Interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2013, were as follows:

Transfer In Transfer Out
General fund § 2,757 $ -
Food service fund 149,193 2,757

$ 2,757 § 2757
The interfund transfers were used to fund the general fund operations for the year ended June 30, 2013.
GRANTS CONTINGENCIES
Grants received are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor agencies. Any disatlowed claims,
including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if

any, or expenditures that may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time, although
the School expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

LITIGATION

The School is, from time to time involved in claims and lawsuits incidental to its operations. In the
opinion of the administration and legal counsel, at this time, the ultimate resolution of these matters
will not have an adverse effect on the financial position of the School.

COMPONENT UNIT

Capital Assets, Net
Capital asset activity of Sankofa for the year ended June 30, 2013, was as follows:

Balance Balance
July 1, 2012 Additions Disposals June 30,2013
Building and improvements $9,388,212 $ - 8 - $9,388,912
Less: accumulated depreciation _( 954,181) (257,400) - (1,211,581)
Capital assets, net $8,434,031 $(257,400) s - $8,144,331

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2013 was $257,400.
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IMHOTEP INSTITUTE CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2013

NOTE 15 COMPONENT UNIT (continued)

Long-Term Debt

On July 26, 2007, Sankofa obtained two loans in the amount of $6,800,000 and $554,753 from
Sovereign Bank (“Sovereign™) fo finance the purchase of a building and improvements to a building that
is used as the School’s facility. The loans bear interest equal to .785% (65% of the London Interbank
Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) plus 2%) and 2.191% (LIBOR plus 2%) at June 30, 2013, respectively,
However, Sankofa entered into an interest rate swap contract that effectively converts the interest rate on
the variable loans to the fixed percentage of 4.95% per annum through July 2013. Under the swap
contract, Sankofa will pay interest monthly at these respective percentages and receive interest at
LIBOR. The notional mounts under the swaps decrease as principal payments are made. The loan
balances at June 30, 2013, were $6,043,150 and $434,004 respectively. The loans are secured by the
property and by substantially all of the assets of Sankofa and the School and the assignment of all
grants, leases and rents. In addition, the loans mature on July 26, 2032 and July 1, 2023, respectively.

The swaps were issued at market terins so that they had no fair value at their inception. The carrying
amount of the swaps have been adjusted to their fair value at the end of the year, which because of
changes in forecasted levels of LIBOR resulted in reporting a liability in the amount of $18,368 for fair
value of the future net payments forecasted under the swaps. The liability is classified as current

since management does intend to settle it during 2013. Sankofa is exposed to credit loss in the event
of nonperformance by the other party to the interest rate swap agreements. However, the Foundation
does not anticipate nonperformance by the counterpaity.

On July 26, 2007, Sankofa obtained an additional loan in the amount of $850,000 from the
Reinvestment Fund to finance improvements to the building. Interest only at 7.93% per annum is due
monthly during the construction period. After the completion of the construction period, the loan is
payable in monthly installments of $6,521, including interest, and matures in August 2018, at which
time a balloon payment of approximately $687,000 is due. The loan balance at June 30, 2013, was
$785,033. The loan is secured by a second lien on the property and is guaranteed by the School.

Future maturities of long-term debt are as follows:

Year Ending June 30: Amount

2014 $ 226,716
2015 239,532
2016 253,104
2017 263,228
2018 264,288
Thereafter 6,018,348

$1,265.216
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ANTHONY J. KUBICEK
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT
1240 WEST CHESTER PIKE, SUITE 210
WEST CHESTER, PA 19382
TEL 610- 430-7826
FAX 610- 430-0552

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT A UDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors
IMHOTEP Institute Charter High Schoo!
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania

I have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the aggregate discretely presented component
units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of IMHOTEP Institute Charter High School
as of June 30, 2013, which collectively comprise the IM HOTEP Institute Charter High School’s basic financial
statements and have issued my report thereon, dated November 15, 2013. 1 conducted my audit in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Govermment Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing my audit, T considered IMHOTEP Institute Charter High School’s internal control over
financial reporting as a basis for designing my auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing my opinions on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the IMHOTEP Institute
Charter High School’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, I do not express an opinion on the
offectiveness of IMHOTEP Institute Charter High School’s internal controi over financial reporting.

A conirof deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in
the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect niisstatements on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of contro! deficiencies, that adversely affects the
IMHOTEP Institute Charter High School’s ability to initiate, authorize, record, process, or report financial data
reliably in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles such that there is more than a remote likelikood
that a misstatement of the IMHOTEP Institute Charter High School’s financial statements that is more than
inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the IMHOTEP Institute Charter High School’s internal control,

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in more than
a remote likeliltood that a material misstatement of the financial statements will not be prevented or detected by the
IMHOTEP Institute Charter High School’s internal control.

My consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be

significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. 1 did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial
reporting that I would consider to be material weaknesscs, as defined above.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether IMHOTEP Institute Charter High School’s financial
statements are free of material misstatement, I performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of my audit and, accordingly, I do not express such an opinion. The results of my
tests did not disclose any instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, others within the entity, and Federal
awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and shou!d not be used by anyene other than
these specified parties.

West Chester, Petmsylvania
November 15,2013

ANTHONY J, KUBICEK, CPA
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ANTHONY ]J. KUBICEK
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT
1240 WEST CHESTER PIKE, SUITE 210
WESsT CHESTER, PA 19382
TEL 610- 430-7826
FAX 610- 430-0552

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJ OR PROGRAM
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133

To IMHOTEP Institute Charter High School
Philadelphia, PA

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

I have audited IMHOTEP Institute Charter High School’s compliance with the types of compliance requirements
described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each
of IMHOTEP Institute Chatter High School’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2013, IMHOTEP
Institute Charter High School’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of
the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and prants
applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of IMHOTEP Institute Charter High School’s
major federal programs based on my audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. I conducted
my audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generaily accepted in the United States of America;
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above
that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occutred. An audit includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence about IMHOTEP Institute Charter High School’s compliance with those requirements and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

1 believe that my audit provides a reasonable basis for my opinion on compliance for each major federal program.
However, my audit does not provide a legal determination of IMHOTEP Institute Charter High School’s
compliance.

Opinion on Each Mujor Federal Program

In my opinion, IMIIOTEP Institute Charter High School complied, in all material respects, with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal
programs for the year ended June 30, 2013.
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of IMHOTEP Institute Charter High School is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and
performing my audit of compliance, I considered IMHOTEP Institute Charter High School’s internal control over
compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal
program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance
in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, I do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of IMHOTEP
Institute Charter High School’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis.
A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in infernal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency in internal conirol over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is fess severe than
a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

My consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be matetial weaknesses. Howevet, material weaknesses may exist that have not been
identified.

The purpose of this report on internal conirol over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB Circular A-133.
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Anthony J. Kubicek

West Chester, P
November 15, 2013
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IMHOTEP INSTITUTE CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Pass-Through

Federal Entity
CFDA Identifying
Federal Grantor/Pass Through Number Number Expenditures
Grantor/Program
Department of Education
Title | Grants to LEA's 84.010 013-110840 $ 460,809
improving Teacher Quality State Grants 84.367 020-110840 23,948
484,857
U.S. Department of Agriculture, Passed-through the
Department of Education
National School Lunch Program 10.555 362 328,741
School Breakfast Program 10.553 365 189,947
528,688
U. 8, Department of Health Passed-through the
Department of Education
Medical Assistance Access 93.778 044-077566 12,000
U. 8. Department of Education Passed-through the
Department of Education
Special Education Granis to States 84.027 N/A 125,264
Total Federal Financial Assistance $ 1,150,802

See the accompanying notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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IMHOTEP INSTITUTE CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
JUNE 30, 2013

NOTE 1 GENERAL

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of Federal awards presents the activity of all federal financial
assistance programs of Imhotep Institute Charter High School (the “School”). The information in this
schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of the Office of Management and Budget (OMB)
Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore, some

amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the
basic financial statements.

NOTE 2 BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented using the accrual basis of
accounting, which is described in Note 1 to the School’s financial statements.
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IMHOTEP INSTITUTE CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
JUNE 30, 2013

A, SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS

1.

2,

8.

9.

The auditors’ report expresses an unqualified opinion on the financial statements of Imhotep Institute
Charter High School (“the School”).

Audit finding that are required to be reported under Goversment Auditing Standards are reported in
this schedule.

No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of the School were disclosed
during the audit.

No reportable conditions relating to the audit of major federal ward programs are reported in the
Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to Each Major Program
and Internal Control over Compliance in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133.

The auditors’ report on compliance for the major federal award programs for the School expresses an
unqualified opinion.

There were no audit findings that were required to be reported under OMB Circular AG133.

The program tested as a major program was Title I Grants to LEAs, CFDA #84.010, Improving
Teacher Quality State Grants, #84.367, National School Lunch Program CFDA #10.555, School
Breakfast Program, CFDA #10.553, and Special Education Grants to States, CFDA #84.027.
The threshold for distinguishing Types A and B programs was $300,000.

The School does qualify as a low-risk auditee.

FINDINGS —~ FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT

There were no findings as a result of the financial statement audit,
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School District:
Monitor Date:
Monitor:
Contact Person:
Report Date:

2010-2011

Pennsylvania Department of Education
Division of Federal Program
Corrective Action Plan
2010-2011 School Year

Imbotep Institute Chs

4/5/2011

Dr. Gaylord J. Conquest

Federal Programs Coordinator Melanie Reiser
6/14/2013 1:00:30 PM

June 14, 2013
Page 1 of 5




2010-2011

__Top I8
Title I la. All core content | The district will | List of teachers 6/30/2011 “v o Comments =7
Highl area teachers submit a listing of all and their R —
Quﬁiged employed by the LEA [non-highly qualified qualifications. _ 11/14/2011 || Imhotep has 26
are highly qualified. |teachers and the I~ |Number of : 16/14/2013 core content
length of time each teachers who i e teachers in 2010-
o i (1R f which 20 are
has been working in have met highly 11, 0 "
the position for which qualified. HQT. (77%). There
they are not highly i |Number of are six teachers
qualified, along with teachers working who do not meet
the appropriate toward becoming HQT requirements,
emergency certificate nighly qualified Wl:[h the Mjority
(s) issued for this bemg certlﬁed_
time period. special education
teachers who have
not demonstrated
secondary content
knowledge.
Title I 4. Parents are notified |The district will [~ | Copy of dated o] 6/30/2011
Highl if their child is submit a copy of the letter of
Qualii%ed assigned to or being  |letter notifying all notification to |11/14/2011
taught for four or  |parents of children parent/guardian 6/14/2013
more consecutive not being taught by a -
weeks by a teacher highly qualified
who is not highly teacher in a Title I
qualified in a core building for 4 or
academic subject. more consecutive
weeks.

June 14, 2013
Page 2 of 5




Co"e"t“’eA L S Da Comments .

Imhotep has a
template for parent
notification letters.
These letters will
be sent home in
April 2011.
Henceforth, these
letters will be
distributed to
applicable parents
promptly upon their
child being taught
by four or more
consecutive weeks
by a teacher who is
not highly qualified
in a core academic
subject.

Title I 1. LEA has a written |Provide copy of | staff/Parent i ]8/31/2011  ‘Comments.
- |Parent parental involvement |LEA/District parent meeting agenda, — —
Involvement |policy and evidence |involvement policy to memoranda, | 11/14/2011
that it is updated PDE for review; Fevisions- sed: |6/14/2013
periodically. provide evidence of || I |Website posting. |\Fos Fae 2o
parent involvement Sy
and input into the Reguired

development of the
policy.

June 14, 2013
2010-2011 Page 3 of 5




Suggested Evidenc
of Implementation

Comments

. Comments
Imhotep has an
active parent
involvement
program helmed by
a Parent
Ombudsman who
was hired in 2009-
10 (see job
description in
review materials).
She will be present
at the review to
describe the
school's parent
involvement
activities. In
conjunction with
the Wazuri Parent
Association,
Imhotep is
reviewing a draft
Title I Parent
Involvement
Policy. This will be
adopted by the end
of the school year,
distributed at the
start of 2011-12 via
mailing and
website, and
described at the
Annual Title I
Meeting.

June 14, 2013
2010-2011 Page 4 of 5




[ Suggested Evidence |

posting, mailings,
newsletters, or other
forms of
communication
between the
school/home.

Title I 2. Schools receiving |LEA ;nust provid;: tt}i) e |8/31/2011 0 Comments
Parent Title I funds have a the DFP a copy of their = i -
Involvement |written parent school building parent 11/14/2011 Im;mtfg]%s Aa ?ile-
involvement mnvolvement d: |6/14/2013 sC goth LE.A s .
policy/plan aligned policy/plan for each T Su}C1 s 1 e ! an
with the LEA policy. [Title I building not in A SC 010 Parefg
compliance; provide m‘:.o }tff:men th
evidence of Title I activities are the
parent involvement and same.
input into the
development of the
school building policy.
Title I 4. School parent Provide evidence that - | Parent Te/30/2011 omments. )
Parent involvement policies |the school policies meeting e
Involvement |have been distributed |were distributed to agendas 11/14/2011 ||| While Imhotep has
to parents. parents. Evidence can || - |documentation 6/14/2013 ||| 20 active parent
include website shared or - involvement policy,
distributed - we are presently

developing a formal
parent involvement
policy, working
with the Wazuri
Parent Association
to do so.

2010-2011

June 14, 2013
Page 5 of 5




Melanie B. Reiser

From: Melanie Reiser {mreiser@omnivestllc.com]

Sent: Wednesday, January 25, 2012 4:30 PM

To: Hull, Norma; jefrye@pa.gov

Cce: lorfida, Kelly S.

Subject: imhotep Institute Charter High School -- Consclidated Review Corrective Action
Attachments: Imhotep HQT Listing 2011-12.pdf; Imhotep -- Title i Parent [nvolvement Policy -- Final

Approved.pdf;, Imhotep Title | Parent [nvolvement Policy Evidence of Parent Involvement in
Development.pdf; Imhotep NHQT Letter Template.pdf

Importance: High

Dear Ms. Hull and Mr. Fry:

| am writing in response to the Findings and Corrective Actions stemming from the 2010-11 Federal Programs
Consolidated Review of Imhotep Institute Charter High School.

Specifically, Imhotep had five {5} findings. Our responses to the required corrective action items follow below.

Taopic: Title I, Highly Qualified
Issue: 1a. All core content area teachers employed by the LEA are highly qualified.
CA: The district will submit a listing of all non-highly qualified teachers and the length of time each has

been working in the position for which they are not highly qualified, along with the appropriate
emergency certificate(s) issued for this time period.

Response:

At the time of our consolidated review (spring 2011), Imhotep employed 26 core content teachers of which 20 (or 77%}
met HQT requirements. For 2011-12, improvements in hiring and rostering, as well as a reconfiguration of our special
education program, have resuited in a much higher percentage of HQT. Presently, Imhotep empioyes 21.20 FTE core
content teachers of which 20.15 (95%) are HQT. Four staff members comprise the 1.05 FTE of NHQTs {5%). Attached to
this email you will find a full listing of Imhotep’s 2011-12 core content teachers and their HQT status. For teachers who
are not HQT, the number of years they have served at Imhotep are listed on this chart.

All NHQT are required to develop and/or update their Individual Professional Development Plan. These plans will
explicitly state achievable milestones for achieving both HQT status and certification. The Director of Teaching and
Learning will review these plans with an outside consultant for accuracy. The Director of Teaching and Learning will
meet with each NHQT to review their submitted plan and require the teachers to sign an agreement to complete the
steps described therein. The Director of Teaching and Learning will meet with each NHQT quarterly to monitor progress
on meeting the steps.

Topic: Title I, Parent Involvement
Issue: 1. LEA has a written parental involvement policy and evidence that it is updated periodically.
CA: Provide copy of LEA/District parent involvement policy to PDE for review; provide evidence of parent

involvement and input into the development of the policy.

Response:




In fall 2011, the Federal Programs Coordinator, Parent Ombudsman coordinated with the administration, school Board,
and Wazuri Parent Association to draft a Parent Involvement Policy and Parent Compact. The draft policy was presented
to parents for their review and feedback at the Annual Title | Meeting, which was held in conjunction with the Wazuri
Parent Association Meeting on October 27, 2011, Parents filled out feedback forms, and their comments were
incorporated into the final version of the Title | Parent Involvement Policy, which was officially adopted by the Imhotep
Board of Trustees on January 12, 2012. A copy of this final Title | Policy is attached. Additionally, we have attached a
packet that includes the agenda from the Annual Title | meeting, sign-in sheets from this meeting, and copies of the
parent feedback forms on the Policy and Compact.

Topic: Title I, Parent Involvement
Issue: 4, School parent involvement policies have been distributed to parents.
CA: Provide evidence that the school policies were distributed to parents. Evidence can include website

posting, mailings, newsletters, or other forms of communication between the school/home.
Response:

The Annual Title | Notice was distributed to all parents via the Parent/Student Handbook. Draft versions of the Parent
Involvement Policy and the Parent Compact were distributed to parents at the Annual Title | Meeting held in conjunction
with the Wazuri Parent Association Meeting on October 27, 2011 {see attached meeting agenda). The policies were
adopted at a public Board meeting on January 12, 2012. The official policies will be posted on the school’s website
(www.imhotepcharter.org) and will be distributed to parents at the monthly Wazuri Parent Association Meeting on
January 26, 2012,

Topic: Title [, Highly Qualified

Issue: parents are notified if their child is assigned to or is being taught for four or more consecutive weeks by
a teacher who is not highly qualified in a core academic subject.

CA: The district will submit a copy of the letter notifying all parents of children not being taught by a highly
qualified teacher in a Title I building for 4 or more consecutive weeks.

Response:

Imhotep’s new semester begins on January 26, 2012. As this results in changes in course enrollment and teacher
assignments, parent notification letters wiil be sent to students assigned to be instructed by the 1.05 NHQTs by February
1, 2012. A copy of our letter template is attached. School administration have received guidance on timely tracking and
reporting of NHQT data to parents from its outside Federal Programs Consultant. Henceforth, NHQT notification ietters
will be sent within the first 4 weeks of each semester or upon hire of a non-HQT if mid-semester.

Topic: Title I, Parent Involvement

Issue: 2. Schools Receiving Title [ funds have a written parent involvement policy/plan aligned with the LEA
policy.

CA: LEA must provide the DFP a copy of their schoo! building parent involvement policy/plan for each Title |

building not in compliance; provide evidence of Title | parent involvement and input into the
development of the school building policy.




Response:

imhotep is a one-school LEA, As such our LEA Title | Parent Involvement Policy (detailed in our response to issue Title |,
Parent Involvement 1.0} is also our school-level policy. Please refer to aforementioned attachments.

Attached to this email, you will find back-up documentation to the corrective action items above, Please let me know if
you require any further information to close these items and mark our school in “full compliance.”

Thank you,
Melanie Reiser
Federal Programs Coordinator for Imhotep Institute Charter High School

Melanie Burke Reiser, M.G.A.
Vice President

OMNIVEST PROPERTIES MANAGEMENT, LLC
115 Pheasant Run, Suite 210

Newtown, PA 18940

Phone: 215-497-8301 ext. 101

fFax: 215-497-8305

Cell: 267-992-4346

Email: mreiser@omnivestlic.com




COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
333 Market Street Harrisburg, PA 17126-0333

Division of Federal Program
Consolidated Program Review

2010-2011 School Year

Imhotep Institute Chs

2101 W Godfrey Avenue
Philadelphia, PA 19138
Name Phone Number Check if Interviewed

Superintendent: M. Christine Wiggins 215-438-4140 I
Business Manager: Fred Anderson 215-438-4140 4
Title I Coordinator: Melanie Reiser 215-497-8301 ext. 5 ~
Title II Part A Coordinator: Melanie Reiser 215-497-8301 ext. 5 ¥
Title III Coordinator: o
Fiscal Requirements Coordinator: Melanie Reiser 215-497-8301 ext. 5 v
Ed-Flex Waiver Review Coordinator: i‘“
Title VI-B REAP Coordinator: r
Program(s) Reviewed:
~ Title I % Fiscal Requirements ™ Title VI-B REAP
¥ Title II Part A 7 Ed-Flex Waiver Review

I~ Title III
Program Reviewer/s: Dr. Gaylord J. Conquest
Visit Date: 4/5/2011

April 9, 2011
2010-2011 Monitoring Protocol Page 1 of 50




Title I Program Review

L

I
III.
V.
V.
VI
VII.
VIIL
IX.
X.

Highly Qualified

Parent Involvement

LEA Improvement

School Improvement

School Choice

Supplemental Educational Services (SES)
Schoolwide Programs

Targeted Assistance

Nonpublic Schools

Comparability

Title I Program Review
2010-2011 Monitoring Protocol

April 9, 2011
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I. Highly Qualified

Component I: Highly Qualified

The Local School System (LEA) designs and implements procedures that ensure the hiring and retention of qualified
teachers and paraprofessionals and ensure that parents are informed of educator credentials as required.

Sec. 1111 (h)(6)(A)
Sec. 1119 (a)(1-2) (c)(1)

la. All core contentarea | T | M| 5 | = | 4 crenchers Imhotep has 26 core content teachers in 2010-
gﬁgcfggsae;?g;gﬁf by and their 11, of which 20 are HQT (77%). There are six
qualified. qualifications. teachers Wh.O do not mect HQT requi:t:ements,
< Number of with th.e majority being certified special
teachers who have education teachers who have not demonstrated

met highly qualified. secondary content knowledge.

~ Number of

teachers working
toward becoming
highly qualified

Title I Program Review - I. Highly Qualified April 9, 2011
2010-2011 Monitoring Protocol Page 3 of 50




1b. LEA has a system in
place to ensure that all
core content area
teachers become highly
qualified.

M List of teachers

not highly qualified.
Plan, progress &
projected date of
completion.

™ LEA Plan

The list of non-HQTs will be provided at the
site visit. Over the past several years, Imhotep
has been working diligently to improve HQT
by emploving a multi-pronged strategy that
includes: (1) a general policy of only hiring
certified teachers, (2) working with non-HQTs
to assist them in passing the Praxis,
completing coursework, etc., and (3} using
innovative instructional methods to address
hard to staff positions such as secondary
science (e.g. Imhotep uses an cyber program
for its physics coach). Imhotep is currently
considering the feasibility of moving toward a
push-in special education model, both for its
educational merit and also to alleviate the
NHQT special education problem.

2. All instructional
paraprofessionals
supported by Title I are

highly gqualified.

i List of
paraprofessionals &
their qualifications.

¥ Verify number of
paraprofessionals
who have met
highly qualified
requirements.

I AA Degree
and/or local
assessment

Imhotep employs two paraprofessionals. Both
are HQ by having 60 or more college credits.

Title I Program Review - I. Highly Qualified

2010-2011 Monitoring Protocol

April 9, 2011
Page 4 of 50




3. Parents are notified
annually that they may
request information
regarding the
professional qualifications
of their child's teacher(s)},
and of paraprofessionals
who provide instructional
services to their children.

M Copy of
parent/guardian
notification

Imhotep has an Annual Title I Notice that is
distributed to parents. Included in this notice
is the following, "Parents may request, and
Imhotep will provide, certain information on
the professional qualifications of the students'
classroom teachers and paraprofessionals
providing services to the children. Requests
should be put in writing and submitted tot he
CEOQ in the Main Office." Traditionally, this
notice is published on the school website. In
2011-12 this notice will be incorporated into
the student/parent handbook and will be
distributed at the Annual Title I Meeting.

4. Parents are notified if
their child is assigned to
or being taught for four
or more consecutive
weeks by a teacher who
is not highly qualified in a
core academic subject.

¥ Copy of dated
letter of notification
to parent/guardian

Imhotep has a template for parent notification
letters. These letters will be sent home in April
2011. Henceforth, these letters will be
distributed to applicable parents promptly
upon their child being taught by four or more
consecutive weeks by a teacher who is not
highly qualified in a core academic subject.

Title I Program Review - I. Highly Qualified
2010-2011 Monitoring Protocol

April 9, 2011
Page 5 of 50




II. Parent Involvement

Component II: Parent Involvement

The LEA and schools meet parental involvement requirements.

Sec. 1118(a)-(h)
Sec. 1111(c)(14)
Sec. 1111(d)

Sec. 1116(a)(1}(D)

1. LEA has a written i B Imhotep has an active parent

- I Staff/Parent
arental involvement :
Bolicy and evidence that it meeting agenda, involvement program helmed by a
memoranda, Parent Ombudsman who was hired in

is updated periodically. . e .
S up periodically revisions. 2009-10 (see job description in review

materials). She will be present at the
review to describe the school's parent
involvement activities. In conjunction
with the Wazuri Parent Association,
Imhotep is reviewing a draft Title I
Parent Involvement Policy. This will be
adopted by the end of the school year,
distributed at the start of 2011-12 via
mailing and website, and described at

™ Website posting.

the Annual Title I Meeting.
2. Schools receiving Title | ™ | 2 | IZ Imhotep is a one-school LEA. As such,
I funds have a written the LEA and school parent involvement
parent involvement fiviti ih
policy/plan aligned with acliviiies arc ihe same.
the LEA policy.
3. LEA and schools have P N A ' *See 6 Parent |See below.
carried out the six Involvement
requirements to build 1
parents capacity to be Plan
involved in school: requirements
below
Title I Program Review - II. Parent Involvement April 9, 2011

2010-2011 Monitoring Protocol Page 6 of 50




a. Provide assistance to v Imhotep maintains an web-based system

parents in understanding v Stafi/Parent that enables parents to monitor student

the State's academic meetings, agendas, . . . )

content standards and and sign-in sheets. progress in real time. During tht? site

student academic visit, the Parent Ombudsman will

achievement standards, demonstrate the parent portal.

State and local academic

assessments, the

requirements of Title T,

and how to monitor a

child's progress and work

with educators to improve

student achievement;

b. Provide r';malterials and | ¥ | I ¥ Training Materials and training are provided to

training to help parents s . ; azuri

work with their children to materials, p arent§ d.urlng mqnthly W . Parent

improve achievernent, evaluations, agendas, Association meetmg_s, in special parent

such as literacy and calendar of events, events, and in materials available for

technology training; etc. parents. Recent examples included
technology training and special
education training.

c. Educate instructional | T The role of the Parent Ombudsman 1s to

staff, with parental
assistance, in the value
and utility of contributions
of parents, how to reach
out to and communicate
with and work with
parents as equal partners,
implement and coordinate
parent programs and
bulld ties between

parents and school;

meetings, agendas,
and sign-in sheets.

serve as a liaison between parents,
community, administration, and the
school. She meets with the principal at
least once per month to collaborate on
parent training and training for staff on
parent engagement. For example, one of
the staff's "good to read" articles this
year was on teacher strategies for
communicating with parents.

* Title I Program Review - II. Parent Involvement
2010-2011 Monitoring Protocol

April 9, 2011
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d. Coordinate and

Not applicable. Imhotep is a high

h I Trainin ; ]

integrate parent terial ¢ school, so does not coordinate with

involvement programs materials, .

and activities with other evaluations, agendas, preschool programming.

programs (Head Start, calendar of events,

Parents as Teachers, efc.

Early Reading First, public

preschool, and parent I™ Staff/Parent

resource centers), that meetings, agendas,

encourage and support and sign-in sheets

parents in more fully

participating in the "~ Memorandum of

education of their Understanding

children; (MOU).

e. Sent information 2N N Imhotep administers a home language

I Translated . . ©

related to school and d ts such as survey to all incoming students.

parent programs to ocuments such a ..

parents in a format and fliers, letters, web Presently, and hlStOl‘lcaHy, Imhotep has

language the parents site postings, etc. not served any students from homes

could understand; where the primary language was other
than English. So there has not been a
need to translate documents. However,
the school has an ELL policy in place in
the event that we enroll a student from a
home in which English is not the
primary language. We are aware of
resources (including those at the School
District of Philadelphia) for translation.

f. Provide full 2 N While Imhotep does not presently serve

opportunities for
participation of parents of
L EP students, students
with disabilities, parents

of migrant children,

" Parent meetings,
trainings, agendas,
fliers, newsletters,
and/or
advertisements.

any ELL or migrant students, 18% of
our students are classified as special
education. Because this represents such
a large portion of our population, we not
only encourage full participation of
parents of students with disabilities but
specifically hold parent programming
related to special education (see
February 16, 2011 agenda).

Title I Program Review - II. Parent Involvement
2010-2011 Monitoring Protocol

April 9, 2011
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4, School parent T . While Imhotep has an active parent
involvement policies have g Pzrent meeting involvement policy, we are presently
istri agendas . 2 :
nggnﬂsmbumd © ° . developing a formal parent involvement
' I™ documentation policy, working with the Wazuri Parent

shared or distributed Association to do so.

5. LEA has required i A copy of the school's
= -

schools to develop a 7 school-home parent/teacher/student compact is

written school-parent compact included in the Parent/Student

compact. Ly

P . Staff/Parent Handbook, which is also posted on the

meeting agenda, school's website.
memoranda,

6. Schools hold an annual | & | T Annual Title I meetings were

meeting to inform ILJI E?S%}Eg?cmo' traditionally held during parent

participating parents o conferences. Given the success of the

about Title I programs. meetings. Wazuri b vinmine in 2011-12. the Titl
- Agendas & azuri, beginning in 2011-12, the Title
attendance sheets of I meeting will be combined with the first
parent training. Wazuri meeting of the school year.

7. LEA and schools have | & | I Each year, Imhotep parents participate

reviewed the
effectiveness of school
parental involvement
activities.

~ Documentation

such as Annual
surveys and results,
parent meetings,
evaluations, and
parent teacher
conference

evaluations.

¥ Agendas &
attendance sheets of
parent training.

in a survey through the School District
of Philadelphia. Parent concern forms
are available year-round, are reviewed
by the Parent Ombudsman and shared
with the principal during monthly
meetings. Additionally, in February, the
Wazuri did an exercise in which the
attendees evaluated what works with
parent involvement, what didn't, and
what they would like to see happen. We
are developing an annual parent survey
to be administered in spring 2011.

Title I Program Review - IL. Parent Involvement
2010-2011 Monitoring Protocol

April 9, 2011
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8. LEA and schools have
informed parents about
the existence of a parent
resource center, if one

exists.

¥ Documentation
such as copies of
fliers, letters sent
home, posted
information on
boards at schools,
and translated
documents.

Imhotep maintains a both a physical
parent involvement office and a virtual
parent center. The various resources are
advertised via the website, monthly
newsletters, and bi-weekly email blasts.
Examples of resource materials include
health and wellness resources,
scholarship and financial aid materials,
special education resources, events and
celebration notifications, tips for using
technology, etc.

Title I Program Review - II. Parent Involvement

2010-2011 Monitoring Protocol

April 9, 2011
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III. LEA Improvement

Component III: LEA Improvement

Sec. 1116(b)(1)(B)
Sec. 1116(b)(3)

Sec. 1116(b)(4)-(6)
Sec. 1116(b)(7)(C)(i)
Sec. 1116(b)(14)(B)

LEAs identified for improvement, corrective action, or restructuring have met the requirements of being so identified.

I If the LEA is not identified for LEA Improvement, this section can be skipped.

1. The LEA notified
parents if the LEA
is identified for
improvement or
corrective action.

¥ Copy of letter of
notification to
parents that states
the LEA's status, the
reasons for the
identification, and
how parents can
participate in LEA
improvement
activities.

Reviewers should ask
how notifications
were distributed to
parents (newsletter,
mailed letter, website,
etc.).

Imhotep is categorized as "Making
Progress - Corrective Action 1." The SI
potification letter was mailed home on
August 23, 2010 (more than 14 days
from the start of school}. It was also
posted on the school website on August
23, 2010. We use the PDE template to
ensure that all required components are
in the letter. Copies of the letter and
evidence of the web posting will be
available during the review visit.

Title I Program Review - III. LEA Improvement

2010-2011 Monitoring Protocol

April 9, 2011
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2. The LEA has
developed a district
improvement plan
using the core
elements outlined
in the state's
district strategic
planning
framework,
Leading for
Learning!

~ Copy of LEA
Improvement plan

¥ Evidence of
school board
approval of plan

¥ Information on
participation in the
development of the
plan (IU staff,
outside expert,
teachers,
administrators,

parents, etc.)

Imhotep developed a 2-year SIP which
was approved by IU 26 in December
2009. The plan is valid through June
30, 2011. Upon receipt of the AYP data
in late summer, Imhotep reviewed the
SIP to ensure that the action items
contained within the the plan were still
applicable given the new assessment
results. A copy of our AYP Assurance
and the original plan will be available
during the review visit. Additionally,
page 7 of our SIP illustrates the various
individuals that participated in the
development in the plan, including a
consultant (outside experts), regular
education teacher, special education
teacher, parent, educational specialists,
and administrators.

3. The LEA has set
aside 10% of the
district's Title 1
aflocation for
professional
development
activities necessary
to ensure that the

LEA makes AYP.

v, Reservation of
Funds page of

eGrants application.

I~ Professional
development plan
and/or calendar
outlining the
activities to be
conducted with set
aside funds.

If the LEA also has
schools in
improvement or
corrective action, it is
required to set aside
10% of the Title I
building allocation for
professional
developments. This
amount can be used
toward the LEA
required set aside.

Imhotep is required to allocate an
amount equal to 10% of its Title I
allocation to professional development.
In 2010-11 the required set aside was
$40,732. Imhotep has set aside over
$60K in Title I funding as well as all of
its Title II funds for professional
development. As such, our PD budget
far exceeds the required set-aside.

Title I Program Review - III. LEA Improvement

2010-2011 Monitoring Protocol
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IV. School Improvement

Component IV: School Improvement

Schools identified for improvement, corrective action, or restructuring have met the requirements of being so identified.

Sec. 1116(b)(1)(B)
Sec. 1116(b)(3)

Sec. 1116(b)(4)-(6)
Sec. 1116(b)}(7)(C)(ii)
Sec. 1116(b)(14)(B)

~ 1f the LEA has no Title I schools identified for any level of School Improvement, this section can be skipped.

N iggested al

pl;é;;hnet s‘—gf\lgggtﬁ?g all [ ¥ | 7| T 1 5 copy of letter of  Reviewers |Imhotep is categorized as '.’Makjri'ng
days prior to the notification to parents should ask Pro_gress_ -- Corrective ch:mn I." The SI
beginning of the must include the how notification letter was mailed home on
school year if any schools’ status, notifications | August 23, 2010 (more than 14 days
schools are identified COIT p?nsor}c_wmh IOther were from the start of school). It was also
f:%rn[;?:%?g :Tﬁeon: _Or ?ﬁe(i%as ;f,fs'?é'r F;g?en' distributed |posted on the school website on August
(See School Choice identification, and how to parents |23, 2010. We use the PDE template to
?ggggizggjii éggggn %Jna ;?: rrl‘t(:)sof:? I’I; FE)I% r\’fg:rigl):;f? (ne}vvsletter, ensure that all regulred components are
requirements.) S ctivities. mailed in the letter. Copies of the letter and

letter, evidence of the web posting will be

I Verification of date website, available during the review visit.
of notification etc.).
o If

applicable,

the

notification

must be

provided in

different

languages.

Title I Program Review - IV. School Improvement April 9, 2011
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2. The LEA posted on

Copies of our data as well as the screen-

; : v Webpage : ; .
g:e?irnv:ﬁ]%s&?th Sy - Pag shot from our website will be provided.
' Student
2007 and all
attendance for
?g:ﬁgggg?t years builfjing offering
a. Number of students choice.
teligibil:e ang due t ~ Low Income or FRL
gﬁg;:rre ue to numbers for school in
b. Number of students SI 2 or CA.
who were eligible and
participated in SES.
¢. List of available
schools for transfer.
d. List of available
SES providers.
3. The LEA has v - Imhotep developed a 2-year SIP which

developed a 2-year
school improvement
plan using the core
elements outlined in
the state's strategic
school improvement
planning framework,
Getting Results!

~ Copy of school
improvement plan

™ Copy of Statement
of Quality Assurance
submitted to PDE with
appropriate
signatures.

¥ Information on
participation in the
development of the
plan (IU staff, outside
expert, teachers,
administrators,
parents, etc.)

was approved by JU 26 in December
2009. The plan is valid through June 30,
2011. Upon receipt of the AYP data in
late summer, Imhotep reviewed the SIP
to ensure that the action items contained
within the the plan were still applicable
given the new assessment results. A
copy of our AYP Assurance and the
original plan will be available during the
review visit. Additionally, page 7 of our
SIP illustrates the various individuals
that participated in the development in
the plan, including a consultant (outside
experts), regular education teacher,
special education teacher, parent,
educational specialists, and
administrators.

Title I Program Review - IV. School Improvement
2010-2011 Monitoring Protocol
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4. Each school ~ . Imhotep is required to allocate an
identified for ¥ Professional P lq 0% of i e I
: development plan amount equal to 10% of its Title
improvement must p P . .
spend at least 10% of and/or calendar allocation to professional development.
its Title I building outlining the activities In 2010-11 the required set aside was
allocation on to be conducted with $40,732. Imhotep has set aside over
professional set aside funds. $60K in Title I funding as well as all of
development o . . = .
activities. IV Sign-in sheets for its Title II funds for professional
grofelssmnal development. As such, our PD budget
evelopment far exceeds the required set-aside.
activities.
" Meeting minutes or
agendas regarding
scientifically based
methods and
strategies.
v Title I Budget
5. Each school v Whenever the school is developing a

identified for
Corrective Action 1 or
2 involves parents in
corrective actions
taken to improve
academic

achievermnent.

7 Meeting agendas

¥ Parent notifications

¥ Meeting minutes

plan (whether professional development,
school improvement, SIG, etc), the
school develops a planning committee
that includes all stakeholders, including
parents. Corrective actions are often
discussed at Board of Trustees
Meetings, which are open to parents.
Additional, the school's Wazuri Parent
Association is actively involved in
academic improvement. For example, in
February 2011, the group conducted a
Parent Voices exercise which included
discussions of what works at the school,
what doesn't, and what they would like
to see happen. Additionally, once a
month, parents from the Wazuri meet
with the school principal to discuss
parent concerns and suggestions on
improving the school.

Title I Program Review - IV. School Improvement
2010-2011 Monitoring Protocol
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V. School Choice

Component V: School Choice

The LEA ensures that requirements for public school choice are met.

Sec. 1116(b)(1)(D) and (E)
Sec. 1112(g)(4)

~ If the LEA has no buildings in School Improvement I or choice can't be offered
because there are no schools available for choice, this section can be skipped.

de tion nc
1. The LEA at least 14 days priorto the| ™ | 77 | T : e Reviewers should
beginning of the school year notified I Copy of letter of K h tificati
parents of all students enrolled in the notification to parents ask how notihcations
identiﬁed SChOOI Of their Option to that |nf0rn?s pa rents Of WEre dlStrlbuth tO
transfer their children to another public school choice and the parents (newsletter,
school within the LEA that is NOT process to be used to mailed letter
identified for improvement or exercise the option. website. etc 3
corrective action. ™ Verification of date of ¢ This notice may be a
parent notification. part of the general
school improvement
notification or it may
be a separate notice.
e Ifapplicable, the
notification must be
provided in different
languages.
2. The LEA posted on their website il
prior to the beginning of the school i LEA Webpage
year: . T Student attendance
‘?Eal:l]ggrber of students eligible for for building offering
b. Number of students who choice.
transferred. ™oy i
¢. List of availabie schools for Choice - List of SChOOiS.F%tI n
transfers Improveme_nt available to
) accept Choice transferred
students.

Title I Program Review - V. School Choice
2010-2011 Monitoring Protocol

April 9, 2011
Page 16 of 50




3. The LEA implemented a priority At I 1 . Limits on school choice
system for satisfying school choice I Explanation or copy of | © - =\ imposed

asts only when cost is above the policies regarding the T
;egci;) maxi;‘wzm of Title I_l prioritization that took  |arbitrarily by the LEA for

place when granting any reasons other than those
school choice transfers. | gssociated with health and
safety issues surrounding
building capacity.

4. The LEA set aside, at a minimum, an| I | 1} T ‘ \ o LEFAs must set aside

amount equal to So% of its Title I [Z Reservation of Funds o minimum of 5%

allocation to pay for costs associated page of eGrants >

with schoo!l choice. application. but do not have to
exceed 20%.

I Cther financial
documents to document
state and local funds
used to support school
choice costs.

5. If the LFA requested rollover of i I i Reviewers will find
unused funds set aside for Choice the T Appropriate records previous year data under
LEA met all of the following used to record school )

a. Partner with community groups . . Data on the egrant main
b. Ensure students/parents have a _l’ Choice data is entered | | )

genuine opportunity to sign up for in eGrants

choice transfer,

¢. Parent notification mailed out at
least 14 days prior to the start of the
school year.

d. Website posting lists number of
students eligible and participating.

6. The LEA maintains records regarding} T | 7 | T

transfer requests (approved and " Appropriate records

denied), numbers of students used to record school
transferring and the buildings choice information.
accepting transferred students.  Choice data is entered
in eGrants J
Title I Program Review - V. School Choice April 9, 2011
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VL. Supplemental Educational Services (SES)

Component VI: Supplemental Educational Services (SES)

Sec. 1116(¢)

The LEA ensures that requirements for the provision of Supplementary Educational Services (SES) are met.

™ If the LEA has no buildings in School Improvement II or any level of Corrective Action, this section can be sKkipped.

nts Met| >

[ ya]  Sussested Byice

dd:

Title I Program Review - VL. Supplemental Educational Services
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1. The LEA at the
beginning of the school
year notified parents of all
low income (eligible)
students of their option to
obtain Supplemental
Educational Services (SES)
for their children and does
not require additional
requirements for

participation.

“ Copy of letter of
notification to parents
that informs parents of
the availability of SES
and the process to
follow to obtain it.

~ Documentation to
show that the state
approved list of SES
providers was also
forwarded to parents
and that parents had
ample opportunity to
choose a provider.

% Verification of date
of notification.

¢ Reviewers

should ask
how
notifications
were
distributed to
parents
(newsletter,
mailed letter,
website,
etc.).

This notice
may be a
part of the
general
school
improvement
notification
or it may be
a separate
notice.

If applicable,
the
notification
must be
provided in
different
languages.
SES may not
replace other
school
programs
(Supllement
vs. Supplant)

Imhotep traditionally notifies
parents of availability of SES at
the same time that we send out the
School Improvement Notification
letter. However, PDE had not
released the approved SES
provider list by the time the
School Improvement notification
needed to be sent home. So,
Imhotep mailed the SES letter
(along with the list of SES
providers) on December 15, 2010.
It has also been posted on the
school website.

Title I Program Review - V1. Supplemental Educational Services
2010-2011 Monitoring Protocol
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least two enrollment
windows for SES during

the school year.

I+ Parent Notifications

™ Signed Agreements

ask parents of
eligible students if
they are aware of
the two SES
windows.

2. The LEA posted on their | & T | = LEA Websi See List of Qur website includes a link to

website: ebsite . ] . b

e iber of students _ providers on historical data (back to 2007-08)

eiigible for SES. I/ List of SES PDE/SES on the number of students eligible

b. Number of students Providers inclu dd'"g webpage. for SES and the number

participating in SES distance providers participating. We also post the list

c. List of available SES ¥ Selection of of SES providers there.

providers Schools Low Income

data

3. The LEA has correctly ~ I . Imhotep uses free and reduced

identified low income ~ Low-income rice lunch eligibility to determine

(eligible) students for SES measure used to p meh eig

and prioritized determine Title I SES eligibility. As of December 1,

appropriately when building eligibility 95% of our students were eligible

determining participation MUST be used to for SES. While the demand for

only when cost is above determine student SES has never exceeded the

the maximum amount of eligibility for SES. > 11as

per pupil amount or 20% o o availability of funds, we do have a

of Title I funding. I Criteria for priority provision in our SES letter that

of services. states that students would be

prioritized based on academic
need if necessary.

g’;g I-,relemlfrf; sr%ﬁf’vzl;tne;gg’co ~ L ¥ Copies of contracts ?oz%itg’ idie. onlyﬂi: (I)n:r?ft f:lr ISES

LEA, the provider and the for each provider and mn 2010-11 1s with 1ntellectua

parent of the participating student participating Pursuit, Inc. A copy of this

child for carrying out SES. in SES. contract will be provided at the
site visit.

5. The LEA provides at I r Reviewers should

After the initial open period,
Imbotep reached out to families
via telephone to encourage SES
participation. Applications are
accepted on a rolling basis, the
school partnered with an SES
provider to provide SES on
Saturdays, and the school will
again encourage families to take
advantage of SES in summer
2011.

Title I Program Review - V1. Supplemental Educational Services

2010-2011 Monitoring Protocol

April 9, 2011
Page 20 of 50




6. The LEA offered SES v r : To date, only one SES provider
providers equal access to f. LEA Palicy for (Intellectual Pursuit) has requested
school facilities as other access to school i
organizations using a fair, facilities. 33(13. oftheémgi)tep sﬁifor SES
open and objective = - elivery. If other providers request
process. v SES Prfv'der this access, we will also make
agreements reasonable accommodations.
8. The LEA maintains ~ - . Imhotep offered SES in 09-10.
records regarding the 2 List of each school 411 stulzients were eligible, of
numbers of students offering SES and the hich 58 stud - cioted
participating in SES, the providers being used whic _s:ru t?nts participated.
buildings they attend and along with the number SES participation data has been
the providers used. ngtt_‘é‘_dearg: posted on Imhotep's website and
participating. was also submitted to PDE. A
M SES data entered copy of the PDE submission will
in eGrants. be available at the site visit.
7. If the LEA requested r 2 Reviewers should |Imhotep has not requested a

roilover of unused funds
set aside for Choice the
LEA met all of the
following requirements:

a. Partner with community
groups

b. Ensure
students/parents have a
genuine opportunity to

sign up for choice transfer.

¢. Parent notification
mailed out at least 14
days prior to the start of
the school year.

d. Website posting lists
number of students
eligible and participating.

™ Parent Notification

I LEA Website

. FBO/CBO
correspondence,
phene logs or posters

™ DFP notification
and Assurances for
Rollover Form

ask parents if they
were aware of the
opportunity to
request SES.

rollover.

Title I Program Review - VI. Supplemental Educational Services
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VII. Schoolwide Programs

Component VII: Schoolwide Programs

Sec. 1114

The LEA and schools develop schoolwide programs taht use the flexibility provided to them by law to improve the academic
achievement of all students in the school.

I If the LEA does not operate a Schoolwide Program in any Title I schools, this section can be skipped.

1. LEA provides guidance,
technical assistance and
support to schools developing
schoolwide programs in the
areas of needs assessment,
comprehensive planning,
implementation, and
evaluation of a schoolwide
program and requirements.

™ Evidence of the Planning
Process and Technical
Assistance.

¥ Initial Planning meeting
agenda/list of participants.

I Whole-school orientation-
agenda/list of participants.

~ Planning Team roster and
calendar of meetings.

M Plan approval.

I” Budget Reports. Copy of
schoolwide plans

As a charter school, Imhotep is a
one-school LEA. The LEA and
the school are the same entity.
Our most recent SWP was
approved on May 7, 2009.
Additionally, the school
developed a new School
Improvement Plan in 2009-10
using the Getting Results Gen. 6
format. This more recent plan
also includes the required SWP
components.

Title I Program Review - VII. Schoolwide Programs
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2, Schoolwide program plans

See pages 27-28 of Gen. 6

: : ™ Schoolwide
include the ten required :
components, are reviewed agenda/minutes. Getting Results for goals.
and evaluated annually, and : -
revised accordingly. ‘ri School wide plan that
includes goals.
I Completion of approved
Generation 5 "Getting
Results" School Improvement
plan. (All required
components are embedded in
this plan.)
¥ Assessments
M Comprehensive Needs
Assessment and a system of
documentation,
~ Identification of
scientifically-based strategies
to address needs.
2a. Comprehensive Needs |>2 T e See pages 2-3 and 5-7 of SWP.
Assessment See pages 8-26 of Gen. 6
Getting Results.
2b. Schoolwide reform I~ R See pages 8-10 of SWP. See
strategies pages 29-32 of Gen. 6 Getting
Results.
2¢. Instruction by highly o2 B i See pages 15-16 of SWP.
qualified staff
2d. High quality and ongoing | = | | 7 See page 15 of SWP. See pages
professional development 35-36 of Gen. 6 Getting Results.
2e. High-quality teachers to 2 B0 A See page 16 of SWP.
"high-need" schools
2f. Parent Involvement M N I See page 17 of SWP. See page
37 of Gen. 6 Getting Results.
2g. Transitioning preschool i B v Not applicable. We are high

children

school.

Title I Program Review - VII. Schoolwide Programs
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2h. Teacher input in
assessment decisions

See page 19 of SWP.

2i. Effective, timely and
additional assistance to
students having difficulty
mastering proficient or
advanced levels of academic
achievement standards

See page 20 of SWP.

2j. Coordinated budget

q

i

See page 21 of SWP.

3. Indication of which
program funds have been
consolidated in the
schoolwide program and how
the intent and purposes of
the individual programs
consolidated are addressed.

o

" Financial reports.
M SWP

Our SWP consolidates Title I
(including ARRA and SIG) and
Title II.

Title I Program Review - VII. Schoolwide Programs
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VIIL Targeted Assistance

Component VIII: Targeted Assistance

The LEA targeted assistance programs meet all requirements.

Sec. 1115

= If the LEA only operates Schoolwide Programs in Title 1 schools, this section can be skipped.

1. The LEA has established targeted i I IO

assistance programs that address statutory ™ Identification of scientifically-
purposes and meet requirements, including researched based instructional
the following: models.

. L . ' School improvement plans.
» using effective instructional methods

and strategies that strengthen the M Team meetings, professional
core academic program of the school development, agendas, sign-in
« primary consideration to providing sheets, minutes, etc.
extended learning time for students
served I School schedules and schedules
e an accelerated high quality for Title I staff and eligible students.
curriculum
» Minimizing the removal of children ]
from regu[ar classroom during I Benchmarks of Title 1 students
regular school hours. receiving supplemental instruction.
2. LEA ensures that targeted assistance [ [ R O r School I £ Pl
program planning coordinates with and ~ School Improvement Flan
supports the regular education program in (identifies targeted assistance
schools. programs).
™ Documentation of scheduled
team meetings.
3. LEA promotes the integration of staff clry
supported with targeted assistance funds I Staff schedules

into the regular school program, including

- ™ Documentation such as agenda
professional development.

for topics, sign-in sheets, etc.

Title I Program Review - VIIL. Targeted Assistance April 9, 2011
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[_ T ial ] |
4. Selection for eligible students. e ™ Selection criteria process/multiple

selection criteria.
™ Student roster.

I” Teacher/parent recommendation

I~ Assessment data of Title I
student

April 9, 2011
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IX. Nonpublic Schools

Component IX: Nonpublic Schools

Sec. 1120
Sec. 9503

34 CFR Part 200
§200.62 - 200.67, 200.77
§200.77(f)
§200.78(a)

The LEA provides Title I services to eligible children attending nonpublic schools.

~ If the LEA has no participating Nonpublic schools, this section can be skipped.

n

LEA and nonpublic school officials.

1. LEA has public school ranking I . . o .
charts with per-pupil allocations I Fmanr{:al rep.orts, line items to private
identified. (Equitable Services) school children in budget.

I List of participating private schools.

I? Consolidated application
2. LEA has policies and procedures HO [ SV N - A
for provision of services to eligible I” Consolidated Application Procedures
children attending nonpublic schools.
3. Consultation occurred between | I

T Copies of letters to private schools,
agendas, meeting dates, participant
lists/sign-~in

"' Consolidated application

I~ Record that services have been
discussed

Title I Program Review - IX. Nonpublic Schools

2010-2011 Monitoring Protocol
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4, LEA regularly supervises the I I A O : . - I,
provision of Title I services to I Staff evaluations, visits/communication
nonpublic children.
I Announcements/sign-in sheets for
professional development and parent
involvement opportunities
5. LEA is evaluating the Title 1 | I I - Need
program serving nonpublic school eeds assessments/survey
students. i1 Assessment data
6. Nonpublic school children, S I DR . .
families and teachers are receiving ™ Hired teachers to work with
equitable services. participating Title I students
7 Announcements/sign-in sheets for
professional development and parent
involvement opportunities
7. The LEA has budgets that [ I I , . o
document appropriate set-asides. 7 Consolidated application
" Quarterly Reports/Final Expenditure
Reports
8. The LEA has third party I I , .
contract(s). * Name of Third Party Contractor
7 Payroll sheets
 Written contract.
I Consolidated application
9. The LEA has complaint S T DL I

procedures for private school
officials.

" Copy of complaint procedures

Title I Program Review - IX. Nonpublic Schools
2010-2011 Monitoring Protocol

April 9, 2011
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X. Comparability

Component X: Comparability

The LEA complies with the comparability provisions of Title L

Sec. 1120A(c)

1, Title I Comparability Report comparing
Title I schools to non-Title I schools
reported to SEA annually in Pennsylvania

and submitted by November 15th.

I Support Data housed at the LEA

(individual school lists with staff
names attached to the positions

counted and excluded)

' Documentation maintained
supports the report submitted by
November 15th of each year

T HR action documentation for any
corrective actions taken

I" Records are maintained for 3
years.

T Written procedures to ensure that
comparable services are provided.

[ Articulated (written) process on

the movement of staff during school
year to meet the November 15th
deadline.

%>

Comments

Title I Program Review - X. Comparability

2010-2011 Monitoring Protocol

April 9, 2011
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HIGHLY QUALIFIED-#4--Parent Notification Letter--As of the date of the monitoring visit (4/5/11), students in those classes of
teachers who were not highly qualified in a core academic subject had not had a letter sent home. The federal monitor is aware that
the school is planning to send them out in April. PARENT INVOLVEMENT-#1--Parent Involvement Policy--The school does not
have a policy yet. It is being worked on by the Parent Ombudsman. The federal monitor commends the school for having a Parent
Ombudsman. We spoke at length about her work and she plays a vital role in getting parents involved. Other than the items
mentioned above, all forms and documentation relating to Title I are in compliance.

Title I Program Review - X. Comparability April 9, 2011
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Title II A Program Review

Highly Qualified

1. The LEA has a plan in 2 T
place to ensure all
teachers of core academic
subjects will be highly
qualified. Section 1119
(a)(1)&(3) and Section 2141

(a)

1 Highly Qualified
Plan

¥ List of teacher
qualifications

Imhotep's administration has met with all non

-HQT staff to develop a plan for them
achieving HQT status. The list of non-HQTs
will be provided at the site visit. Over the past
several years, Imhotep has been working

implementing an
individualized professional
development plan for non-
highly qualified teachers
as indicated in the annual
principal attestation (PDE
Form 425). *This applies
to LEAs that have not
maintained highly
qualified teacher status for
2 consecutive years,

Section 2141(c)

¥ Individual
professional
development plan
for each nonHQ

teacher

M LEA-supported
and/for sponsored
PD exists to assist
teachers

~ Principal diligently to improve HQT by employing a
Attestation (PDE multi-pronged strategy that includes: (1) a
Form 425) general policy of only hiring certified

' HQT IPDPs teac_:hers, (2)- workmg with non.-HQTs to
prepared for each assist them in passing the Pfams_, comp}etmg
teacher who is not coursework, etc., and (3) using innovative
highly qualified instructional methods to address hard to staff

positions such as secondary science (e.g.
Imhotep uses an cyber program for its physics
coach). Imhotep is currently considering the
feasibility of moving toward a push-in special
education model, both for its educational
merit and also to alleviate the NHQT special
education problem.

2. The LEA is 2 I All staff maintain personalized professional

development binders. Imhotep will translate
these plans into the HQT IPDP template to
ensure that all NHQTSs have a plan in place by
the close of the school year.

|

Title Il A Program Review - Highly Qualified
2010-2011 Monitoring Protocol
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il Not] /4 Suggested Evidence | Additiona

2. The LEA has entered [ r ¥

Not applicable. Imhotep made AYP in 2009-

; : ™ LEA/SEA plan

ln_t% ahwrgéilt?]g reen:}t_ant P 10. In the past 8 years, Imhotep has made
}',‘:’;tuste  ritles A I7 Evidence exists AYP every other year and so has never failed
funds to achieve highly that plan Is {tj)emg‘ to make AYP for 3 consecutive years.
qualified status. Section implemented  (this

(2141(c) *This applies to LEAs E‘z:%d vary from LEA to

that have not made AYP and
maintained 100% HQ for 3
consecutive years.

Title II A Program Review - Highly Qualified April 9, 2011
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Professional Development

sted: 3 0
| e | Met| f Implementation | Evidence i
e L R R e B Ve T S
professional development and needs assessment : ategic planning, using
hiring, as identified by the LEA and findings data to drive decisions. This is true in
and school staff. Section 2122 particular when it comes to determining
(e)1)(2) needs for professional development and
hiring. Most recently, Imhotep conducted
a needs assessment in developing its
Gen. 6 Getting Results School
Improvement Plan. This resulted in a two
-year professional development plan.
5. The LEA involves parents in 7 A RS (e . . As mentioned previously, the new Parent
e B A, Sacion e e Ombudsman meets regulaly it school
2122 (b)(7) administration to ensure that parent
needs are incorporated into all aspects of
school operations, including professional
development.
6. The LEA professional 20 I I i See Gen. 6 Getting Results plan. In
development activities are I List of it : :
bosed on & review of professional addition, Imhotep is currently in the
scientifically based research and development process of developing a three-year
designed to improve student activities aligned professional development plan, which
academic achievement. Section to district plan. will be explicitly aligned to scientifically
2122 (b)(1)(B) based research for improving student
achicvement.
Title I A Program Review - Professional Development April 9, 2011
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x/ | Suggested Evidence | Additional | -
| of Implementation | Evidence |

I'co

mments.

7. The LEA provides
professional development
activities to improve the
knowledge of teachers,
principals, paraprofessionals

2123 (A)(3)(A&B)

and other school staff. Section

7 List of
professional
development
activities.

I List of In-
Service activities

~ Attendance

Imhotep maintains a robust professional
development program. In 2010-11, the
school has participated in an intensive
professional development series on
differentiated instruction. Other topics
have included, special education,
technology, restorative practice,
classroom planning, Afrikan-centered
education, etc. Copies of agendas,

students. Section 2122 (b}(2)

% ACT 48 PD plan

rosters . . .
handouts, and sign-in sheets will be
provided at the site visit.

8. The LEA professional ~ There is not an achievement gap, as our
o= [ PD needs p-

development activities are used Fom ;

as part of a broader strategy to assessment 1})10p ulation is demo%r apéucally d

eliminate the achievement gap - omogencous = 99% o our students are

that separates low-income and - Teacher minority and 95% are low income. Our

minority students from other surveys professional development activities are

aimed at improving student achievement
for all.

Title IT A Program Review - Professional Development

2010-2011 Monitoring Protocol

April 9, 2011
Page 34 of 50




Class Size Reduction

9. The LEA targets funds to schools that

&

NA. Imhotep is a one-

have the lowest portion of highly qualified - Class rosters school LEA. All funds go
teachers; have the largest average class I Highly Qualified to its one SC]:I 1
size; or are identified for school Teachers 115 on 00l
improvement. Section 2122 (b)(3)
I SI Schools
10. The LEA utilizes highly qualified I B B 2 Highly Qualified NA. Class sizes are
F:;a(;l;%s to reduce class size. Section 2123 Teacher Credentials tradlthnally kep.t IOW and
from PDE class size reduction is not
an identified area of need.
HQTs are used to staff
core content classes.
11. The LEA provides expenditures for NI This is not applicable to

educational services to eligible nonpublic
school children equal to the proportion of
funds allocated to participating public
school attendance areas. Section

8501(a)(b)(4)

I_ Expenditures for
non-public services

I~ List on PDE web
site

I Title II-A Non-
public share

charter schools.

Title IT A Program Review - Class Size Reduction
2010-2011 Monitoring Protocol

April 9, 2011
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Suggested Ev
_ of Implementation

dditional
idenc

experienced and HQ teachers within the
districts schools to ensure poor and
minority students are not taught at higher
rates than other students by
inexperienced, unqualified, or out-of-field

teachers. Section 1112(c)(1)(L)

12. LEA ensures equitable distribution of o

I Equity Plan

I~ Agendas of Equity
Plan Meetings

" Meeting minutes of
Equity Plan writing &
planning sessions.

I Teachers are
reassigned

™ Changes to union
contract

HQT/NHQT data and
strategies revised in
equity plan when there
is no improvement

Inequity is not applicable
at Imhotep due to the
homogeneous nature of
our student population --
99% minority and 95%
low-income.

%>

Comments

All forms and documentation relating to Title II are in compliance. The school and the parent community work closely together in
planning and implementing the Professional Development Program. The federal monitor commends the school for the amount of
monies it allocates toward professional development.

Title II A Program Review - Class Size Reduction
2010-2011 Monitoring Protocol
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Component XI: Fiscal Requirements

A. Audits

The SEA ensures
that the State and
the LEAs are
audited annually, if
required, and that
all corrective
actions required
through this
process are fully
implemented.

OMB Circular A-87

1. Copies of single audit reports | ¥
(2 most recent), corrective
action plans and approval
documents for the LEA.

— LEA response
to findings.

I PDE follow-
up reviews of
findings.

7 Independent
auditors report
shows that the
LEA has
corrected all
action required.

PDE Monitor
review single audit
from previous year
(federal programs
only) and reviews
district comments
(management
letter).

Imhotep does not
have any findings
related to federal
programs. A copy of
the (draft) audit for
FY 2009-10
indicates that "There
were no findings and
questioned costs for
federal awards”
(page 35). The
school was similarly
found to be in
compliance for FY
2008-09 (see page 34
of audit).

Component XI: Fiscal Requirements
2010-2011 Monitoring Protocol
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‘Comments

B. Carryover

1. LEAs with allocations

Imhotep has never

applied without regard to grade
spans or schools with a poverty
rate of 75% and above.

7~ Schools with
poverty rates of
75% or greater
are served. Funds
are allocated at a

per pupil rate.

-
greater than $50,000 per year se cg ;ieoIllBudget carried over more

The LEA complies [have not carried over more than eGrants. than 15%, and

with the carryover 15% of their allocation from typically uses all

provisions of Title I.|one year to the next unless the funds within the
SEA has waived the limitation fiscal year. With the

Sec. 1127 (allowable once every 3 year influx of ARRA
cycle if the SEA believes the funds in 2009-10,
request is reasonable and Imhotep did have
necessary). some carry-over into

2010-11 -- 1.3%.
2. The LEA hasrequested (and | ™ |7 | ¥ |~ waiver NA. Imhotep only
received) a waiver from the request on carried over 1.3%
SEA if the carryover from the eGrants. from 2009-10 to
prior year exceeds 15%. . 2010-11. A copy of
T Waiver the carryover sction
request approval of the General
on file and at Budget in eGrants
PDE. will be available for
review at the site
Visit.

C. Rank Order 1. The LEA is only serving morm |~ - NA. Imhotep is a one
eligible schools and all schools nrwdggggeti?tm ~school LEA. All
above 75% poverty are served. poverty data used funding is allocated

to determine to this one school.
eligibility
2. The ranking procedures are | | |

NA. Imhotep is a one
-school LEA. All
funding is allocated
to this one school.

Component XI: Fiscal Requirements
2010-2011 Monitoring Protocol
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The LEA ensures
that it complies
with the
requirements of
Title I when
allocating funds to
eligible school
attendance areas or
schools in rank
order of poverty
based on the
number of children
from low-income
families who reside
in an eligible school
attendance area.

Sec. 1113
34 CFR Part 200
§200.77-§200.78

3. Eligible schools are ranked
and served from highest to
Jowest poverty.

allocations match

NA. Imhotep is a one
-school LEA. All

Consolidated ﬁlndlﬂg is allocated
Plan. to this one school.
4. The allocation to each T ¥ | Per pupil NA. Imhotep is a one
eligible school and the per pupil expenditures at -school LEA. All
allocation match. building level funding is allocated
matches to this one school.
consolidated
application
5. Allocations given to Title I 1™ | = Local budeet NA. Imhotep is a one
schools match approved S}_leetcs)f:a nage -school LEA. All
amounts on consolidated funding is allocated
application. tr- %zstem to this one school.
racking
expenditure
reports.
6. The prekindergarten (PreK) T 1™ | - The LEA's Imbotep is a high

children are excluded from the
poverty count of any school.

count of children
from low income

school (grades 9-12).
We do not have a

families does not preschool
include children population.
under the age of
5.
D. Supplement /
Supplant
Component XI: Fiscal Requirements April 9, 2011
2010-2011 Monitoring Protocol Page 39 of 50




The LEA ensures |1. LEA approved budget and M 1T 1T | & Statement of Pertains to: Imhotep funds, as
that Title I funds  {records of expenditures of Title Allocation & close as possible, the
are used only to I funds at the district level Expenditures »n Title JA & D |same activities
supplement or match. m Title 11 A through Title funds
increase non- = Title IIT each year to avoid
Federal sources » Reading First supplanting,
used for the typically funding
ducation of *Documentation prirr%arily support
participating o staff salaries and
children and not to ﬁgfsgﬁﬁilazgs on benefits, SES, and
supplant funds recardine computer based
from non-Federal su;pl antine. If you instructional
sources. think therecmay be g [Programs. When the
problem, refer to SCh(.)(.)I recerves
Sec. 1114 DEP Regional addmoneq funds,
Sec. 1115 Coordinator. such as Title I
Sec. 1116 ARRA. or SIG, we
Sec. 1120A ensure that these
funds are spent on
supplemental
expenses. All of our
Title ] ARRA
expenses were for
one-time
expenditures and
pilot programs.
Component XI: Fiscal Requirements April 9, 2011
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Additional Evidence:

2. Schoolwide program

As noted above, our

2010-2011 Monitoring Protocol

I~

expenditures verify that funds 7 Statement of ARRA

have not supplanted non-federal Expenditures. documentation will

resources. ) serve as evidence of
> Expenditures us not supplanting.
match SWP Additionally, we will
activities provide the most
I~ State/local recent letter from
fund PDE that we have
expenditures maintained fiscal
have not effort.
decreased

3. Targeted assistance program [ | | ¥ Not applicable.

expenditures meet the statutory ;11 g éi:?g;eg of Imhotep is a SWP.

requirements and are Expenditures are

supplemental in nature & do supplemental

not supplant non-federal

resources.

Component XI: Fiscal Requirements April 9, 2011
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‘Additional Evidence | Comments
E. Equipment and |1. LEA maintains Inventory T T | 5 nvento ry is Pertains to: Imhotep maintains
Related Property  {records, purchase orders and on file and up to an asset list that is
receipts for equipment date (All m TitleIA & D upgiated annually.
OMB Circular A-87 |purchased. equipment at » TitleII A This list includes _
EDGAR 80.32 $1,500 or LEA »  Title ITI purchases m:':lde with
capitalization = Reading First | federal finding, and
threshold the mventory
$ is identifies the specific
maintained). fund.ing source.
Copies of purchase
orders and receipts
for equipment
purchased with Title
I ARRA will be
provided during the
site visit.
2. The LEA conducts a physical | ¥ | |7 | ~ ¢ quipment Pertains to: Imhotep maintains
inventory of all equipment at Inventory List an asset list that is
least once every two years. = Title A & D |updated annually.
x Title II A This list includes
» Title III purchases made with
= Reading First federal funding, and
the inventory
identifies the specific
funding source.
F. Compliance to
Reservations
The LEA complies
with requirements
regarding the
reservation of
funds.Sec. 1113
Component X1: Fiscal Requirements April 9, 2011
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Sec. 1116
Sec. 1118

1. The LEA has reserved funds
necessary to provide services
comparable to those provided to
children in Title I funded
schools to serve homeless
children, neglected children in
local institutions, and if
appropriate, N or D children in
community day schools and
delinquent children in local
institutions.

T Reservations
are in the budget.

™ Line items
can be followed.

" Expenditures
are charged to
the line items.

Pertains to:

Title IA & D
Title IT A
Title IIX
Reading First

The homeless set-
aside does not apply
to charter schools.

2. LEA has reserved a

~ Reservations

The school has set-

Component XI: Fiscal Requirements
2010-2011 Monitoring Protocol

minimum of 5% up to a : aside $81,464 for
maximum of 20% for :];:el;lnﬂ;z ROF SES.
transportation/supplemental egrants.
services or both unless a lesser o
amount is needed. (for school W Line items
improvement schools only; if can be followed.
no schools in school I Expenditures
improvement, check NA) are charged to

the line items.

~ LEA

documents

expenditures for

choice and

supplemental

services

(agreements

between LEA

and providers).

April 9, 2011
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Additional Evidence | ‘

3. LEAsreceivingmorethan |7 |7 | ® | - procedure for | M the combined |In 2010-11, Imhotep
$500,000 have reserved 1% of allocation 95% to | 2mount of ARRA & |is not receiving more
their allocation for parental schools. Title I Basic funds |than $500K m Title I
involvement and that 95% of result in the LEA's | Basic funds.
those funds have been I 95% allocated | tota] allocation
distributed to served schools. to schools. being $500,000 or

I~ Line item more, a parent

reflects 1%. involvement set

. o -

" Budget Line ?:l?srzgl /18

Item for q )

professional

development.

I~ Agendas,

Sign-Ins,

Calendar of

training,

contracts with

trainers etc.

I~ Expenditures

supporting

professional

development.

Component XI: Fiscal Requirements - April 9, 2011
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4. LEAs with schools identified
for improvement have set aside
10% of funds for professional
development activities.

~ Activities
scheduled for
professional
development,
agendas, sign-in,
contracted
technical
assistance, etc.

&~ 10% of the
Title I allocation
is reported on the
LEA actual
budget reports
under
professional
development.

~ Activities
scheduled for
professional
development
agendas, sign-in,
contracted
technical
assistance, etc.

I~ 10% of
school's in
improvement
allocation is
tracked by LEA
for professional
development.

Imhotep has set-

aside more than 10%
of Title I funds for
professional
development as
indicated on our
ROF page. Examples
of our extensive
professional
development
activities will be
provided during the
site visit.

Component XI: Fiscal Requirements
2010-2011 Monitoring Protocol
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- Comments

G. OBligaﬁng

1. The LEA began obligating

Pertains to:

Our approval letter

I” Interdistrict
agreement and/or
3rd Party
contract amounts
match what is
approved on
consolidated
application.

i .
Funds funds on or after the program graiiilz;;;oval and Rider for 2010-
approval date Letter » Title IA & D |11 indicate an
] = Title I A approval date of
w E}ép?dme x Title III 11/1/10. Our internal
records begin on . : o
or after approval " Reading Fiest %i)inlfrr?griziilusnate
date that no funds were
obligated prior to
11/1/10.
H. Nonpublic 1. The LEA reserved thesame | T [T | M | = (s 40508 Pertains to: Nonpublic school
School Services per pupil amount to each non- and Nonpublic services do not apply
public Jow-income child as Section and = Title IA & D |to charter schools
distributed to each public low- budget line item m TitlelI A
income child. on eGrants m  Title III
= Reading First

April 9, 2011
Page 46 of 50
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- Cod o Suggeste Dol
Requirements let| o VA | Evidenc " Comments
I. Time 1. The LEA maintains semi- M AP AT | 5 Semi-annual | Fertains to: Semi-annual
Documentation annual certifications for all time certifications for
employees funded from a single certifications w  Title IA & D |applicable
cost objective. s TitleII A employees will be
= Title IIJ available at the site
= Reading First [ V1SIG
2. The LEA maintains time o N R Logs Pertains to: Time documentation
documentation logs/schedules logs for the one pro-
for prorated staff including the [~ Staff = Title JA & D |rated staff member
amount of time spent on each Calendars » Title]] A will be provided at
funding source activity; the logs I Staff x  Title I the site visit.
are signed by a supervisor and Schedules x Reading First
reconciled to payroll
documentation on a monthly
basis
J. Record Retention | 1. Records are maintained fora { M |7 | TT Pertains to: All Title I records
period of 7 years are maintained for a
= Title IA & D {period of at least 7
» Title Il A years. Records are
m  Title III retained on-site, at
" Reading First | the school's
education
management
company, and with
the school's external
federal programs
coordinator.
Component XI: Fiscal Requirements April 9, 2011
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lence’ - | Additional Evidence |
Ta L mplementation ). -
K. .America 1. Title I, Supplemental _ Mo 7 Invoices Information on the
Reinvestment & (ARRA) funds & expenditures approved
Recovery Act of are tracked separately from M Purchase consolidated
2009 Title I, A Basic funds orders application should
~ Equipment match actual
tracking logs expenditures
2. Data Collection/Submission-| | I 5 ARRA 1512 Infon‘nation
LEAs have source data to survey submitted on the
reflect reported information on ARRA 1512 Survey
Title I, Supplemental (ARRA) ~ Payroll should be verified
funds to PDE. ~ Invoices on site by reviewing
~ SWP information in
suggested
~ Purchase evidence.”
orders
3. LEA has submitted its 2 = You will find this
School Level Expenditure Data * eGrant xeport report on the main
2008-2009 from state & local menu screen in
funds in eGrants eGrants. Its the 2nd
link in middle of
page reads: School
Level Expenditure
Data 2008-2009.
(Top of the screen
should say Program
Year is currently
2010 -2011).
*Deadline for this
report is February
26, 2010.
%>
Comments

Component XJ: Fiscal Requirements
2010-2011 Menitoring Protocol
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All forms and documentation relating to the Fiscal Requirements are in compliance.

Component XI: Fiscal Requirements April 9, 2011
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Personnel Interviews

Inhotep Institute Charter High School |4/5/2011 | Aeesha Mosley Title I Parent

Inhotep Institute Charter High School [4/5/2011 | Alfonse Bowman Biology Teacher

Inhotep Institute Charter High School |4/5/2011 |Curtis Davis Social Studies Demonstration Teacher
Inhotep Institute Charter High School |4/5/2011 | Debra Toney-Moore Parent Ombudsman/Title I Parent
Inhotep Institute Charter High School [4/5/2011 {Fred Anderson Director of Operations

Inhotep Institute Charter High School [4/5/2011 |Julian McNeil Math Teacher

Inhotep Institute Charter High School |4/5/2011 |Mark Wilson Technology Specialist & Technology Demonstration Teacher
Inhotep Institute Charter High School {4/5/2011 | Nick Lincoln English Teacher

Inhotep Institute Charter High School [4/5/2011 | Tamala Layne English Demonstration Teacher
Inhotep Institute Charter High School [4/5/2011 | Tameka Thomas Director of Teaching and Learning
Inhotep Institute Charter High School [4/5/2011 | Theresa Corinaldi Title I Parent

Personnel Interviews
2010-2011 Monitoring Protocol

April 9, 2011
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School District:
Monitor Date:
Monitor:
Contact Person:
Report Date:

2010-2011

Division of Federal Program
Corrective Action Plan
2010-2011 School Year

Imhotep Institute Chs

4/5/2011

Dr. Gaylord J. Conquest

Federal Programs Coordinator Melanie Reiser
6/14/2013 1:00:30 PM

June 14, 2013
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Title 1a. All core content | The district will List of teachers  ||{:CA:Due: |6/30/2011 [ mpents
Highly area teachers submit a listing of all and their S e
Qualified employed by the LEA |non-highly qualified qualifications. 11/14/2011 Imhotepthai 26
are highly qualified. |teachers and the " | Number of 6/14/2013 ||| €OFe conten
length of time each teachers who AN teachers n 2010-
has been working in have met highly C NOt 11, of which 20 are
the position for which ||| dualified: Required: HQT (77%). There
they are not highly i | Number of are six teachers
ualified. alone with teachers working who do not meet
9 e 2 toward becoming HQT requirements,
the appropriate highly qualified with the majority
emergency certificate bei Hified
(s) issued for this sggéigaiduc;ion
time period. teachers who have
not demonstrated
secondary content
knowledge.
Title I 4. Parents are notified | The district will - | Copy of dated Jes30/2011
Highly if their child is submit a copy of the letter of
Qualified assigned to or being  {letter notifying all not:ﬁctatmn EO_ 11/14/2011
taught for four or parents of children parent/guardian 6/14/2013
more consecutive not being taught by a -
weeks by a teacher  |highly qualified Reauired:
who is not highly teacher in a Title | i it
qualified in a core building for 4 or
academic subject. more consecutive
weeks.
June 14, 2013
2010-2011 Page 2 of 5




plementation

Imhotep has a

template for parent
notification letters.
These letters will
be sent home in
April 2011.
Henceforth, these
letters will be
distributed to
applicable parents
promptly upon their
child being taught
by four or more
consecutive weeks
by a teacher who is
not highly qualified
in a core academic
subject.

Title I
Parent
Involvement

2010-2011

1. LEA has a written
parental involvement
policy and evidence
that it is updated
periodically.

Provide copy of
LEA/District parent

involvement policy to

PDE for review;
provide evidence of
parent involvement
and input into the
development of the
policy.

Staif/Parent
meeting agenda,
memoranda,
revisions.

le/31/2011

11/14/2011

Website posting.

6/14/2013

June 14, 2013
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- | Suggested Evidence | -
| . of Implémentation-

Imhotep has an
active parent
involvement
program helmed by
a Parent
Ombudsman who
was hired in 2009-
10 (see job
description in
review materials).
She will be present
at the review to
describe the
school's parent
involvement
activities. In
conjunction with
the Wazuri Parent
Association,
Imhotep is
reviewing a draft
Title I Parent
Involvement
Policy. This will be
adopted by the end
of the school year,
distributed at the
start of 2011-12 via
mailing and
website, and
described at the
Annual Title I
Meeting.

June 14, 2013
2010-2011 -




oPIC - |

Title [

2. Schools receiving

LEA must provide to

Sat| B/31/2011
Parent Title I funds havea  |the DFP a copy of their =
Involvement |written parent school buildifl}gr parent anes. 11/14/2011 || Imhotep is a one-
involvement involvement : 16/14/2013 school LEA. As
policy/plan aligned  |policy/plan for each - such, the LEA and
with the LEA policy. |Title I building not in ’ school parent
compliance; provide 1mvo ly exnent
evidence of Title I activities are the
parent involvement and same.
input into the
development of the
school building policy.
Title I 4. School parent Provide evidence that Parent s | 6/30/2011 .
Parent involvement policies |the school policies meeting — e
Involvement {have been disptributed were distri‘guted to agendas 11/14/2011 Whﬂe. Imbotep has
to parents. parents. Evidence can documentation 6/14/2013 ||| an active parent
include website shared or s involvement policy,
posting, mailings, distributed A we are presently
newsletters, or other developing a formal
forms of parfant mvoh/:ement
communication policy, working
between the with the Wazuri
school/home. Parent Association
to do so.
June 14, 2013
2010-2011 Page 5 of 5




